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JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

-~ Let’s go ahead and go on the record. I'm

going to just go through a couple of preliminary.

organizational things. If you would all put your cell

phones either on off or on vibrate, I'd appreciate it.

1f anyone is immediately parked around the building,

you need to go move your vehicle to public parking.
If anyone needs a restroom, please just get up. It is

just past the elevators. Same side as the elevators,

but just'past them. 7f yvou need a cafeteria, we have

a bare bones one in the bhasement. Just take the

elevator all the way down to the basement and take a

' lefs when you come off of the elevator. Coffee, tea,

sofr drinks, that's pretty much it. It's pretty bare
bones. We will break at 12:30 for lunch.

We will need to‘ﬁinish at 4:00 today.

 Eowever, the rest cf :the week we can go as late as

everybody has brain power. As with the hearings thac
we neld in November, we will do evervthing on the

record. We are doing whatbt is called realtime

' transcribing. If anyone is not familiar with that,

you ¢an ask me at a break and I'1ll explain it to you.

But becausc of that, we will be doing everything on

Sargent’'s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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the record.

Now, going on the record for the actual

‘hearing portion, this is the continvation of the
lhearings in the matter of County of Pike, et al.,
versus Pike County Light & Power at Docket €-20065942.

Now, I have in the courtroom the Office of the

Consumer Advocate, the Office for the Small Business

Advocate. Ané I have Jim Melia representing a large

consumer group, variety of complainants. And I have

numerous counselors for Pike County Light & Power.

lAnd 1 have Deanne 0'Dell for Direct Energy, which I

believe I brought in as an indispensable party. 2aAngd
again, Mr. Kenny, ﬁofmal complainant. And Mr. John
Calton, formal complainant.

wWe held nearings November 5th for some

cf, not all of, the formal complainants. and again,

Jthis is a continuation today. and my anticipation is

that we will hear from two OCA witnesses and Pike
County's rebuttal witnesses to those OCA witnesses.

Loes anybody disagree with that so far? Okay. That's

a good start. We made it all the way into two or

three minutes.
Okay. Prelimirary matters that I have on

nmy notes that I'1l just list, and then you all tell me

if there's other things that need to be resolved

Sargent'’'s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
(8L4) 536-89¢C8 ~
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thefore we go into the actﬁal hearing. Were you all
able to resolve the motion teo compel and sanctions
| issue? It looked 1like you had., It looked like
lthere's a protective order on the table., And I'm
seeing heads shake wves, and I'm seeing Mr. Dalton
|raise his‘hand. Mr. Dalton, yes?

MR. DALTON:

I have one motion to compel.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Okay. And what is it?

MR. DALTON:

This is your copy.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Did you share it with the attorneys?
MR. DALTON: :
Towards Mr. O‘Brien.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

I'm sorry. Say that _——

MR. DALTON:

He will be testifvying :émorrowt Excuse
’me‘

JUDGE JANDEEEUR:

Okay. Did you all receive this,

2dlattorneys’s

ATTORNEY MELIA:

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
(814) 536-8508 '
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Yes, we did, Your Honor.,

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

And Mr. Melia?
MR. DALTON:
I have copies er'the rest.

JUDCE JANDEBEUR:

Okay; vVery good.

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

Your Honor, I believe vou were referring
J{to the motion to compel with regard'to our
lllinterrogatory reqguests td the 0CA with regard to the
confidential document. |

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

I was, yes.

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

and I'11 ilet Mr. Lanza, since he dealt
with:Mt. Eopowsky, discuss that. I believé we've
resolved that issue. The only o6utstanding issue to be
resmlved‘is‘how to deal with the actual document in
'*‘fhe héaring, -

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Okay.

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

--~ how we present ---.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Sargent's Court Reporting Service, Inc.
(8l4) 536-89408 ;
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Hold on one second, and let me take a
look at what Mr. Dalton gave me. Mr. Dalton, is this”
the first that you have diécussed this with Pike
County Light & Power? | |

The responses came late on Friday to me.

By the time I had an opportunity to digest everything,

it was very Late on Friday.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Qkay.

ME. DALTON:

And I didn't feel it was possible to be
in teouch, after six o’'clock, with the attorneys who-
aré representing Pike or anybody'e;sé,;so’I proceeded
to, as I described in this memorandum, tb do the best
I carn and ended up'finishing it last night.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Okay. I will take a louk at this when we

take a break. Oxray?

MR. DALTON:

Yes, matam,.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

I'm going to set that aside for now.

Okay. Back to you, Mr. Lanza.

ATTORNEY LANZA:

Sargent‘’s Court Réporting Service, Inc.
(8.4) 526-89C8
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I think as you stated, Judge, that issue

 has been xesolved. And like Mr. Gallagher said, the
only iééue tb be resolved is how to deal with having
Ctﬁat exhibict introduced into evidence. But I think
e @TIA the’OCA Can speak to this, but the protective
jordgr énterea by you should deal with :hat‘issue as

fweli.

B

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Okay. And T reviewed the protective
prder. I don't --- it's a little bit different than

our normal format, but there's --- I didn't see

anything Wrong with it. Now, doc we need to go ahead

and juSt have me enter this protective order as part

of the record or do you want to see if vou truly need

it? It's your call, OCA.

ATTORNEY POPOWSKY:

It's really up to ==~ we would not need
it. But if the cumpany is going to utilize that
document, then we would need it. And it's nmy

understanding that the company may utilize it

| tomorrow.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Okay. That being the case, I will go

ahead and enter this into the record as a signed

Iprotective order by me, as written. I'm not going to

Sargent's Court Reporting Service, Inc.
(814) 536-8908
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change it. So you are covered by the Protective
Order.

 ATTORNEY POPOWSKY:

Thank you, Youxr Honor.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

You're welcome. Ms. O0'Dell, ~---

ATTORNEY O'DELL:

Yes.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:
vou had requested whether or not

anybody really wanted your witneéss to testify.

ATTORNEY O'DELL:
Correct.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Bverybody indicated that they didn':
care.

ATTORNEY O'DELL:

"Right.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

e

T do. I believe for purposes of this

record it's to the company's benefit and to the

benefit of the ULility Commission and the consumers

23 |

tha: your witness testify, the record be complete on
Direct Energy's position on all of this. That's fine

that everybody disagrees with me. I'm more

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
(814) 536-8908
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~cémfortable with it being a full and complete‘«~w

ATTORKEY O'DELL:

You certainly have the ---.
JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

~--- it's a full and complete record that

|1 would like to produce at the end of all this.

kTherefore, I know it's time consuming and I know it's
expensive, but I'd like your witness to go akead and
put thelr testimony on.

ATTORNEY 0 'DELL:

He'll plan on being here tomorrow, with
everybody'’'s agreement.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

B

~ think that's how it's on the i1ist, and
that's fine, ves.

ATTORNEY ASMUS:

Your Honor?

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Sir.

ATTORNEY ASMUS:

Likewise, the OSBA witness, Robert Knecht

(phonetic), there is nobody who wishes tc cross him,

s0 if you have guestions ---.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

it's not that I have guestions. It's

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
(B14) 53€6-8908
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' that to get the Direct testimony in, you need to at
least put the witness on the stand, authenticate it

and gel it into the record. Otherwise, it's just

paper that is not part of the record, just paper in my
off.ce. And that‘s not the way I would do this case.

80 yes, I would like your witness tc get on the

witness stand as well, Mr., Asmus.

ATTORNEY ASMUS:

Thank you. Your Honor, the practice =---

‘at ieast my recollection of many years of practice is
that we could all stipulate to the admission of that
testimony inte the rececrd without going through the

 formal process.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

We can do that.

ATTORNEY ASMUS:

And I think for all parties involved,

{that's a lot easier. And it would save ¥s., 0'Dell the

time and expense of her witness. We can stipulate the

testimony directly into the record. It will be part

lof the record. »and that would be much more efficient.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR :

That is something that we can do if

everyone is comfortable with that. I just absolutely

[want thesc items in the record, not simply paper that

Sargent’'s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
, (814) 536-8808
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Istipulazion, why don't you go ahead and give us the

language for that, Mr. Gallagher.

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

Oh, thank you, Your Honor, for

{volunteering me.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:
You're welécme,

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

Never volunteer.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

That's the way school worked when I was

there. I'm on the other side. I have to get back.

' I'm sorry.

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

I understand.

ATTORNEY POPOWSKY :

We would have no objection to that, Your
Honor, to Mr. Gallagher’'s suggestion.

ATTORNEY MELIA:

Nor would Pike County.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR :

T did see a lot of shaking heads, that

everybody was comfortable with that. And that's fine

with me. Just as long as ali these folks* testimony

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
(8:4) 536-89C8 :
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is in the record sd that I can use it ard the citizens
seg it in there,‘thaﬁ's my goal. So,wé’ll let Mr.
Gallagher work out the language.

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

I think, Your Honor, to elaborate a
little bit more on this, I know --- my understanding
'is that Direct did not have testimony prepared; is

that correct?

ATTORNEY O'DELL:

We submitted written testimony.

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

Oh, thar's right. I'ﬁ 50rry. Thac's
| right. |

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Zt's short, but it's there.

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

ict's shcrt, That's right. No problem.

ATTORNEY O'DELL:

We'd be willing £o ~<- we can do’ the-

written stipulation.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Okay. Just you all work that out atu a
break. And then when we come back from the break or

- lunch, we'*ll put it on the record.

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

Sargent'’'s Court Repbr:ing Service, Inc.
(814) 536-8908 :
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And that will also/apgiy to Mr. Knecht.
;1 know we've had discussions with tke OSBA with regard
to that testimony, and we‘can work on that, too.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Okay. I‘think the last on my list is
you, Mr. Kenny. You had requested an opportunity to
address the rebuttal testimony of --- was it Mr.
Regan?

MR. KENNY:

Yes, Your Honor.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

‘ | Okay. Now, what you reguested is a
little bit unusual. What I'd i1ike from you is
basically an offer of proof of why your additional
Direct testimony is needed.

MR. KENNY:

vour Honor, T'‘ve reconsidered the reQueSt
I made, and I understand Mr. Regan will be a witness.

1 intend to Cross Mr. Regan. That may be sufficient.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:
Okay.

MR. KENNY:

If it is not, 1 will let Your Honor know,

and I will make an offer cf‘promfi

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

-1
3
[

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service,
(814) 536-8908
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Okay. Very good. Thank you, Mr. Kenny.

That's it on my tist. Does anyone have any additional

preliminary matters we need to go over before we

begin?
ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:
Yes,>Your Honor. That's the outstanding

motion --- formal motion of Pike with regards to
testimony of Ms. Brockway.

CUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Yes, that is correct. and it's not on my

llist. And I have a big pile in front o©of me on Ms.

Brockway. I disagree with your analysis of that, Mr.

Gallagher, and so the motion is denied. Obviously,

'you will be able to address your disagreements with
her curing your rebuttal of her testimony, your Cross

Examination and rebuttal.

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

Your Honor, but we have a formal motion

outstanding. We'd like to address your understanding

rand your analysis of that motion for any appeals of

this issue. So we'd like to understand better your

understanding or your appreciation of the issues.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

My ratrionale for my decision?

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
{814) 536-89C8 ‘
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Yes.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Your take on it is that Ms. Brockway is

an attorney and that she is not an expert. And 1 do

{not think that her being an attorney precludes her

from being an expert in other areas. What I have segen

written so far is that she indeed can be brought in as
an expert sufticiently tor my purposes. Therefore, I

disagree with vour bunping her out.

ATTORNEY GALLACGHER:
Your Honor, our position in the motion is

clear that Ms. Brockway is‘presenting legal argument

and that her tes:timony is nothing more than a brief.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

I understand tkat, and I don't agree,

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

Even her discussions o0f Big Run ~-~~.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR :

She is arguing. That is her --- the

basis for her testimony is that she frankly disagrees

with Pike County Light & Power's take on it.

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

And Your Honor, that's exXactly the‘point
we're making. She's making argument as opposed to

testifying. There's a big difference.

Sargent’'s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
(814) 536-8908 |
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cUDGE_ JANDEBEUR:

I'm not sure about that. I'm not,sute
that the line is quite as bright as you think it is.

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER: |

I believe it's fairly bright in terms of
what a witness in a proceeding such as this or any
praceédihg can testify about facts as opposed to
‘téstifying andkarguing the law, which is what Ms.
Brockway does.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

5

I think my take on'what she has presented
in her written Direct is more in the form of opinion
testimony tharn it is legal argument. That's the way I
read it. And that may be a difference bhetween you and
1 aﬁd our take on what she's preseﬁtad, but my ruling

' lis that I disagree with you. I believe that she c¢an
:GOme in. You can do an interlocutory appeal. kI?m not
sure how far it will get you. And you certainly haVEJ
preserved it tor the recoxd.

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

Yes, Your Honor. Then we'll preserve the
issue for the record.
ATTORNEY POPOWSKY:

Thank you, Your Honor.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Sargent’s Court Reporting Servibe, ne.
(814) S536-8908 ‘
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Anything else preliminarily? I believe

you‘re up, Mr. Popowsky.

ATTORNEY POPOWSKY:

Mr. Beatty is going to present Mr. Kahal.

JUDGE_JANDEBEUR:

Very good. Go ahead.

ATTORKEY BEATTY:

Good morning, Your Honor. We would like

to present Mr, Matthew Kahal.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Please raise your rignt hand.

MATTHEW KAHBAL, HAVING FIRST BEEN DULY SWORMN, TESTIFIED

 AS FOLLOWS:

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Thank you, sir. Be seated. Mr. Beatty?

ATTORNEY BEATTY:

Thank you, Your Honoxr.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR :

On each of these, if you would, because

Mr. O'Hearn does not have these names in advance,

 iplease have your witness state their name and spell it
and then business address for the record.

1A, My name i1is Matthew I. Kabhal. Last name 1is spelled

Sargent's Court Reporting Service, Inc.
(814) 536-89C8
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K-A-H-A-L. My address is 5565 Sterrett Place,

Sterrett is spelied §-T-E-R-R-E-T-T, Columbia,
Maryland, 21401.

DIRECT EXAMINATION

| BY ATTORNEY BEATTY:

Q. Thank you, Mr. Kahal.

ATTORNEY BEATTY:

Your Honor, I would like to have marked

for identificatior OCA Statement Number One.

{OCA Statement Number One marked for

identification.)

'BY ATTORNEY BEATTY:

Q. Mr. Kahal, do you have before you a copy of your

4 |prepared pre-filed Direct testimony in this case,

consisting of 33 pages of guestions and answers and

fmn@ appendix?
;A. Yes, I do.
'Q. Was this testimony and appendix prepared by you or

under your direct supervision?

A. Yes, I prepared it.

G Do you have any additions, c¢orrections or

rodifications to make to your testimony at this time?

A. I have one very minor c¢larification to the

testimony. And this is on page 28 of that testimony.

At line 14 there's a sentence that refers to the

Sargent's Court Reporting Service, Inc.
(814) 536-89¢(8
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acquisitioﬁ of Pilke County by Sussex and subject to

' the Allecheny Board of Directors. I now understand

that, strictly speaking, lt's not the actual

racguisition that's subject to the Allegheny Electric

 Co-01p Board of Directors, but rather the power supply

arrangement that would allow the Pike custoners, if

| Pike was to be acquired by Sussex, to take service

lunder the Allegheny generation and transmission

whoiesale rate. That's what's subject to the approval
of the Allegheny Board of Directors. I think, as a

practical matter, there's not really much of a

fdifféreﬁce between what's in my testimony and the
‘;statément that I -dust made. That's the only
|clarification and change that I had.

1€. Subjeéﬁ to these corrections; is thé testimony and

|exhibit true and correct to the best of your

knowledge, information and belief?

A. It is,

Q. If 1 were to ask you these same questions today
{under oath, would your answers be the same?

A, Yes, they would.

ATTORNEY BEATTY:

Your Honor, we asx that Mr, Kahal's

testimony, including the attached appendix, marked for

|identification as OCA's Statement Number One be

Sargent’s Court Reporting Sérvice, Iinc.
(814) 536-~-89C8
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admitted into evidence, subiject to any timely motions
by opposing Counsel.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Any obkjections?

ATTORNEY BEATTY:

All parties and Your Honor were
previously served with copies of Mr. Kakhal's
testimony, and I've provided two copies to the court
;raportef‘ And at this tine, Your‘Honor,vthe OCA would
ilike to proceed with Mr. Kéhal‘s oral‘surrebuttal‘

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Proceed.

| BY ATTORNEY BEATTY:

Q. Mr. Kahal, what is the scope of your surrebuttal
téstimmny tsday? | |

A. I'm planning on responding briefly to the rebuttal
testimony of Mr. Josephk Holtman that was submitced in
'December‘ That testimony outlines a proposed plan by
Pike County for the prOvidér of last resort, br what
lwe call POLR ser?ice. That would begin in 2008. and

that POLR service would be kased upon the integration

2ol the P.ke County load with that of Pike's New York

affiliate, Orange & Rockland. Mr. Holtnan only

i1 {presented this plan in outline form in his rebuttal

taestimony to be subject to a formal filing that

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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presumably is in another docket. That filing was

actually made earlier this month. I don't helieve

that filing is part of this record.
¢. Aand what specitically is Mr. Holtman presenting as
' the company's preferred POLR option?

|A. Under this option that he presents for future POLR

service to the Pike County customers, Pike County

lwourd integrate its load with the Orange & Rockland

load sometime this year, in 2007. The dates haven't

been provided,’but it would be later this year.
Orange & Rockland then would conduct an auction for

what's xnown as financial swaps of energy. This would

be for a period of three years. And ultimately they

would phase in overlapping three-year contracts. ©One

of the xey assumptions, of course, is that the load

that's acguired through this integrated Pike County

ahd;@range & Rockland auction, this wouléd he tethered
Lo the New York ISO markes, just as it is today.

91C. How does Mr. Holtman's rebuttal relate to your

irect testimony?

A. The theme of my Direct testimony is that Pike
County suffers from certain structural problems. The
structural problems most prominently are Pike County's

|very small size and Pike County'’'s linkage to the New

York Generation market. In addition to that, cthe

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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,prablems‘that we have today with Pike County power
supply that resulited in the infamous 129~péréent rate
increase in generatlion costs and 73~percent,ovérall
‘rate increase is as a result of those structural

problems, coupled with poor timing in terms of when

the power supply was acguired in Qctober of 2005,

I'm gratified that Mr. Holtman recognizes the same
structural pvroblems that :‘dom His integrated Orange
& Rockland procurement prcposal recognizes the probiemr

of Pike County's small size load. He also recognizes

| the timing problem, which is why his proposal proposes
a series of laddered three-year contract.

|Unfortunately, it doesn't address one of the

structural problems, and that is the linkaye to the
New York generation market. _
In light of these structural problems, including

this New York market linkage, I identified what I

| thought were the relevant alternatives in my

testimony. The relevant alternates would include,

first of all, the status quo; that is, just continuing

to do something like what was done in the fall of

2005. The second option is the acguisition of Pike
County by Sussex Electric Cooperative. The third

option that I identified in my testimony was the

linkage or the integration of the Pike County load

Sargent’'s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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with the New Jersey affiliate of Pike County. Rockland
Electric Company., in their baéic~generati0n service
auction which takes place annually in New Jersey. And
fourth, Pike County conducting its procurement on a
istandualone basis, but is integrated with the PJM
mankét'rather than the New York market. All of these
options, other than the status guo, would result from
:the‘integrahion of Pike Coﬁnty with the PJM market.
Both Mr. Kolling and Mr. Lanzalotta have dembnsirated
‘tha feasibility of doing that.

= Mr. H01tman now provides us with one additional
cption in addition to the options that were in my
testimony, and that?s the integration with the New
York affiliate, Orange & Rocklahd,

C. My . Kahal, has NMr. Holtman demonstrated that‘his
FOLR proposal is preferable tm'the POLR c¢ptions you
discuss in your Direct ﬁestimony? ’

A, It's preferable to one of the options that I
';identified in my testimony, and that is it's certainly
fpreferable to the status guo, that is Pike County
|@iscontinuing on a kind of a stand-alone basis with
its 15, 16 megawatts the way it did in tke fall of
|2005. i'don‘t think that he has demonétrated that
it's sugérior to the other cptions I identified iﬁ my

| testimony, all of which assume & linkage of Pike

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service;':nc.
(814) 53€6-8908
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County to the PIM market.

Q. In particular, how does Mr. Holtman‘'s proposal

compare to the Sussex acguisition proposed by Mr.

Kolling?

A. T think it's vastly inferior to the acquisition by

Sussex. As Mr. Xolling explains in his testimony, if

Pike County is acquired by Sussex, this will result in

a significant decline in the rates that Pike County

customers pay even immediately. But over a period of

time, over a period of several years, Pike County will

then be phased into the Allegheny electric bulk power

rate, That bulk power rate is 5.8 cents. But 5.8

cents is less than half of the generation rate that
Pike County customers now pay..

I've also taken a careful look, and I explain this

lin my direct testimony, at the long-term prospects for
7| the costs that Allegheny would charge its customers,

whiich would irnclude Pike if Pike were to be acquired

by Sussex. And the information would indicate that

that rate is --- it may not stay at exactly 5.8 cents,

lbut it should, over a long period of time, remain

fairly stable and inexpensive. The reason is that
something like 70-percent of Allegheny’'s generation

supply comes from very low costs, nuclear and

hydroelectric power, the other 30-percent from the

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, inc,
{81l4) 3536-8908
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market. So the very fact that 70-percent of its power

supply is coning from these highly economical sources

will help assure that the generation costs in the long

run remain both attractive and stable,

In addition, Sussex has the advantage over Pike of

a very, very low cost of capital, of financing. This

means that although the PJIM interconnection must be

paid for, as Mr. Lanzalotta discusses in his

testimony, he estimatesg that that cost be about a

million to two million dollars, something in that

range. Even if this is directly assigned to the Pike

customers, because of the‘very low cost of capizal of

 Sussex, this is'going to be a Very inexpensive charge

to the Pike County customers. In a data response that
‘i provided to the company, excuse me, to Pike County,

I believe it set forth guestion three. I estimated

that that cost would be in the range, on a long-tern

kasis, of about one to two mils per kilowatt hour,

‘which is only about one percent of the current rates
that the customers now have.

‘;Q“ Mr. Kahal, how does Mr. Holtman's proposal compare
lto the option of integration with the New Jersey BGS
faucticn,‘the Basic Generacion Service auction?

AL It's actually similar except in one crucial

Irespect, and that is that if rthe Sussex acquisit:ion

Sargent’'s Court Reporcing Service, Inc.
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doesn't take place and if the company were able to

then integrate the Pike County load with the New

Jersey Basitc Generation Service auction, which I

lindicated takes place annually, the difference is that

at _east that would be based upon the PJIM costs for

power. The company estimates that that's on the order
of about one-and-a-half to two cents per kilowatt hour

less expensive than the New York marke:z. And I think

I agree with that assessment. That's about a ballpark

of what the cost difference is. So that would have
' the advantage of providing a PdM-based price for the

12

Pike customers, which puts PJ --- excuse me, put the

pPike customers in the same position as other

'Pennsylvania customers who also pay --- who will, in
‘the future, pay PJM prices or narket prices for
generations.

Q. Is there any merit to Mr. Holtman's O0&R
integration proposal?

A. I think that there is some merit to it in that it

does address the small size problem. The laddering

Jconcept can provide more cost stability for customers,
As T said, I think it is inferior +o these other

3loptions that 1've identified. However, there's also

some uncertainty as to when --- and there's some

5| disagreenent on the record clearly as to when this PJIM

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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integration can be accompl.ished. And certainly

there's disagreement as to whether it can be

acecorplished by January 1, 2008. Therefore, if it's

concluded that it will take a considerable amount of
time to accomplisk this PJM integration that Mr.

Lanzalotta discusses in his testimony, the Orange &

Rockland integration certainly might make sense as an

linterim measure, for example, for the year --- to
|provide service, say. for the year 2008. So on an

| interim basis it may make sense.

ATTORNEY BEATTY:

Your Honor, that's all the formal

surrebuttal we have for Mr, Kahal. And I would ask,

lagain, that Mr. Xahal's testimony, including the

appendix, marked tor identification as OCA Statement

Number One be admitted into evidence, subject to any
timely motions by opposing Counsel.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Any objections?

ATTORNEYfGALLAGHER:
No obZecction.

MR. XKENNY:

No objection.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

So admitted.

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Tnc!
' (814} 536-8908
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LTTORNEY BEATTY:

Mr. Kahal is now available for Cross

| Examination.

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

Your Honor, if we may take some time to
-review his surrebuttal with our witnesses. ' This ié'
'the first time we've heard it.

ATTORNEY BEATTY:

We have no objection.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

That is fine, no. There are two options

{for you. As you know, there is a conference room

here. I also have reserved across the hall a

lconference room, Room 308. So it's your choice. Do

{you want to take five minutes?

 ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

If vou wogld give us 10 minutes, 10 or 15
minutes, that will be fine.

JUDGE _JANDEBEUR:

We*ll take ten.

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

and we'll go across the hall.
JUDGE_JANDEBEUR:
Okay . |

SHORT BREAK TAKEN

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
{814) 536-89C8
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JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Let's go back on the record. Mr. Lanza?

ATTORNEY LANZA:

Yes, Youxr Honor,

CROSS EXAMINATION

BY ATTORNEY LANZA:

Q. Good morning, Mr. Kahal. How are you?

AL Good nmeorning. I'm fine. Thank you.
Q. I have a few questions for you on Cross, But

|mostly I'm just going to be showing you responses that

veou submitted to our interrogatories and ask you

' basically whether what is in those responses is still
accurate. ‘

4la. That would be fine,

ATTORNEY LANZA:

May I approach, Your Honoxr?

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:
You may.
ATTORNEY LANZA:
We'd like to have marked for
identification, Your Honor, what we‘ll réfer to as

FCLEP Cross Examination Exhibit Number One. And that

 lis PCL&P Set Four, QOuestion Number Three.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Do you have copies for the court

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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ATTORNEY LANZA:

Yes, 1 do. ,
{PCL&P Cross Examination Exhibit One
marked for idencificat:on,)

BY ATTORNEY LANZA:

Q. Mr. Kahal, this interrogatory basiéally reguestcs
'that vou provide estimates of the effective rates to
be chargéd by Sussex tc¢ recover the cost of
interconnection with New Jersey; is that correct?

A, Yes.,

1 G And as part of your response, you said that the
? QCA has not fashioned a specific proposal for the
recovery of the costs of the PJN intercannection; is

| that correct?

1A, That's right.

Gc. s it falr to say that vour estimates of the rate
impact of the salé of Pike County Light & Power to
‘Sussex are based on Mr. Lénza‘s analysis of tne
interconnection costs?

A. Yes. It's based specifically on his range of one
‘ to cwo million dollars, along with an assumed cost of
3jcapital for Sussex, which I assume for purposes of
this interrogatory a seven-percent interest rate.

Q. And any impact on the customers in terms of rates

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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of the proposal to have Sussex acguire Pike County

Light & Power, that would depend on an ultimate

purchase price as well; wouldn't it?

A. That's right, which is obviously something that I

dont and can't know.

1 Q. Thank you.

ATTORNEY LANZA:

Your Eonor, we'd like te have marked for

identification what we'll refer ta as PCLal Cross

Examination Exhibit Number Two.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:
So marked. |
{PCL&P Cross Examination Exhibit Two
marked for identification.)
BY ATTORNEY LANZA:
G. Mr. Kéhal, you have before you your responsée to
Pike County Light & Power Interrogatory Set Four,
Kumber Four?

P;¢ YeS.

lo. This question just asks for information on which
you rely regarding the fair market value of Pike

County; %8 that correct?

A Yes.

0. In your response you say that you have not

prepared an analysis to determine the fair market

'Sargent's Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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|value of Pike County Light and Power: 1s that correct?

A, Yes.  That's not even the subject of my testimony..

Q. Irn your response you also say that you assume that
' the fair market value wouid be negotiated by the

company and Sussex; is that correct?

A, That's right.

ATTORNEY LANZA:

Your Honor, we would have marked for
identification what we would refer to as Pike County
Light & Power Cross Examination Exhibit Number Three.

(PCL&P Cross Examination Exhibit Three

narked for identificaticn.)

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Thank you.

BY ATTORNEY LANZA:

gop Mr. Kahal, you have before you your response to

PCL&P's Interrogatories, Set Four, Number S:ix; is that

correct?
A, Yes,
' ¢. And this reqguest estimates of the costs for

wholesale powexr Erom Aliegheny for the next ten years?

AL Right.
3{ Q. And in your response you say, Allegheny's ten-year
jwholesale rate projections are not in your possession;

is that true?

Sargent’s Court Répor:ing Service, Inc.
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1A, Yes. Actually, I don't even know 1f they have

projections of their rates over the next ten years.

But if ithey d¢, I doa't have then.

ATTORNEY LANZA:

Your Honor, we'd like tc have marked for

identification what we'll refer to as Pike County

‘Light & Power Cross Examination Exhibi:c Number Four.

{PCL&P Cross Examinatior Exhibit Four

marked for identification.)

'BY ATTORNEY LANZA:

;Q.k Mr. Kahal, yvour should have ir front of you Pike
County wight & Power Interrogatary Number Four =--- §Set
Four, excuse me, Number Seven, and your response to

| that interrogatory. We asked that you provided a copy

¢t the Williams' contract which you referred to in

your testimony. And vocu stated in this response that
{you do not have a copy of the Williams centract; is

- that correct?

. That's correct.

Q. On page 27 of your testimony, in addition to

ldiscussing the Williams’' contract, you also speak

about PPL Susguehanna ==-

A, Yes.,
16, -~~~ and agreements that the Allegheny co-op has in

‘place‘with that particular power plant; is that

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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correct?

‘A. Actually, I don't think that the description of it

is really on page 26, not 27.

0. You're right. In fact, you say the Susqguehanna

unit has 20 years remaining in its NRC operating

license; is that right?

A, Yes, approximately.

0. And you also say that the owner of that plant

tends to upgrade the plant by about ten percent; would

tthat be correct?

A, Yes.
Q. And that Allegheny will share in this upgrade, as
well as in its costs?

A. That's COrrect.

Q. Where did you get that information?

A. I don't know if I have it with me. I don't think
I do. I gat it from a press release, a PP&lL press
release announcing the plans for the unit upgrade or

plant upgrade. I think it's the bulk units.

O And does that press release also give you

information regarding who's going to share the costs

of any upyrade to the plant?
'A. The sharing of the costs? I don't recall whether
fit did or not. But as a co-owner of the plant,

Allegheny would share in both the'entitlement and the

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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costs. 1 think the press release stated that, but I

don't recall.

ZQ‘ On page 27 of your testimony you referred to the
'Raystown hydrc project? |

A, Tes.,

. And you also mentioned that allegheny has entered

intu a new l8-year agreement with NYPA?

A, Yes .

Q. Do yvou have a copy of that agreement?

A. No, I don't have a copy of the agreement. This

information was obtained Ifrom the Alleyheny annual

report.,

lQ. and does that include the description of the

Allegheny -~~~ I'm sorry, the Williams contract that
you don't have?

A. There's a description of it in the annual report.

There's also information from their financial
statements on their purchase power policies. That
annual report was also provided as a data response to

you all.

ATTORNEY LANZA:

Your Honor, we'd like to have marked for

identification what we’'re going to refer to as PCL&P

Cross Examination Exhibit Number Pive.

{PCL&P Cross Examination Exhibit Five

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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marked for identification.)

BY ATTORNEY LANZA:

Q. Mr. Kahal, you should have before you PCL&P

I Incverrogatory Set Four and your response to Number

Eight; am I correct?

A I have that.

Q. You respond to a question with regard to

trancmission tariffs?

A. Yes.

Q. and you say that the transmission interconnection

would be as described in Mr. Lanzalotta's testimony;

is that right?

AL Yes. The physical interconnection, that's

correct.

‘Q. Sb your assertions with regards to Allegheny's

transmission rates rely on Mr. Lanzalotta's testimony

regarding that information; is that correct?

A I'm soxrxy. Could you repeat that guestion?

{a. Your assertions regarding Allegheny ---, what the

Allegheny cost of transmission is, are based on Mr.

{ Lanzalotta’'s testimony with regard to interconnectiCn?

A. No. I was a little confused by the guesticn that

|you asked for transmission path. The term

transmission path is a somewhat ambiguous term because

the assumption is the operating assumption that we're

Sargent’s Court Repor:cing Service, Ihc.
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working with here is that the Pike load is going to be

integrated into PJIJM. PJIM doesn't have transmission

paths, instead, all customers in PJM take service

| through the PIM open~access transmission tariff.

‘That's the tariff.

There are really two tariffs at issue. One tariff

18 the bulk power supply agreement between Allegheny

and the distribucion electric co-op. In other words,

‘when allegheny charges Sussex for a power supply.

that's a tariff and a contract. And that includes the

cost of transmission. In addition, Allegheny must pay

for transmission. and my understanding is that

Allegheny pays for transmission through the PIM
opén*access transmission tariff, Theré really isn't a
path, per se. |

¢. So is your testimony now that the transmission
tariffs that may be applicable would not be affected

by a particular chosen transmission path under the

OCA’s proposal?
‘A. No, The transmission tariff would be the PJIM
open-access transmission tariff.' That's what would be

applicable. Tha:z's what Allegheny would take

transmission service under. In addition, Allegheny,

as I said in my response, owns a very, very small

amount of the transmission plant itself. And that

Sargent's Court Reporting Service, Tnc.
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| transmission ~-- the cost of that transmission plant

is included in the rates that Alleghkeny charges to
member co-ops, such as Sussex.
Q. All right.

ATTORNEY LANZA:

Your Honor, 1'd like to mark for
identification what we'll refer top as PCL&P Cross
Examinazion Exhibit Number ---

JUDGE JANDEBEUR :

Six.

ATTORNEY LANZA:

—-== Six.
{PCL&P Cross Examination Exhibit $Six

marked for identification.)

| BY ATTORNEY LANZA:

G. Mr. Kahal, you should have before y0u Pike County

| Light & Power's Interrogatoxry Set Four, Number Nine.
:On'pagev27 of your téstimony you discuss a surcharge.
In fact, you said during a transmission period, it may
} | be necessary for customers to incur a surcharge with
,caps on the contract; is that right?

A. Yes,

10. Set Four, Question Nine asks you to provide

information describing how the surcharge will operate.

And in response you stated that you have not

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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calculated a surcharge; is that correct?

'A. That's right.

ATTORNEY LANZA:

Your Honor, 1'¢ like to have marked for

lidentification what we'll refer £0 as PCL&P Cross

Examination Exhibit Number Seven.

{PCL&P Cross Examination Exhibit Seven

‘marked for identitication.)

'BY ATTORNEY LANZA:

C. Mr. Kahal, vou should have PCL&P Interrogatory Set

Eumber Four, Number Ten, the response to that

gquestion. And this questions deals with the capital
investments by Sussex and how that would be recovered;
is that correct?

514 Yes.

Q. In your response you cite to Mr. Lanzalotta's

jtescimony of a one to two million dollar

interconnection adjustment; would that be correct?

‘A. Yes.

Q. wWould you agree that if the capital investment

estinate were higher, the rate impact on customers

would be higher as well?

A, Yes., I think there’'s enough information in my

4|data response to indicate wkat that would be. I

estimated that it would be about one mil a kilowatt

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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‘houar for each one million dollars of the cost. That's

why these aré approximations, but that's in response
to your Question Thfee, I had come up with a range of
one to two mils per xilowatt hour, a'mil being a tenth
of a cent.

ATTORNEY LANZA:

I would like to mark for identification

‘what we'll refer to as PCL&P Cross Examination Exhibit

Number Eight.
[PCL&P Cross Examination Exhibit Eight

marked for idertification.}

 8¥ ATTORNEY LANZA:
Q. Mr. Kahal, you should have in front of you PCL&P

' Set Four, Number 11. I think you testified to some of

this in the course of your surrebuttal.

A.  Yes, I provided clarification. And that would
apply to this data response as well.

51 Q. With regard to the basis for your statement that
f'tﬁa Sussex acquisition would have Lo be approvéd by
kthe Allegheny Board, now your testimony is that the

| power supply arrangemert would have to be approved by
| the allegheny Board?

 A. As applicable to the Pike load if acquired by

| Suzsex, yes.

¢. Now, your initial response was that this

‘Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Tnc.
{814) 536-8908



o
8

3
ok,

14
15

16

17
18

19 |
20

PSR - S - SRENG S, SER S T URNE VU 6 SRR S

: 46
infermation was conveyed to vou by Mr. Kolling. Now,

is the clarification something that you alsoc obtained

from Mr. Kolling?

A. No. I got that ¢larification from Counsel. And
the information in the original response was based

upon a telativeiy brief telephone conversation between
myself and Mr. Kolling. And i think in that telephone
conversation we just didn't make these fine

distinctions.

G S50 Mr. Rolling gave vou the information that you

initially provided in your testimony. You found out

something different or you found clarification to that
in subsequent conversation with Mr. Kolling?

A. Yes. I'm not suggesting that Mr. Kolling was

'implying anything differéht to me when we had this

conversation. That was éimply the interpretation that
I took away from that convarsation, which was 1ater.
cia 1fleﬁ by Counsel. I think it's really a
aistincticn wlthout a dlfference

Q" When you say Counsel, do you mean OCA attorneys or

Sugsex Counsel?

A.  QOCA.

Q. You mentioned that you had a brief telephone

| conversation with Mr. Kolling with regard to the

approvals needed on behalf of the Allegheny Co-0Op

Sargent s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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Board.
A well, I had just a general conversation with Mr.

|Kolling that this was one issue that came up. It was

a conversation in which I was discussing the power

Qupply arrangement with him.

Q. And how many conversations have you held with Mr.

Kol.ing on this issue?

A. One.

0. In your conversation with Mr. Kolling, did you
‘discuss with kim his thoughts on a purchase price?

A. No.

Q.  Did you have any discussions with Mr. Kolling

3iabout fuature rates for Pike customers 1f Sussex
|acquiring Pike?

Y Yes,

¢. Did you have any discussion with Mr. Kolling with
regard to interconnection cosﬁs?

A, With respect to aé;ual‘cost estimates, I don't
believe I did, no.

Q. I want to go back to your surrebuttal testimony.

.| You compared the power supply cption‘that Pike had

submitted to the Commission for approval to the New
Jersey BGS; is that correct? |
A Yes .

Q. And if I remember your testimony correctly, you

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
(814) 53€6-8908
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believe that taking advantage of the New Jersey BGS

wou.d be preferable 2o the option that has been

}presented by Fike to the Commission?

:A.‘_Yes, with the principal difference being one is a
‘New York market price, the other is a PGM market_
priée;

. Does that assume that Pike would be interconnected

to PGM?

A, Yes, it does.

0. aAnd you understand any ~-- well, the
implementation of that option would reguire PUC
approval in Pennsylvania and BPU approval in New

Jersey?

'A. That's correct, That's what I assumed in my

testimony when I discussed that option.
lo. But vou're not an attorney, are you?
A No, I'm not.

ATTORNEY LANZA:

That's all we have, Your Honor.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Any Redirect?

ATTORNEY POPOWSKY:

Does anybody else have any Cross?

ATTORNEY MELIA:

I have no Cross.

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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ATTORNEY BEATTY:

‘Ng Cross.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

CAnything else?

ATTORNEY BEATCY:

Your Honor, if we could have a minute

with Mr. Kahal to see if we have any Redirect? Would

‘that be okay?

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

That's absolutely fines. We'll take three
minutes. And again, conference room around the
corner.

SHORT BREAK TAKEN

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Let's go ahead and go back on the record.

Mr. Beatty?

ATTORNEY BEATTY :

Your Honor, we have no further guestions

:fcr Mr. Xahal.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Very good. Thank you, sir. You can step

down .

1A, Thank you, Your Honor.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Mr,. Beatty, do you want to try and put -

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
(814) 5368908
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' these in? I'm sorry, Mr. Lanza, Excuse me.

ATTORNEY LANZA;:

Yes, Your Honor. At this time, we would
move the admission of PCL&P Cross Examination Exhibits
1 through 8.

. JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Objections?

ATTORNEY BEATTY:

We have no objection, Your Honor.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

50 admitted. Thank you.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Mr. Beatty?

ATTORNEY BEATTY :

Your Honor, at this time we wculd‘call

OCA witness Peter Lanzalotta,

PETER LANZALOTTA, HAVING FIRST BEEN DULY SWORN,

TESTIFIED AS FOLLOWS:

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Mr . Beatly?
ATTORNEY BEATTY:
Your Honor, I would like to have marked

for identification OCA Statement Number Two ---.

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Mr. Beatty, I'm going to ask you to back
up and on the front of each one of these if you would,
' have your witrness state their name, simply so that we
can get it in front of Mr. Dalton and also so that Mr.
O*Hearn has 1t. Thanks.

DIRECT EXAMINATION

'BY ATTORNEY BEATTY:

c. Mr. Larzalotta, please state your name and
business address for the record, and please spell your
nane.

A. peter Lanzalotta, L-A-N-Z-A-L-0-7-T-A, 67 Royal
POint‘ﬁrive, Hilton Head Island, South Carolina,
129926, |

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Thank vyou,

ATTORNEY BEATTY:

Your Honor, I would lixe to have marked
tor identification OCA Statement Number Two.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

It is pre-marked.

'BY ATTORNEY BEATTY:

Q. Mr. Lanzalotta, do you have before you a copy of
your prepared pre-filed Direct testimony in this case,

L consisting of 17 pages of gquestions and answers and

-~ Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
{814) 53€-8908
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two exhibits?

| A. Yes, I do.

Q. Was this testimeny and were these schedules and

exhibits prepared by yocu or under your direct

supervision?
A, Yes.

19 Do you have any additions, corrections or

mnodificatrions to make to your testimony or schedules

tand exhibits at this time?

‘A, I‘have some corrections. Pages six of my
testimony, in three different places, lines 22, 25 and
30, I made reference to a Sussex 34.5 kV circuit.

Those references should be to JCPR&L,

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

So at line 22, we're changing Sussex to
JOPEL?
A, Yes, Your Honor.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

And ===,

AL Line 25.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

And line 29%. ‘Twenty-nine {(29) and 307

|, Thirty (30} on mine.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Thank you.

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service,yznc.
(814) 536-8908
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BY ATTORNEY BEATTY:

4d . Mr. Lanzalotta, do these changes have any effect
on the remainder of your tesgtimony?
A. No, they do not.

1G. Subject to these correctisns; are the testimony

and schedule of exhibits true and correct to the best

of your knowledge, information and belief?

A.  Yes.

1@. Subject to these corrections, if you were asked
these same guestions today under oath, would your
answers be the same? |

A Yes.

ATTORNEY BEATTY:

Your Honor, we ask that Mr. Lanzalotta's

testimony, including the attached exhibits, marked tor
jidentification as CCA Statement Number Two be admitted

into evidence, sabject to timely motions by opposing

 Counsel.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

We'll hold it for Cross Examination. Go
| ahead.

ATTORNEY BEATTY:

Your Honor, all parties and Your,Honor

4 fwere previously served with copies of Mr. Lanzalotta‘'s

jtestimony, and I provided two copies to the court

Sargent’s Court Reporcing Service, Inc.
(814) 536-8908




R

oy WU s e

54

reporter. And at this time we'd like =0 proceed with

|Mr. Lanzalotta's oral surrebuttal testimony.

JUDGE JANDBEUR:

BY ATTORNEY BEATTY:

Q. Mr. Lanzalctta, if I could direct your attenticn

to the rebuttal testimony of Pike witness Angelo M.

gl Regan, marked as PCL&P Statement Number Two.

11
12
13

14

15
16

18
19
20

21}

22

23

24

251

A, Ckay.

ZQ. On page two, line 1% of Mr. Regan's testimony, he
expresses concern with the proposal to connect Pike te '

other electrical systems, utilizing a 34.5 kV line.

Do you agree with Mr. Regan's assessment?

'A. In my opinion, a 34.5 %XV line has more than

sufticient capacity to carry the current Pike load and

' the expected Pike load in the foreseeable future.

17

Q. And continuing on page two, Mr. Regan also

testified that a 34.5% kV interconnection would not

meet the load deliverability requirements of PJIM.

That's line 1772

ATTORNEY GALLACHER:

I'm sorry, what page?
ATTORNEY BEATTY:
Also on page two.

ATTORNEY CALLAGHER:

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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Line 177

ATTORNEY BEATTY :

Line 17.
BY ATTORNEY BEATTY:

0. Do you agree with this conclusion?

1A, No, I do not. In my opinion, the interconnection

that we proposed in combination with the other
existing interconnecticns that Pike has should be
sufficient to meet the PIM deliverability reguirement,

in my opinion.

Ho Now, on pages three through nine of Mr. Regan's

testimony, he outlines problems with the possible

interconnection of Pike with the PPL Twin Lakes

'gsubstation and the MetEd Walker substation. Do vyou

have any comments on those criticisms?

P My primary comment is to note'that those are not

the incerconnectian options that we're proposing here.

| Those are Gptiéns that I locked at. I think in many

respects 1 come to some of the same conclusions

 regarding those potential alternatives that Mr. Regan
I came ’tO. :

1 Q. Turning to page ten of Mr. Regan's testimony,

rines four through six, Mr. Regan states that Sussex

{will need to extend service 17 to 21 miles to connect

;{with Pike. Do you have any comment on this

Sargent's Court Reporting Service, Inc.
(814) 536-8908
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ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

Page ten?

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:
s that correct, Mr. Beatty?

ATTORNEY BEATTY:

Yes,

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

Could you repeat the questcion?

| BY ATTORNEY BEATTY:

TG, On page ten, lines four through six, Mr. Regan

states that Sussex would need to extend service 17 to
21 miles to connect with ---.

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

Your Honor, I object. That's not what

the statemen: says. I have no objection if he would

3{read that =---.

ATTORNEY BEATTY :

I'm sorry.

56

assessment?
A, Yes.

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

Your Honor, --- excuse me. We're looking
at lines four through six?

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

'On page ten, I believe.

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
(814) 536-8908
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ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

You're characterizing it differently.
You can read the line from four to six.

ATTORNEY BEATTY:

Sure.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Sustained. Gou ahead. Do you want Lo

| rephrase that, Mr. Beatty?

ATTORNEY BEATTY:

Yes, Your Honor.

BY ATTORNEY BEATTY:

12

Q. Starting on line three, on page ten, Mr . Regan
states, quote, the distance from these sources to
PCL&P along roadways is closer to 21 miles. Assuming
that all of the ROW park land environmental and
franchise approvals could be obtained and some
combination of ROW and roadways utilized for the

route, this line extension could be lessened to 17

miles. Do you have any comment on this assessment?

A. Yes. Utilizing the JCP&L 34.5 kV line, the

-

extension from Pike's service territory to this line

' is between one and two miles.

Q. On page ten, line 22, and onto page 11, Mr. Regan

testified that your cost assumption for 34.5 kV

Delaware River crossing ===,

Sargent‘s Court Repor:ting Service, Inc.
(814) 536-8908




10
i1

12

13
14

15|

E

17

18

20
21
22

Z23Inecessary to incur these source costs under your

24

25

oL B b A R FERR N

19|

58
ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

Excuse me. I'm sorry. Just give me a

| second. What page are we on now?

ATTORNEY BEATTY:

Sorry, page ter, line 22.

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

Qkay.

BY ATTORNEY BEATTY:
| Q. Mr. Regan testified that yvour cost assumption for
34,5 kV Delaware River crossing is, guote, maost

Iprobably understated, end guote. Please comment on

this poftian of Mr. Regan's testimony.

A The number that I used for the cost of the
Delaware River crossing came from the company's |
response to a reguest --- data request that asked whét
would it cost to build this aerial cfoséing today.

-

and the number that I was given was the number that I

used.

G. If you could turn 2o page 12. Page 12, lines 12

through 19, Mr. Regan tescified that the source costs

 £62'3 new 34.5 kv line would be approximately $1.6

million. Do you agree with Mr. Regan that it would be

proposal?

A, 'NO, I don't. Based on what I know when I wrote my

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
‘ {8l4) 536~89(8
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litestimony and what I know today, I believe that there
21is sufficient capacity in the existing JCP&L 34.5 kv
3|line to carry the Pike load. If that understanding is
4i{correct, then these source costs should not e
S required‘ |
61Q. Mr. Regan also testified that Pike believes that
7]there is a phase shift issue ---. | |
8] ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

9 Where are you referring to°

10 'ATTORNEY BEATTY :

11 Lines 19 and 2C of that same page, page
12]12.

13| BY ATTORNEY BEATTY:

141 0. Mr. Regan also testified that Pike;believés that
15| there's as phase shift issue between Sussex and Pike.
151Is this a concern? |

17 A, No, i% is not. And the reason for that is that
18| the need for a phase shift transformer, such as the
19 jone described in Mr. Regan's rebuttal testimony, would
ZG‘iny be needed if we were gcing to'qperate this ‘

21} configuration while it was connected --- while Pilke
22 |was connected both to PJM and to the New York IS0 at
23‘che same time. Then you woﬁld reed some control over
24| that time to prevent it from being ccmpletely free'
25| flowing. However, that's not the way that we propose

Sargent’'s Court Reporting Serv;ce, Inc.
(814) 536 8908 ‘
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|that this arrangement work. While Pike is connected

jto PJIM, the ties to New York would be open. and that

essentially means that no power would be flowing

across thoss New York ties as long as they were open.

And the phase shift would not affect Pike's service
‘territory under those conditions.

Rep Referring to page 14 of Mr. Regan's testimony, on
gline 16, line 16 through page 15, line two,‘Mr. Regan

|testified that Pike is concerned that energy could

flow from Orarnge & Rockland to Pike into Sussex if
Pike remained interconnected with free-flowing ties to
Sussex. And my understanding Is that would not be an

issue with your proposal; is that correct?

A, That is correct. As I just explained in my last

answer, 1 don't believe that it's preferable to

operate this arrangement with the Pike system being

connected both to New York and to POM at the same

 Lime .
'C. Now, on page 15, lines 21 and 22, Mr. Regan

|testified that you engaged in the selective use of the

liability data when reviewing Pike reliability. Do

you agree with this assercion?

A. Yes and no. And let me explain this. I did

select reliabilitcy data such trhat when we looked at

' the number of years of performance prior to and

Sargent's Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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leading up to the con-Bd merger with Orange &

'Rockland, we wanted to have the same number of years

|of performance data prior to the merger and after the

merger in order <o make the comparison ot that

reliability. Because of the volatility that's

inherent in Pike's reliability indices, that's a

subject that Mr. Regan gees into in his rebuttal, if

you were to use more years prior to the merger, as I

'believe he suggests T should have done, then you're

|taking more of the volatility out of those preAmergér

nunbers. And though yveou would ke comparing a set of
six vyears of data after the merger and many more years

of data prior to the merger, and without egual footing

with regard tce volatility, the numbers I selectéd, 5ix
ﬁyears of data I think prior to the merger and six

vears of data after the merger, should put the

volatility in both of those sets of data onto equal

footing.

Q. And turning to page 20 of Mr. Regan's testimony,

Mr. Regan testified that Pike's reliability is

|improving. Cculd you comment on this agssertion?

A Yeg, L agree with him. The last two gquarterly

reports indicate substantial reliability improvements.

ATTORNEY BEATTY:

Your Honor, that's all the oral

61 |
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surrebuttal we have. I would again ask that Mr.

Lanzalotta's testimony, including the attached

exnibits, marked for identification as OCA Statement

Number Two pe admitted inte evidence, subject to any

timely motions by opposing Counsel.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Again, we're geing to hold it until we're

finished. Who's up?

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

T am, Your Honor.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Mr. Gallaghér?,

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

Can we take some time?

JUDGE JANDEBEUE

Yes. Five? Ten? What are we looking

ac?

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:
Ten minutes, please.

ATTORNEY MELTA:

Your Honor, before we go off the record,

I have a few guestlons of Mr. Lanzalotta. And I don't

know if Mr. Gallagher would want me to ge first or how

you prefer.

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

Sargent’'s Court Reporting Service, Tnc.
(814) 536-8908
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I would prefer to go firsc.

ATTORNEY MELIA:

Then that's fine by me.
JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Okay. Let's take a ten-minute bréak.

| SHORT BREAK TAKEN

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

CROSS EXAMINATION

 BY ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

?Q* Good morning, Mr. Lanza.otta. My name7is John

Gallagher. I represent Pike.

A. Good morning, Mr. Gallagher.

. I have some questions for you this morning.

¢. I'm going to ask you some questions that were

referenced in your Cross Examination Exhibit in
response tou Pike's Interrogatories.

225

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:
Ycur Honor, I'd like to have marked as

Pike County Light & Power Cross Examination Exhibit

Number Nine ~---.

63

Let's go back on the record. Mr.
Gallagher?
| ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:
Just bear with me, @lease. I have to get
one document. |

Sargent’'s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Thank you.

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

-~- in response to an interrogatory by

Mr. Lanzalotta to Pike County Light & Power

Interrogatory Set Number Two, Number Five.

(PCL&P Cross Examination Exhiblit Nine

marked for identification.)

BY ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

0. Mr. Lanzalotta, you have befaré you what has been

rarked as Pike County Cross Examination Exhibit Number

‘Nine. D0 you see that?

A Yes.

0. Have you prepared any p-.ans or schematics orx

drawings of the proposed systém? I'm referring to

your proposal on page six, line 29.
A No, I have not,.

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

Your Honor, I would like to have marked

'f¢r the record Pike County Light and Power Cross
'Examinaticn Exhibit Number Ten, which is a response by
IMr. Lanzalotta to Interrogatory Numhei Seven to Pike
23 ‘
24|

County Interrogatory Set Number Two.
(PCL&P Cross Examinatior Exhibit Ten

marked for identification.)

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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'BY ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

’Q.‘ Mr . Lanzalotta, you have before you what has been
|marked as pike County Light & Power Cross Examination
,Exhibit Numper Ten. Do you see that? |

AL Yeg; *

1. In that interrogatory, you were asked to provide

7Tiall lﬁaﬁ flow studies that you prepared relating to
8lthe proposal that I referred to on page sixﬂ Do you
9|see thas? |

101Aa. Yes, I do.

1110. Am I correct that this response is correct, that

'ynu khave performed no load studies, flow sﬁudies?

13{A. That is correct.

141Q. Thank you,

15 ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

IGV Your Honor, I'd like to have marked as
17| Pike County Light & Power Company Exhibit Number 11.
18 It's an interxogatory response by Hr. Lanzalotta to
19 Interrogatory;QuéstionNumbef Eight, Set Two. |

20| {PCL&P Cross Examination Exhibit 11

21 narked for identification.)

22| BY ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

'23 9. Mr. Lanzalotta, vyou have bef0re you.what}has been
24:marked as Pike County Light & Power Cross Examination
ES,Numberkli. Do you have that?

Sargent'’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
{814) 536 83408
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A Yes .

Q. That ques:ion asks whether or not you prepared a
map of the route of proposed interconnection. Do you
agree with that responsé,_thaﬁ you have not prepared a
map with regards to that intercbnnection?

A. That's corxrect.

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

Your Honor, I'd like to have marked for

the record Pike County Light & Power Cross Examination

| Exhibit Number 12.

(PCL&P Cross Examination Exhibit 12

marked for identification.).

| BY ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

0. Mr. Lanzalotta, you have before you what has been

marked as Pike County Light & Power Cross Examination

| Exhibit Number 12. Do you see that?

Q; Have you prepared or developed a list of wvarious

environmental zoning and regulatory permits and

approvals that would require constructing the

{ interconnection as proposed on page six?

A, No.
Q. Have you prepared any environmental studies or
analysis relating to that interconnection?

A No.

Sargent'’'s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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10Q. I'll refer you to page eight, line 13.  You see

that?
Aﬂ Yes~

 ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

Your Honor, I'd like to have marked for

the record Pike County Light & Power Company Cross

| Examination Exhibil Number ---

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Thirteen {(13).

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

w13,
(PCL&P Cross Examination Exhibit 13
narked for idertification.} ‘

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

- Your Honor, this Cross Examination

exhibit is Mr. Lanzalotta's réesponse ta‘QUGSticn

Number 12 of Pike County's Interrogatories Set TWo .

BY;ATTQRNEY GALLAGHER:

1¢. Mr. Lanzalotta, you have before you what has been

marked as Pike County Light & Pcwer Cross Examination

' Exhibit Number 13. Do ybu see that?

t & Yes.
3¢, Aand there we've asked you to identify the exiSting
|| substation facilities on the Sussex system that the

Sussex interconnection will make use of. aAnd we asked

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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liyou to describé the upgrades that will be required to
2 be maae and their associated cost as a resulit of the
3} 8ussex interconnection. And you replied that you
4lwould rely on Mr. Kolling's representation that,Susséx
5|had the capability to pick up Pike's load: is that
6'corréct? | |
7’A. That is correct.

8/0. And you have not separately investigated the

g SuSsek system; correct? |

10| A. That is correct.

11}¢. You have not visited the Sussex system. You have
ilz%nat examined the physical operations of Sussex; have
13”y9u rot? Isn't that correct?

14 1A, Yes .

iv ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

16 Your Honor, in light of Mr. Lanzalotta's
17 }statement --- and I'll ask him the guestion.

18 |BY ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

19:Q. It's now your understanding, Mr. Lanzaiotta, based
20 jupon your resporise to an interrcgatory that we

21 | propounded to you, that the owner of the line that is
22 jgoiny ﬁo be used in this proposal is the Jersey

23 1Central Power & Light Company;,correCt?

2015, ves. | |

251 ¢ Mr . Lanzalotta; have you e#amined the Jersey

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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|Central Line?

A I've gseen it.

go Have you been to the entire length of the line

that is going to be used in this proposal?

'A. The entire length of the Jersey Central line, no.

1 C. Do you know if the JCCP&L line is radial feed or

radial feeder?

'A. I believe that it is.

@¢. And on what basis do you make that comment?

AL On the basis of the map that was attached, I

believe, to orne of Mr. Kolling's data responses to the
company.

Q. Do you have that map in front of you?

1A, Yes.

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

Your Honor, we are going to have this map

introduced as a Cross Examination exhibit tomorrow

with Mr. Kolling. I think it would be appropriate

row, given Mr. Lanzalotta's discussicn about this map

on which he's relied upon, that we discuss it now.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

I think you should simply mark it and

tbring it in now then.

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

All right.

Sargent's Court Reporting Service, Inc.
(814) 536-8308
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JUDSE JANDEBEUR:

We'll just mark it Pike County Light &
Puwer 14.
A. Sorry., but this wasn't the map to which I was

referring.

| BY ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

10, That's the map we have.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Would you like this back?
A No. I have OCA response to Pike County Light and
Péwar,~Set 1-19, and i1t's showing this map.

ATTORNEY GALLACHER:

Your Honor, we can clear these naps up?
Just give ugs a minute.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

sSure.

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

Thanks.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR: |

cake what you need. We'll just go off
the record. Let me know when’you need to go back on.
SHORT BREAK TAKEN

e ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

Your Honor, what we'll do is we will mark

‘his --- although we don't have copies of the one that

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
: (814) 536-89¢C8 ‘
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My . Lanzalotta is referring to.

ATTORNEY LANZA:

Can we have a minute to make copies?

JUDGE LANZALOTTA:

well, why don’t you just go ahead and
rark it and give me one, and at lunch I will make

lcopies for you.

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:
Okay. v

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

5¢ we're going to mark this PCL&P 147

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

Correct.
(PCL&P Cross Examination Exhibit 14

marked for identification.)

ATTORNEY LANZA:

I éan go next door and run some ¢opies
qul&kly, if you would prefer‘that?

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

No. That's fine. 1I'1l1 do it at lunch.
You need one to‘work off with the witness; yes?

ATTORNEY LANZA:

He has one.

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

Yes, I have one.

71

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
(814) 53€6-8908




11
12
13

14

16

17
18
19
20

22
23
24
25

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Now, are you all‘coﬁfortable working
without a copy? 1I1f not, we'll take a second and 1I°'1l1
copy it. Everybody's comfortable?

ATTORNEY POPOWSKY:

Was the attachment to OCA Set --- I'm
sorry, PCL&P Set One, Numbeyr 197

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

Yes.

ATTORNEY PCPOWSKY:

We have that.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:
Then we're all set.

ATTORNEY POPOWSKY:

I have an extra.
A.  Thank you.
JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

I'm ready if you are.
BY ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

Q. Now, referring to that map, our Cross Examination

| Exhibit Number 14, you state that you understood that

the JCPL lines radial feed from that map; correct?
A Yes.
. Can you trell me where you received that map. who

gave you that map?

72
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:A, I believe I saw it when these responses were
produced to the company. | |

Q. Now, .ooking at that map, Mr. Lanzalotta, can you
tel: me what the distance is from Branchville to the
tap point of your proposed interconnection to the Pike
Cﬁuﬂty systenm? ‘ |
A, The tap point into the Branchville/Holiday Lakes
line?

Q. No, that's nét the guestion.

A I'm SOrry.

‘_Q;YMWhat is the distance from Branchville, the
\Branéhville sub, ---

A.  Uh-huh (yes).

‘Q, -~~~ to the tap point of the PCL&P system, if you
| know? |

A. I'm}not sure I understand what‘you‘fe feferring-ta
when yaﬁ'say the tap point. |

Q. The tap point will be twc Qointsl The first tap
'point will be from the Sussex system to the JCP&L
line. The'second tap point will be from the |
interconnection from Sussex to JCP&L's Zine in Pike
County. So what I'm dsking‘ybu is, what is thek
disvance between thefBraﬁchville sub and the tap point
1| by Sussex into the JCP&L line?

A. Well, you're confusing me. The distance from

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
{814) 536-8908
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Branchville to the Sussex system appears to be'pretty
‘close to zero. It appears that the SusSex system
abuls come up very ¢lose to the Branchville

substation.

0. Are you familiar with the proposal --- strike
that.

You didn’t prepare any schematics for the

interconnection proposed by Sussex in this matter, are
|you, or did vou?

P&, No, I have not.

Q. Are you aware of the location of the planned tap
into the JCP&L line by Sussex --- by the Sussex

system?

'A. I visited that point with Mr. Kolling, We did not

locate it on a map. It's essentially right across the

Delaware River from Milford.

Q. wooking at that map then, is it your poéition that
3| you cannot determine'howffar-the Branchville sub for
 JCP&Lvis to that proposed tap point? |

1A, It's my understanding it's six or seven miles, in
|ry discussions with Mr. Kolling. |

21 G, ’Thap’s based upon Mr. Kolling's observations and

not yours; correct?

A,  Yes.

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Znc.
(814) 536-8908
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Ycur Honor, I'd like to have marked as

Pike County Light & Power Company Cross Examination

Exhibit Number 15, which is a map to scale, indicating

various points.
:PCL&P Cross Examination Exhibit 1%

marked for i1dentification.)

| BY ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

1©. You have before you what is marked as Pike County

Light & Power Company Cross Examination Exhibit Number

'15. Do you see that?

f A. Yes, sir.

lo. Do you see that map is drawn to scale?
la. That's what it ---. | |
1Q. There's a scale at the bocttom.

A That*s what 1t says., ves.

G. Now, do you see at the bottom of that map what is

indicated as the Branchville sub for JCP&L?

A Yes.

Q. Now, do you see the Holiday Lakes sub for JCP&L?

Yes .

Ro N Now, do you understand that the tap by Sussex will |
' be in that location?
31 A. That's my understanding.

¢. Now, looking at this map again, could you estimate

as to how far the Branchville sub is to the proposed

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service,~$nc.
(814) S53€-8908
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tap by Sussex?

A. It looks like it's something over eight miles.

Q. Would you agree, subject to check, that it's ten

miles?

A.  Yes.

Q. Now, are you aware that the line in guestion by

the JCP&L line is predominantly constructed alongside

{the roadway on Route 206 for its entire length from

Branchville?

A. The part that I saw was constructed alongside the

‘road. And as I said earlier, I did not examine the

entire length of the line.

Q. Are you aware of the present loading capacity of

the Branchville line to the Holiday Lakes’ 34.5 kV
' line?

'A. No, I am not.

Q. Have you done any studies or anaiysis to determine

whether any additional protection avtomation and SCATA

{phonetic) reguirements will be necessary for the

propesed Sussex interconnection?

A, I have not.

Q. Now, you mentioned in your Direct and also in your

surrebuctal testimony a connection with the 0&R
system, which is at Port Jervis; correct?

A, Part of it is, ves,.

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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(. Assuming that the 0O&R =-- O&R does not maintain

the interconnection with Sussex, do you know the

radial distance from Branchville from Matamoras?

AL I haven't run that number, nc.

0. Are you familiar with the O&R source at Port
Jervis? |

A. Yes.

Q. Can you tell me how vou're familiar with it? Have

you inspected that source?

A, I've gocne there and looked at it, yes.

‘Q. When was that?

The same day I met with Robert XKolling.

. No.

a.
EQ. Did»you visit that source with any Q&R pefsomne1?
A
Q.

I believe it was --- you mentioned on your

surrebuttal that it's the plan to not have O&R

interconnect with the new proposal, the

interconnection; correcc?

A, That's not the way I would describe ‘t. The plan

is that the current O&R interconnections with Pike be

 maintained, but that when Pike is connected to JCP&L,

those interconnections be left in an open position so

‘that Pike would not be interconnected to both New York

and PJM at the same btime. However, these

interconnecticns would be avaiiable should we lose the

Sargent’'s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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g‘feeﬁ from PIM for whatever reason such that Pike could

Ibe, if reguired, returned to service using these

connections to New York.

Q. It the O&R source is usedkas a back-up always to
'be available if the JCP&L line or the source is down,
wou.dn't you agrec that the source at 0&R would be
ffeeﬁing Pike customers but also a significant amount
of the JCP&L line? | |

 Al You're telling me 1if we had all of our

interconnections closed and Pike was simultaneously

interconnecgted to both New York and PIM?

ZQ, No. I'm saving, as you just state&; if the JCB&L

' line was down and that O&R is providing power to the

Pike, now Sussex, customers, wouldn't they also be

providing power to that line, that JCPi&L line?

A. Well, if --- no, not the way I envision the system

working. If we interconnect with New York, we would

|have to make sure the connection with JCP&L was open.

That is if we were picking up the encire Pike system
through the existing connectiong to New York, There's

& p05$ibility, of course, that we might be supplying

!{part of the Pike system through the JCP&L and part of

23 |

it zhrough New York. But again, we wouldn'c want an

electrical interconnection between those two pieces.

10, If that's true, wouldn't you agree that ~-- strike

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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If that's true, have you prepared any reports

| showing the type of upgrades that were reqguired of the

Port Jervis facility to accomplish that?

A. I'm not sure that there would be any upgrades
reguired.

Q. Have ycu prepared anry reports?

A. 'Nc; I have not.

Q. Have you done any analysis of that?

A, No.

goM are you familisar with the proposed upgrade that

&R is planning at the Port Jervis facility with

regards to a 69 xV sub?

I A. Yes. 1 first became aware of tnat when Mrz. Regan
»|filed his rebuttal testimony.

LG, Now, with regards <o keeping that interconnection
open with the O&R system, have you prépared any

reports or analysis identifying the costs of any of

those upgrades to the facilities?

A, The cost of the 69 kV upgrades?
Q. I'm sorry. Any cost of any upgrades that would be

Ineeded to maintaliln that interconnection with O&R if

the Sussex JCP&L interconnection or connection is
lost?

A, Apart from the existing facilities, which I

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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believe includes a switching device on the feeders

coming from New York into Pike pretty much at the

state line, I didn't assume that there would be any
other upgrades.

G. But you haven't done any analyéis to determine
whether or not that is, in fact, true?

A. That's correct.

¢. Because you only physically looked at the Port

Jervis facility; correct?

A. That's correct,.

Q. With regards to the proposal by Sussex to tap into
2| that JCpP&L line, do you envision that as a direct tap

or something more extensive?

A. When vou say direct tap, I guess we were assuming
it would ke a direct tap, but we weren't envisioning

the construction of any substation or anything at this

point.

Q. And did you receive that information from Mr.

Kolling?

A e discusSed this apprcach, ves.
Q. And what did Mr. Xolling tell you with regards to

‘how he planned on Lapping into the JCP&L line?

A, We didn't go into a lot of detail as to the exact
rethod that he planned to use.

2y

o, S0 again, you‘ve don¢ no analysis to determine

Sargent's Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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‘whether or not that kind of tap would entail any new

facilities, extra facilities or costs?

A. It's my belief that it would include some kind of

‘switCHing device. But other than that --- a metering

device also. Other than that, I don't know that it

will include anything else.

1 Q. Because once agaln, you relied upon Mr. Kolling to

give you an outline of what he or Sussex proposed to

do here; correct?

}a. That's correct,

G. Are you aware of the preSent load and capacity of

|the Branchville to Holiday Lakes' 34.5% kV line to the

JCP&L line?
A, Not specifically. However, I discussed with Mr.
5| Kolling the typical capacity of 34.5 kv feeder and his

understanding as to the remaining available capacity
|on that feeder.
10. $o once again, you're relying on Mr. Kolling to

give you his estimate as Zo what the capacity ot that

J1line is; correct?
A. That is correct.
Q. Have you done any analysis --- independent

Jlanalysis, other than Mr. Kolling's conversations with
:You, as to whether or not this proposal to utilize the

) | JCP&L line will meet PJIM deliverability and the JCP&L

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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system requirements?

A. I've looked at the PJM manual regarding

Lransmission reguests.

0. But since you don't know what the capacity is

because you're depending on Mr. Kolling, you don't

know, do you?

A. T don't know if PJM will find that there is encugh

available capacity to make this work or not.

0. You've done no independent analysis or studies to

determine whether the addition of the proposed Pike
County Light & Power lLoad, as proposed by Sussex,

would require an upgrade of the Branchville to Holiday

' Lakes’® 34.5 kv line, have ybu?

understanding as tc the availlable capacity on that

circulit, no.

0. Forgive me, Mr. Lanzalotta, if I've asked this

guestion. I'm sure your Counsel will tell me if I

'have, but if you assume that the O&R connection at

Port Jervis is not maintained, do you know what the

{ radial distance from Branchville to Matamoras is?
A. I believe they've already asked it. I said I

ldidn't know specifically.

0. Thank you. Have you --- are you aware of any

discussions that Sussex --- strike that.

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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Have you had any discussions or met with CCP&L

 representatives regarding the proposal?

A. No.

Q. Have you met with any of the O&R representatives

{with regards to maintaining an interconnection at the

Port Jervis substation?

AL 1 have nos.

¢. Now, assume that --- if you assume that

maintaining tkat 0&R 34.5 kV interconnection is

}required and also that that interconnection will have
.-~ strike that. |

2]
13

Assuming that Sussex acguires the PCL&P system by

the proposal of Mr. Kolling and assume that the

‘mainuaining of the O&R 34.5 kV interconnection is

'required and that this will have iittle or no benefit

to O&R customers, what is your position with regards
to what could O&R expect of the Sussex and Pike

customers to fund any 34.5 kV upgrades that are

presently proposed for the Port Jervis substation?
A. Could I have that gquesticn again?

Q. Yes. I'm sorry. I'll rephrase the gquestion.

Assuming that the Sussex proposal is =--- goes forward,

]

A, Uh~huh  {(yves).

0. ~=« andé assume that maintaining of the current O&R |

Sargent‘s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
{8143 536-8908




LV

P I T S R
OO W e s e s e N kO

22|

84
34,5 kV interconnection is required, would ~--- is it

your position that O&R would expect the Sussex and

P&ke customers ~--- strike that.

Is ig your posztlon that the Sussex and Pike

custeomers would fund any upgrades to that 34.5 kv
'substation?
| & I believe in that event that that would be a

matter for FERC to decide. And whatever FERC decides

on that, Sussex would have to comply.

Q. So it's possible that Sussex and Pike customers

could be expected to fund all of the upgrades of that

34.5% kV substation of C&R?

A, whatever pcrtion FERC decides is reasonable.

Q. To maintain that interconnection?

‘A.  Yes, sir.

G. Now, in your surrebuttal testimony, Mr .

7] Lanzalotta, you ——— I believe Lt's your testimony that
Lthe MetEd and PP&L interconnections are not the option

‘that you are backing in tnis tase; correct?

&. That i1s correct.

JQ‘ 111 refer you to page seven, lines 22 following

pver Lo pdage eignt, lines one and two.

A, Dkay.

410. You talk about the reliability of a configuration

51ef the proposal which would utilize the JCP&L line.

Sargent s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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1 Do you see that?
A. Yes.

Q. Isn't it your position that that interconnection

should be maintained for the reliabilicy of the syscem

proposed by Mr. Kolling?

A The interconnection to O&R, yes, but not

necessarily operated in what we call a closed

position, through which power can flow all the time.

Q. Well, let's assume that O&R does not agree to that
interconnection. | k
iA‘ Okay.

C. That would decrease the reliability of the

proposal for a Sussex interconnection; isn't that

correct?
A, If there were no connecztions between Pike and C&R,

ves, that would reduce the reliability.

Q. Now, you would agree that the reliability of a

single line starting at the source at Branchville,
terminating at Matamoras, with one line and no
interconnection, the reliability would be severely

impaired without an interconnection; isn't that

correct?
t&. Reliabiliszy would be less than desirable; in my
24

opinion.

¢ wouldn 't you agree that it will be severely

Sargent’s Court Repor:ing Service, Inc.
{814) 536-890C8




N

L e I S IR S S
P NS RV PO - T

17

18

19|

20

21

22

24
25

86

impaired, given the distances from Branchville to

 Matamoras?

A. I'm not sure we work in a matter of degrees when
we're looking at a radial feed. Racial feed is either

available or it's not. And we try to plan for che

circumstances in which it's not available.
0. And once again, Mr. Lanzalotta, you've done no

studies to determine, number one, the capacity of that

JCP&L line. You've done no analysis whatsoever to
know wﬁether the added capacity from the Pike
customers will impair the reliability of that line,
have you?

A, I have not done the study. However, I would ncte

that if PJM were to determine that upgrades on that

line are needed to reliably carry the Pike load, then

thé cost of those would also be part of this
comparison.

Q. Aand those costs would be assumed by whom?

A. I'm not sure if they-wcgld be assumed by Sussex,

by Allegheny or by Pike.

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:
Your Honor, i1f£ I may have one second.

BY ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

Q. Mr. Lanzalotta, referring to page 15, line 14 of

your testimony, ==-.

Largent's Court Reporting Servicé, Inc.
(8.4) 536-85C8
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ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

Yaur Honor, I'd like to have marked for

the record Cross Bxamination Bxhibit Number 16, I

helieve, Pike County Light & Power Cross Examination

Nunber 16.
(PCL&P Cross Examination Exhibit 16

marked for identification.)

| BY ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

C. Mr. Lanzalotta, you have what's in front of you

what has been marked ag Pike County Light & Power

Cross Examination Exhibit Number 16. Do you have

| that?

A ies.

;Q.k There we ask you to provide all of Sussex's
ocutages referred to on Mr. Regan's statement, on

Number Two, by cause in a form equivalent to vyour

Table Three. Can you tell us what your response was?

A Sorry? There‘s.a reference to Table Three?

 Q, Table Three, on page 13 of OCA Statement Number
) | Two . | |
1a. I'm sorry. I thought I was looking at page 15.
 Q. Yes. There I'm referring to your analysis and
Jlevaluation 0f Sussex's reliabiiity pertormance. I'm
i{sorry. And here we ask vou whether or nct you've

investigated Sussex's planning, maintenance and

?argenr s Court Reporiing Service, Inc.
{814) 536-8908




W

: o
11|
12
13|

14
15
16

17 |
18

19
20

21
22|

23

24|

25

(L= X L™ S

88

' operating philosuphies.

A, I have not.
Q. I'm sorry. I was referring to the wrong
1ﬁterrogatory

ATTORNEY GALLACHEF'-

Your Honor, we'd like to have marked as
Pike County Light & Power Cross Examination Exhibit
Number 17, Mr. Lanzalotta's response to that guestion.
And it's Set Number Two.

{PCL&P Cross Examination Exhibit 17

marked for identification.)

'BY ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

Q. You have before you what has been marked as Cross

Examination Number --- Pike County Cross Examlnatlon,

ﬂumber»ls e

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Seventeen (173}.

BY ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

0. «== 17. I'm s0rry.

AI Yesi
0. Did your response to that guestion state that you

looked at all of the outage data made available by

' Sussex to the company?

A, That's what it says.

¢. Thank you. Is it your understanding tha:z if

Sargent's Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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Sussex acquired Pike, that Sussex would be exempt from
PUL regulations? ‘
A, I believe Lhey are, yes.

. Jo you know if Sussex is currently subject to

'either New Jersey or Pennsvylvania reliability

performance standards?
A, [t*'s my understanding they are not.

G. In your surrebuttal testimony, Mr. Lanzalotta, you

‘had talked about the volatility of the Pike data. Do
 y@u remember that?

A‘ YeSl l: dOt

¢. Now, with regards to volatility of data, Mr.

Lanzalotta, wouldn't you agree that it is better to
| examine mecre data than less data when determining or

'when looking at a volatility issue?

A. It depends. 1In this case here, we're comparing

' data from two different time periods. And I think I

|sald in my surrebuttal that the longer the time period

ycu look at, the nore you tend to smooth out that

volatility in terms of average performance. However,

if we're going to compare six years' worth of

performance since the Con-Ed merger with performance

3lbefore the merger, then the volatility issue really

1 | demands that we use an egqgual length of time so that

we're not ¢giving an advantage to one set of data over

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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the other. Veolatility is going to have an equal
impact, at least a time-based impact on koth of these
series of numbers.

C. Doesn't VOlatiiity have an 1mpact‘regardless of
the ownership of a line? Isnt't volatility =--= étrike
that.

A. I“m sorry?

Q. Doesn't vdlatility --- can it be viewed exclusive
ownership of a line? Volatility is what it is; isn't

1ic?

A, It doésn?: deperd on’who owns the’line, S

Q. Correct. |

Al --=- that's correbt.

G. So once again, wouldn't you agree that it's better
to look‘at a longer set of data to determine
volatility over any given 1ine than a shorter period

of time?
A, Not in every instance, no. I think I've already
explained why using six years of data prior to the

Con-Ed merger is a more valid ccmparison than using 10

cr 12 years of data prior to the merger and only Six
years of data after the merger.

24}

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

No further questions, Your Honor.

Sargent’'s Court Reporting Sérvice, Inc.
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JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Mr. Beatty?

ATTORNEY BEATTY:

Can we have a few minutes, Your Honor, to

Jtalk ---?

ATTORNEY MELIA:

e

I have a c¢ouple of guestions, Your Honor,
for the witness.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR :

Go ahead.

CROSS EXAMINATION

BY ATTORNEY MELIA:

Q. kMr. Lanzaleotta, the options that yau'talk about in

‘your testimony, the MetEd Walker station, PPL, Twin

Lakes, it's my understanding you’'re not recommending

those options, correct, ---
A Yes.

G. ~-= as & primary solutlion to this situation?

|A. That's correct.

G. In looking at those options and assigning costs,

did you assign any timelines or look at it from a

perspective of how long it would take to implement

those two alternatives, even though they're not your
primary recommendations?

A, No, I did not.

Sargent’s Court Repor:ing service, Inc.
(814) 536-8908
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ATTORNEY MELIA:

That's 271 I have, Your Honor.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Mr. Beatty, do you want to take a break

for five minutes?

ATTORNEY BEATTY:

-f we could, Your Honor.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

No problem. We'll go off the record for

' tive minutes.

SHORYT BREAK TAKEN

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Okay. Let's go ahead and get back on the

L { record. Mr. Beabty?

ATTORNEY”BEATTY:
Yes.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION

BY ATTORNEY BEATTY:

0. So the record is clear, Mr. Lanzalotta, you

|mentioned FERC earlier under guestioning. Could you

spell out what that stands for?

A That stands for the Federal Energy Regulatory

Commission.
0. You were asked tc assume that if Orange & Rockland
|cut off ties to Pike, would Pike suffer from a

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, ne.
(814) 536-89(08
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 feliabi1ity perspective. Is it reasonable to assume

' that O&R could cut ties to Pike? Is that a reasonable
agsumption? .
A It's my understanding that, in this situation,
that would be something that FERC would address. Aand
it's been my experience, although I am not a lawyer,
where at least one of the parties wants to maintain
existing interconnections or even establish a new
;intercmnnection, FERC, in my experieﬂce, is'
supportive.

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

Your Honor, I'm going to have to object
because it is calling for a legal conclusion. Even
though he's saying it's his experience, it's still
calling for a legal conclusion as o whether or not
Pike =~~~ and he's not a lawyer. He's already admitted
it. So I would like to héve that answer stricken.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Your objection is that he‘'s not allowed
fto have an opinion simply because he's stating that
ke's not a lawyer, but it's a lawyer position?

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

He's stating that it’'s his position or he
knows of the fact that they wouldn't allcw them toc do

' thas. He's stating a legal opinion - -- a legal

Sargent’s Court Reporiing Service, Inc.
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conclusion. Tha: would be on the record, and I object"
to that.

JUDGE JANDEBEUK:

That's tine. Your objection is noteca,

land it's overruled. What I heard him say is that in

‘his ¢xperience that's how it's been handled. 1Is that
what you said?
A. Yes, ¥Your Honor.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Overruled. Go ahead, Mr. Beatty.

ATTORNEY BEATTY :

That's all the qguestions I have.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Any additional Cross?

AI'TORNEY GALLAGHER:

No¢, nothing, Your Honor.

ATTORNEY MELIA:

No, Your Honor.
ATTORNEY_ GALLAGHER:

Mr. Beatty, do you want to get your

exhibits in? They're markxed but not in.

ATTORNEY BEATTY :

Yes. We'd move for the admission of OCA

Statement 'Two at this time,

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Sargent’s Court Repor:ting Service, Tnc.
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Any objections?

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

Your EHonor, aud we'll move the Pike

connty Exhibits 9 through 17 Cross Examination into

the record.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

I assume there were no cbjections to Mr.

'B&acty's, That is so admitted. Mr. Beatty, any

{objections to Mr. Gallagher's coming in?

ATTORNEY BEATTY:

NOo, Your Honor,

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

So admitted. Thank you, sir. You may

|step down. And we will break for lunch. And come
| back --- do ycu all feel that you need more than an
‘hour? Can we come back in one hour? If not, we can

come back at 2:00 straight up. But if we can, I'd

like Lo come back at gquarter of.

1:45 would be fine.

' JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Okay. We'll be back at 1:45.

' LUNCHE BREAK TAKEN

cUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Go ahead and go on the record. And you

Sargent's Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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are Mr. Regan?

MR. REGAN;

Yes.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Okay. Would vou raise your right hand
for me?
ANGELO M. REGAN, HAVING FIRST BEEN DULY SWORN,

TESTIFIED AS FOLLOWS:

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Just a reminder, if you would, when we
start, please have them state their names, spell it
and address. Thank you. HMr. Gallagher?

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

Thank you, Your Honor.

'DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

Q. Would you please state your full name and business

address er the record, please?

A. My name 1s Angelo M. Regan,‘speiled R~E-G-A-N.
Business address is 390 West Route 59, Spring valley,
New York, 10977. | |

Q; By;whom’are you employed and in‘whatkcapacity?

a, I'm»cmpl@yea by Orange & Rockland Utilities as the

Sargent'’s Court Reporting Service; Inc.
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director of the electrical engineering department.

Q. Are you authorized to testify on behalf of Orange

& Rouckland and Pike County Light'& Power Conpany in

' this proceeding?

A Yes, I am.

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

Yyour Honor, I'd like to have marked for

the record PCL&P Statement Number Two, which is

entitled the rebuttal testimony of Angelo M. Regan, on

|behalf of the Pike County Light & Power Company.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Tt's pre-marked., Go ahead.

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

Your Honor, copies of this testimony have |

5 | been previously given to all of the parties. <Copies
|rave been distributed to the court reporter.

| BY ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

Q. Mr. Reyan, you have before you what has been

marked as PCL&P Statenment Number Two. Do you see

thau?

A, V‘Yes‘

Q. PCL&P Numper Two is a statement =--- 29~page
' stanement, including one exhibit. Do you see that?'
[ Yes.,

oy pid vyou prcparé this testimony?

Sargﬁnt s Court Reporting Servzce, Tne.
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|a.  ves, 1 did.

'Q. Was this testimony prepared by‘yourseif; under
your direction?

B Yasg,; 1t was.

C. Looking at this testimony, Mr. Regan, do you have
any corrections, additions or deletions? |

A, I have Oneycorrection.

|¢. Where is that?

:A‘ On page 29, I have it as Iine three“ Tt states,
Exhibit Two. It should bé changed to Exhibit QOne.

1o, Are those the extent O0f your corrections?

A. Yes, sir.

Q;’ Mr. Regan, if I were to ask you the guestions
contained within those 29 pages, would your answérs be
the same as contained therein?

A, Yey, they would.

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

Your Honor, I'd like to move the
admissisn of PCL&P StatementkNumbef'Twa‘inte the
‘1record, subject to any Cross Examination or motions by
the other parties.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

We'll hold it until we‘re finished.
Continue. o

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

Sargent’'s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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Mr. Regan is availakle for Cross
Examination.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Mr. Beatty, are you going to go first?

ATTORNEY MELTA:

I think I will go first.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:
Mr. Melia?  Okay.

ATTORNEY MELIA:

Thank you. Is that all right?

ATTORNEY BEATTY:

Yes.

CROSS EXAMINATION

BY ATTORNEY MELIA:

Q. Afternoon, Mr. Regan.

A. Good afternoon.

0. My name is Jim Melia. I'm here on behalf of Pike

County and a number of the larger commercial customers

in the territory. Referencing pages =--- the bottom of

page two and the top ¢of page three of your testimony,
therein you discuss ﬁhé prcpoéal to construét an |
extengion from PPL 69 kv'iine into the Twin Lakes
substation ~-- |

KA. Yes.

G. ~--~ and also the proposal to upgrade 369 kV line

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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to the Port Jervis substation. Are those two projecté

considered to be two components of the overall plan by

O&R to improve reliability to the Pike County Power &

Light service area?

 A. There are two separate plaﬁs~that ynu‘re‘referring
to. The first plan, the refercnced PP&L
interconnection was a proposai that we had made in
response to an interconnection study that we prepared
at the direction of the Public Service Commission e mon

| Public Utility Cémmission. That was what we deemed tc

| te the proper, long-term sustainable solution to

providing overall reliable service for this area,

including méintaining an intefconnection between Ewo
fsystEms. The second project you referred to is a
project that's internal to Orange & Rockland utilities
' that we are in control over and are moving forward o

with to upgrade the sources into the Point Jervis

substation, and the subseqguent upgrading of that

stavion to improve reliability to the entire area.
iQ. 30 that subseguent pfdject was kind of on the
|planning stages prior to 20067

PA. The Port Jervis plan you're referring to?

Q. Yes.

A Yes, 1t was.

o

when is that --- well, going back to the prior

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, TInc.
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‘plan, the 69 kV extension, that was done, vyou said, in

' response to the Commission direction that came out of

some of the activity at the Commission in early 20067

la. <Yes. I believe even before that, I believe.

Q. Oh, really? Okay. What's the timeline for

completion? I'm sure, as a utility, you have various
deadlines that you're working toward and timelines for
completion of that 69 kV extension. What is the end

' date, when you anticipate it to be in service?

A, Which one are you referring to?

G. This is the one that's the 69 kV extension to the

| Twin Lakes substation.

A, At the moment, there is ﬁo‘plans to make that
extension. |

Q. This is what you reference at the bottom of page
four of your testimony; corrects?

A That’s correct.

Q. Does thlis have any type of managemen: approval to

at least do preliminary studies as to the ﬁeésibility

of this line?

AL No.

210. Have you had any discussions with PP&L about

moving forward witk the project?

A, wWe have attempted to contact PP&L to discuss the

‘merit of projects such as that and the costs invoelved

Sargent's Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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and the possibility of sharing into those costs with a
joint, you know, reliability benefits of both
~companiés» To date, PP&L has been nonreceptive to our
responses. |

G, Could that conceivably be aﬁother problem in terms
of completing this prbjec:? | | |

A. It could.

G. 50 you haven‘t looked at anything in the way of
|site planning or right?of*way acguisition, the

'specific route that this line would take? You haven't

done any of that?

12 A Not in respect to the extension of the 63 kV PP&L,

noe.

Q. You don't have any cost estimates then at this
juncture?
A. We put a preliminary cost estimate together as

part of that interconnection study.
1@. TIs that something that you can share or is that
not something ~==~?

MR. MILLER:

It's a public document.
A, I believe 1t is,.

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

A1l right. Thank you.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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; Just a reminder, it's not a tag-tean
efﬁait. ,The witness states~i:, and that's the only
,pezga# that needs to be talking. Otherwise, it's an
ubjection. | |

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

That's a ddcument that we responded to
:the Pennsylvania Public U:ility commission with; and
they have a copy of that document. I would assume it
would be, you know, bpen for puklic inspection.

ATTORNEY MELIA:

| Thank you.
|BY ATTORNEY MELIA:

Q. Going back to this upgrade of the three lineé
|permitting Port Jervisf you say that is underway and
5}lyou do have a tiﬁeline far’cumpletion of that project;
correct?

A. Correct.

3/0. Without the other project that we've talked about,

|would that, in and of itself, offer much in the way of

3| improved reliability to the Pike County Power & Light

service area?

AL Oh, most definitely. Most definitely.

Qﬁ So 1 guess what I'm trying to determine is,
increméhtally, if that would provide}adequate

reliability, what is the need of the 69 kV line? Are

“Sargent’s Court Reporting~Service,':n¢.
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there benefits associated with the 69 kV line

interconnection with PP&L, which are over and above

the benefits accrued from the~upgrade'of the three 69

' kV lines at Port Jervis?
A. Sure, there would be. From the perspective of the
‘Port Jervis upgrade and the 69 upgrade, that project

is going to establish a 69 to 34.5 kV Boston

connections physically at that station. ‘And then the
circuits, two of them specifically that currently feed
Pike County right now and PCL&P customers, those
¢ircuits would be originating from the Pdrt Jervis

substation. Right now, one of them does. The other

cne emanates from the Clayback Eill {(phonetic)

substation. So with the improvement there, we're

going to have & stronger source establishking about,

|physically, a quarter of a mile away from Pike County,
where the circuits will emanate right from there as
direct subtransmission from a load tap until it gets

into Pike. So that would improve the reliability of

pretcty much all of Pike. The way that the 69 kV PP&L

jextension would provide even further improvements
would be the radial portion of line seven that

 |presently feeds out of our Port Jervis substation when

it gets past Matamoras and basically the I-84

geographic areas, predominantly radial until it gets

Sargent’s Court Reporting Serwvice, Inc.
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to the end of Milford. So from the point of having

another interconnection with another utility at the

‘back end of Pike, that would be a network solution, a

network interconnection, as opposed to leaving that

line radial. That's where the improvements would cone
in.
Q. Now, in pages --- I guess starting with page four

¢f your testimony and through and onto page nine, you
' had some commentary with regard to Mr. Lanzalotta's

| testimony relating to his examination, what we'll call

the Metkd wWalker substation option and also the PP&L

Twin Lakes optionn. Ané he had some specific testimony
'abaut those areas. You were here today, heating his
'Lés:imcny; ¢orrect? | |

> L A Yes. |

¢. And you also heard that he,inaicated that those
7{were not his primary recommended solutions; correct?
|&. Correct.

Q. In tact, some of the criticism that you raised

here, he somewhat shared with yvou ¢r shared as far as.

holding the same opinions that these options provide

{less than an ideal solucion?

A. Correct.

110, Okay. With regard to your testimony on pages 14

and 15, you expressed some reservations about in the

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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event that PCL&P is forced to sell and relinguish its

service territory to Sussex, you have some

reservations as to whether you would want to remain

interconnected with the PCL&P service territory. Do

yvou see that testimony?

A. Yes, I do.

Q. Is your primary concern there the issue that you

‘talk about later in the testimony, that it could

conceivably provide what we term a free ride to, in

other words, service would be provided by O&R that

would perhaps no: be properly compensated for?

A, That's one of our concerns, vyes.
g. Tf that dual connection did continue to exist and

O&R did, for whatever reason, decide to remain

‘connected, would leaving the lines, the

interconnection point between PCP&L and O&R in an open |

position resolve some of your concerns with regard to

' the free-ride scenario? In other words, whenever

service was being provided through Sussex, there would

be no poéssibility for power to be flowing from O&R

into PCP&L?

AL I don't think so. I think as long as we're going

to be required to ke, you know, on standby or

avallable for backup power, then many of our concerns

still hold. We would have to construct those

Sargent's Court Reporcing Service*'Inc_
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facilities to be able to back up the PCL&P load. And

for that matter, because the JCPL line is going to be

interconnected, we would be backing up that load as
well. So capacity would have to be into that station
and physiéal facilities to step down to 34.5 kV, where
in one instance, if PCL&P would not be 6ur customers
anymore, we would not have, you know, the reqguirement
to serve there, chen we would have to add facilities

to our own portion of the substation to be able to

back up customers that are not of our own. So there

are issues with the capacity even having to be added

at all and the size oI that capacity and the costs

having to be added to that station.

Q. Bul the other option would be to sever that
L connection; correct?
AL Yes. If the connection is severed, then our

/| requirement to sever that load is effectively severed.

Then some of those concerns go away.
Q. But you wouldn't generate any of those additional

costs that you just went through as a resul: of having

| to provide backup; coxrect?

A, It depends on who would reguire us to have backup.

I mean, you know, from our cwn perspective, we really

haven't, you know, gone through the scenarios of

lexactly what's going to be expected of us in this

Sargent's Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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scenario, whether, you know, we remain interconnected,
whether we have to remain interconnected, if FERC and
PIM ?aﬁuires that. There's all kinds of different

layers of cost and system interconnection interface

issues that would arise from that.

G. S0 the derision to remain interconnected or not

1sn't solely an O&R decision. You'd have conceivably

requirements, input from some of these other

regulatory bodies?

AL I wouldn't know the answexr to that one at this

point.

Q. Now, on page 15 you reference the fact that you're

| looking at some possible other interconnection

relationships with PJM companies, JCP&L and MetEd. To |
the extent that these are not considered confidential,

Lave they moved forward to any substantive degree?

'A. They have not to date.

Q. Has there been responsiveness on the part of

eitner JCP&L Or MetEdA?

A, There has been some responsiveness to meet with
uS .
0. And then page 26 of the testimony, you have

addressed some of the concerns raised by Mr. Kenny,
the fact that he's experienced 16 outages from the
January 2605 to November 20C6 time frame. And they

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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were for various reasons. Have you looked at whether
or not any other customers in the PCP&L service area,
'perhapsvsimilafly situated to Mr. Xenny, are
experiencing the same frequency of oﬁtages?

A. We haven't done detailsd studies for any other
fparticular customers. We addressed Mr., Kenny's
Concetns Levause it was part of the record an&‘part of
his testimony that we wantéd to respond to.

Q. Now, he's located, as it's described here, into
the heavily-treed row that is secrved by a step-down
transformer. It's reasonable tce assume he wouldn't be
the only customer similarly situated?

‘A, Oh, that's correct.

'¢. wWould there be other customers who probably
‘experienced the same freqguency?

:Av Correct, in his area, in particuiar.

Q. That's Cummins Kill. I don't know if

you're -~-=--=,

A. Cummins Hill Road, yes;

ATTORNEY MELIA:

Your Honor, that’'s all the Cross I have
' Lor the witness. Thank you.
JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

How, Mr§‘Ga11agher, do you want to go

i

‘back and forth in between these Crosses or do you want

Sargent’'s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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to wait until Cross is completely finished?

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

We can wait until Cross is conciuded.
JUDGE JANDEBEUR: |
Mr. Beatty?

CROSE EXAMINATION

'BY ATTORNEY BEATTY:

Q. Good afternoon, Mr. Regan.

A. Good afternoon.

G. My name is Aron Beatty, and I'm here on behalf of

the Office of Consumer advocate.

ATTORNEY BEATTY:

I'd like to mark for identification OCA
Cross Exhibit Number One, the company's response to
0CA's Interrogatory Set Four, N&mber TWO .

{OCA Cross Exhibit Cne marked for

identification.)

 Ex,ATToRNEY_BEATTY:

,Q5 In this exhibit, 0OCa aSked for infcrmation
regarding costs of aerial crossing acrsss‘the De1aware
7River; And regarding Pike's respdnse to this,rcquest,

'when asked how much Pike's existing aerial Delaware

River crossing would cost, if it was done today, the

fcmmpény‘s response was approximately $260,000; is that

| correct?

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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A. That's correct.

ATTORNEY BEATTY :

That's all I have.

JUDGE_JANDEBEUR:
That's it, Mr. Beatty?

ATTORNEY BEATTY:

No, no. That's for that exhibit.

BY ATTORNEY BEATTY:
1G. If you could turn to page 15 of your testimony.

Cn lines four through nine, you say Pike is in

discussions with Jersey Central Power & Light to
investigate a possible incerconnection; is that

correct?

A, We started preliminary discussions with them.

ATTORNEY BEATTY:

And I'd like to mark for identification
OCA Cross Exhibit Number Two, and that’s Pike's
response to QCA'‘s Set Ten,‘Numbér Eightj 

(0CA Cross Exhibit Two marxed for

idencification.)

'BY ATTORNEY REGAN:

0. Mr. Regan, 1ln the company's response to this
interrogatory, the company responded that the current

discussions between Pike and Jersey Central Power &

Light are very --- and/or MetEd are very precliminary.

Sargent’s Court Reéeporsing 5ervice; Ine.
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when did these discussions begin?

A, They actually began last month.

0. Last menth?
A.  Uh-huh (yes).

|G, And do you know hat lines Pike would be looking to

interconnect to JCP&L or MetEd, the actual lZocation of

those lines?

A. Not at the moment.
Q. Not at the moment?
A Not'at the moment. We'i< in very, very

preliminary discussions with them to discuss these
systems and if any sustainable solutions might exist.

We don't hold out a lot of hope that something at the

134.5 kV level would be the soclution here.

ATTORNEY BEATTY:

I'd like tc mark for identification 0OCA
Cross Exhibits Three and Four.

{OCA Cross Exhibits Three and Four marked

for identification,.)

ATTORNEY BEATTY:

We have a copy of the responses to OCA

>l Interrogatories Set 6, Number One and Set 3, Number
| 26.
‘WITNESS REVIEWS DOCUMENT

5!8Y ATTORNEY BEATTY:

Sargent’s Court Reporting Servxce, Inc.
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‘0. Have you had a chance to review the document?
A, Yes,
Q. Mr. Beatity, you've testified that Pike has

'shortened its vegetation ~---.

ATTOKNEY GALLAGHER:

Pardon me, Mr. Beatty. Which one is One

fand Two -~-- which one is Three and Four? I'm SOrry.

ATTORNEY BEATTY:

Three and Four? fThree is Set Six, Number
One.

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

Thank you.

AL Repeat the question.

BY ATTORNEY BEATTY:

Q. Mr. Regan,'you,testified that Pike has shortened
its vegetation management cycle, and that's deccribed
in OCA $ix, number one, from a four-year cycle to a
three-year pycle; is that correct?

A, That's correct. | |

Q. Turniﬁg now tokCross Exhibit Four. I that next

interrogatory the OCA asks when the last two

comprehensive tree trimmings were performed on the

distribution feeders that sexrve Pike; is that correct?
A. Yes. Thas's correct,

Q. and you would agree that for one of the two

Sargent's Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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distribution feeders that served Pike, the last two

comprehensive tree trimmings were in the third and

 fourth guarters of 2000 and 2005, a five-year

interval?
A, Yes.

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

I'm sorry, could you -~--I think the
guestion, and I c¢ould be wrong, but I thought Mr.
Beatty said 2000 to 20652

ATTORNEY BEATTY:

2001 to 2005"

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

114

Okay. T just wanted to clarify. Thank

you.
151

ATTORNEY BEATTY:

Your Honor, that’'s all the guestions that

‘we had for Mr. Regan. And at this time I would like

L to move for the admission of QCA Cross Exanination

Exhibits Cne, ‘I'wo, Three and Four,.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Ms. O'Deli and Mr. Asmus, anything?

ATTORNEY ASMUS:

No Cross, Your Honor.

ATTORNEY O'DELL:

No Cross, Your Honor.

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Tnc.
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JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Mg, O'Dell?

ATTORNEY O'DELL:

Nothing.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:
Mr. Xenny?
CRUSS EXAMINATION

MR. KENNY:

g. Good afterncon, sir.

)|A. Good afternoon.

:Q‘ My name is Feter Kenny. 1 guess l'm the famous or
fiinfamcus ¥r. Kenny that you refer to in your
Jjtestimony?

’A. Yes, sir, ‘

‘Q. Let me call your attention, if ydu would, to page
26, beginning with line 16, through page 27, line 19.
And if I may have a minute, I would like to ask you a
few questions about that. |

'A. Okay.

G. Sir, you admitted there were, by yoﬁr estimate, 16
outages in that time frame, from January of 2005 to
November of 20067 o

A. That's what our statistics would confirmﬁ

0. BAnd did you investigate those statistics yourself

51 or was that what was told to you?

Sargent’'s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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|A. That was part of the information that my staff

provided.

Q. Now, sir, did your staff provide you with any

indication as to length of time of any of these
:éutagés?

AL No. We did not look at the duration of the
 0&&&§&$, although that information is availab134

¢. But you didn't include that, even though it was

available?

A, No, we did not include that in the testimony.

{0. would it surprise you to know that some of those

outages were at least for 12 hHours?

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

Your Honor, if I may, subject to check,

we can check --- as Mr. Regan said, we can check that

data, so I would say subject to check.

MR. KENNY:

Sir, he's here now. He's aiready given a .
direct testimony, and I've asked a simple qguestion.

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

Right. &and we can offer that testimony
--- nel that testimony, but information.
JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Okay. Now, can you answer that question?

A. I don't have the statistics before me. I would

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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‘have to investigate.

JUDGE JANDEBEUK:

His question was, would it surprise you?
A, It would depend on when the outages occurred.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Okay. So there's your answer.

MR. KENNY:

Thank you.

| BY MR. KEKNY:

1¢. %o I gather you wouldn't be surprised to know that
| some of them'were at least 12 hours?

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

He's answered the guestion.
AL It would depend on when they would occur. I would
assume that if they were off hours., they could have,

BY MR. KENNY:

0. What is an off hour, sir?

AL 0Dtf hovrs would be basically weekends, nights,

; thcse‘type of things, when there's limited staffing
’available'and we have to respond from ~--,

1o. Limited staffing. Now, my guestion is, of course,
whaé staffing is available during the time when it's
 ﬁot off hours?k

A, When it's not off hours, when it s during working

hours?

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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e Yeah. Whatever.

A, There's staffing available in our Port Jervis

facilities with two crews during normal working hours.

We also staff with trouble-shooter crews during the

even hours until midnight and on Saturdays, during the

normal working hours, frcm'8:00 to 4:30.

1¢. Okay. S0 there’s nothing available in Pike

County, is there?

A. Not crew staffed in Pike County, but we do staff
crews in Port Jervis, which is a quarter-mile away
from Pike County.

lo. Now, other than whatever you have in Port Jervis,

as you say, do you have anything available in Pike

County for maintenance and repair?

A. As far as crews actuallyystaffed out of Pike
county?
0. As far as anything?

A We don’'t staff crews out of Plke County.

o Do you have anything available to do maintenance

and repair in Pike County?

A, Sure. We have our Port Jervis facility crews and

'we have crews out of our Middletown office, that staff

can respond.

G, How far is Middletown, sir?

A, Middletown is approximately 18 m:zles away fron

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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pike County.
0. Okay. Do yvou keep a record as to how long it

| Ltakes your staffing at Port Jervis to get on the job,

complete the worx and get finished, come back?

A. We keep records with respect to when outages

ocecur, when we're informed of them, and how long it

takes to restore thenm.,

Q. I'm going to ask vou a hypothetical quescion, if I

|may. Ar some point in your Direct testimony you said

.-~ well, let me quote you, if I may. Page 27, I

Lelieve, beginning with line 16, while PCL&P has taken -

action to improve his service reliability, his

referring to myself, ---

A Correct.

G. ~-~ given his location and the eXacerbated radial
nature of the system that sérves him, ﬁrd Kenny likely
will continue to be more suscéptible to cutages than
the average PCL&P customer., Is that still your

testimony?

A. Yes,

‘. Now, sir, if you were loocking for a new home for

your family, would you come to where I Live, Cumming
Hill?

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

Objection, Your Honor. That's not part

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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of Mr., Regan's testimony. He's asking for pure

speculation.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

It is pure speculation. I also don't

think that it's particularly relevant. Sustained.

Different guestion, Mr. Kenny.

MR. KENNY:

Thank you, Your Honor.

BY MR. KEKNNY:

Q. Do you have any idea how many customers there are

on Cummins Hill Road?
AL I don‘t know the exact number.

Q. Well, can you give an estimate?

AL 1 would expect it's a couple hundred.

Q. Are you aware, sir, that there was a petition

circulated and signed by a number of Pike County

residents in connection with this matter?

A, No.

{Q. Have you had any complaints from other residents

in Pike County --- I'm sorry, in Cummins Hill Road?

|A. Not that I can recall.

Q. Now, in your Direct Lestimony you calculated there

were 16 outages during the period from January 2005 to

November of 2006, a total of approximately 23 months.

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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Could you give us a reference, Mr. Kenny?

MR. KENNY:

e

I gave it to ycou earlier, sir. Do you

need it againf?

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:
Yes.

MR. KENNY:

One moment, please.

JUDGE JANDEBEUK:

It's on the top of page 27. Bottom of

 26, top of 27.
2|
13 |
14 |

MR. KENNY:

Do you need anything further, Mr.
Gallagher?

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

What lines are we talking about?

MR. KENNY:

Well, I'm talking about from page 26,
line 23, through page 27, line two.

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

e

T believe you talked about --- you
referenced 16 ocutages. What line is that, Mr. Kenny?
MR. KENNY:

I believe that is, as I said, page‘27,

line one. And it's part of the business of ~---,

Sargent'’'s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
(B814) 536-8908 ‘
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ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

Thank you.

MR. KENNY:

Just a second, sir. Allow me to finish.
I wasn't concluded.

BY ATTORNEY KENNY:

Q. Sir, this 23-month period, 16 outages, why &id you
not include December 20067 '

A, At the time that T was writing this testimony, it

wasn't December 2006 yet.

1G. Are you aware of the number of outages in December
of 20067

A. No, I'm not.

¢, Would it surprise yvou to know that there were at
least three?
4. I'm not aware of them.

MR. KENNY:

No further qguestions, Your Honor,

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

I think we're back to you, Mr. Gallagher.

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER;

Your Honor, just & minute --- five
minutes,

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Sure,

“Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
{814) 536-8908 ~ '
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ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

Thanks .

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

We'll be off the record for five minutes.
SHORT BREAK TAKEN

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

We’'ll go back on the record. Mt‘

'Gallagher?

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

Thank you, Your Honor.

P REDIRECT EXAMINATICN

'BY ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

G. Mr. Regan, in response to a guestion by Mr. Melia

in which he asked you guestions regarding the PP&L

interconnection, d¢ you remember those guestions?
a. Yes,

Q. Is it your understanding that it was a Pike County

 proposal that was submitted to the Commission?

gy Yes, it was.

0. And was it submitted to the Commission, toe the Law

Burecau, in issuing their report?
A.  Yes, it was.
Q. Wwith regards to guestions regarding the vegetation

tree trimming cycle, do you recall those guestions

from the OCA?

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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A. Yes, I do.

. Was the three~year c¢ycle of tree trimming changed

‘tc a three-year cycle in July of 20067
A Yes, 1t was.

1G. Now, with regards to the guestions from the OCA

regarding OCA Cross Examination Number One, do you
have that there? |

A, Yes, I do. |

Q} Regarding the aerial crossing, do you see that?

A Yes .

1. And the approximate cost is listed as $260,000.
Do you see that? ' |

I a. ves, I do.

0. Is it your opinion that that $260,000 is

comparable to a project such as the Sussex
interconnection precject that will cross the Delaware

in different locations?

A, No, I do not.

g Can you explain your thoughts as to why it is not?
A. Yes. The question, as it was posed in the
'interrngatory,‘agked\ior an update of the costs to

present-day costs c¢f what it would have cost us at the

time that we completed the Delaware River crossing for

our circuit 51034 in 1993 at a different location,

| being close to the Port Jervis, Matamoras geographic

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
(814) 538-8908 :




11
12
13

14

13

16
17|

19

20
21

o b

I
841

; 125
area. At that time, we had an existing overhead
crossing. It was a smaller crossing at a much lower

capacity. And that crossing was updated and upgraded

at that time to include beefier towers and an
increased capacisy conductor.

What's going to be reguired for the Sussex

interconnection ils something that's going to be
:significantly more detailed. And in particular, the
‘area that thEy‘re proposing to cross is in the
:Delaware Valley watershed area. And it is a scenic
vista area. First of all, just to make the assumption
that the costs escalated ta;present~aay values of that

{éxisting crossing that we performed in 2993 to just

deflate the stralight-line dollars :to present worth

costs is not valid, It doesn't take into account the

fact that certain materials certainly have escalated
higher in price from inflation all the time, that
particularly being steel and cornductor.

The other thing that would be necessary, even if

' they were allowing overhead crossing, is that
'snmething‘like that wourld certainly have to be

‘designed based on the wid:th of the river at that

location. You'd have to do borings at those locations

‘to see how much rock would be involved for the

foundations of the towers. And in our opinion, I

Sargent’s Court Reporting ServiCe, nc.,
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don't believe that an overhead aerial crossing would

be allowed at this location based or its location in

the Delaware Valley watershed and scenic vista area.

{We would anticipate that if they would reguire this

installatiﬁh it would be underground, whether it be an

underbridge crossing attached to the structure ox

maybe even a direct bore, even if they would allow

that., And the costs of that type of construction is

significantly more expensive than the costs provided
| here.

~ Q; In response to a guestion by Mr. Melia With
regards t¢ the hypothetical of severing the

linterconnection with O&R and severing the load coming

from O&R, what consegquences d¢ you see happening with
that éventually? | |

A. To sever the connection to Q&R and to’putfall of
?CL&P load ontb LCP&L line, I see a number of major
problems with that, from a load deliverability

standpoint and also from a reliability standpoint. 1In

my opinion, I don't believe ann interconnection to PJIM

would meet the PIM load deliverability reguirements

2| and the available transfer capacity requirements. Not

to mention with what you're looking to do there with
that type of a plan, what you're going to effectively

be doing is you're going to be tripling the exposure

Largent’s Courtheporting Service, Tnc.
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¢f Pike County Light & Power customers as épposed to

lwhat they receive now. And particularly, the entire

PCL&P terrilory will ncw be in a radial system where

right now, 35-percent of PCL&P customers, particularly

those in the Matamoras and West Fall areas, are served

from dual services with automatic transfer capability.
$o the reliability would be degraded severely.

Eighteen {(18) miles of exposure is really what would

be ertailed from the Branchville source all the way to

Matamoras if the ties to O&R were severed, And I

: w0u1dn‘t wéant to be a customer on that Line with 18

miles of exposure, radial exposure.

Q. Thank you.

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

That's all the questions 1 have.

ATTORNEY MELTA:

Your Honor, I1've got some Cross based on

JUDGE _JANDEBEUR:

Go ahead, Mr. Melia.

RECROSS EXAMINATION

'BY ATTORNEY MELIA:

Q. You haven't conducted any --- well, you heard

previously Mr, Lanzalotta's testimony; correct?

A.  Yes.

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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Q. And he testified that he has not done any detailed |

'studies regarding load flows and characteristics of

the JCP&L line. You've heard all those responses?

AL That's correct.

0. Have you done any of those sorts of studies

3

yourself with regard to the JCP&L similar to the sorts

of studies that Mr. Lanzalotta was guestiocned about?

A No, I've not done any detailed studies, However,

 knowing that you're going to put 20 megawatts worth of

load at the end of a source that's 12 to 18 miles away

raises some significant concerns with respect to how

| that system is going tc feed that load. There's

certainly going to be called into guesticn voltage

guality issues and service reliability issues that are

going to need to be addressed. You're certainly going

to need, vyou know, protection improvements, data

improvements, voltage quality improvements. And that

letill wouldn't mitigate the fact that ail 18 miles of
that line would be radial.
1¢. Have you had any discussions with JCP&L regarding

 the concerns here?

A, Wwe haven'®t at this point yew.

Q. Do you anticipate doing that?

P: We anticipate talking to both JCP&L and MetEd to

find out if there are any jeint sustainable solutions

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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with respect to interconnecting with our facilities.

We suspect that there will not be.

Q. Aand that's referencing back Lo your page 15

 testimoﬁy?
[ A. Correct.

ATTORNEY MELIA:

‘That's all the qdestionsyl have, Your
Honor .

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Thank you. Mr. Beatty?

ATTORNEY BEATTY:

Yes.,
RECROSS EXAMINATION

BY ATTORNEY BEATTY :

Q. Mr. Regan, you would agree that the OCA's

testimony and the Sussex proposal does not include

severing the line from Port Jervis to Matamoras?

You'd agrfee with that; wouldn't you?

A. Severing the line from Port Jervis Lo Matamoras?
10 Yes.,
1A, I heard from Mr. Lanzalotta's testimony that they

planned to run that open, interconnected, without

free-flowing ties.
G. However, it would be available for liability

purposes in neither; correct?

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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W I don't think that's been decided at this point.
Q. But that is the proposal? |

A. It still would leave 18 miles of that line on
radial.

ATTORNEY BEATTY :

No further guestions.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Okay. Mr. Dalton?

W ow oy Ut s W N R

'MR. DALTON:

No guestions.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

N¢ questions. Okay. 1 think‘we are
 finished with you, sir. Everyone 1is fiﬁished with Mr.
Regan? Yeu may step down, sir. and Mr. Beatty, do
you want to get these in? |

ATTORNEY BEATTY:

Yes. We would move for the admigsion of
GCA Crouss Examination Exhibits Cne, Two, Three and
Four at this time.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Any objections?

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

No, Your Honor.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

$o admitted. Mr. Gallagher?

Sargent’s Court Reporting Servmce Inc,
(814} 536-8908




P
oo

12

L31
ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

Yes, Your Honor. I'd like to call Mr.
Joseph ===,

JUDGE JANDEBEUE:

Wait one second. We need to get Mr.
Regan's in.k It's marked. I assume you want it in.
Mr. Beatty, you have no objections to it coming in?

ATTORNEY BEATTY:

Ne¢, Your Honor.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Anything else with that group? I don*t
think so. Mr. Kenny, you had none?

MR. KENNY:

-

~ have none, Your Honor.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

And Mr. Xenny, did you want to tell me

whether you're ¢going to testify.

MR. KENNY:

May I respectfully reguest the Court ---
that I am withdrawing my request to be a'further
witness?

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Thank you, sixy. Back to you, Mr.

Gallagher.

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Tnc,
(814) 536-8908 '
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Yes, Your Honor. I'd like to call Mr.

Joseph A. Holtman to the stand,

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Mr. Holtman, if you’'d raise your right
hand?
| JOSEPH A. HOLTMAN, HAVING FIRST BEEN DULY SWORN,

TESTIFIED AS FOLLOWS:

M e eh G R MM A e G B W S BN SR we e G e e A W MK b e N s e W e e W e e N el Mer b e e Seb G e e e e W me e R e e e N

JUDGE JANDEBEURA:

Thank you, sir. Be seated.

| DIRECT ZXAMINATION

BY ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

c. Would you please state your full namne énd address,
business address for the record? |
A. Yes. My name is Joseph A. Holtman, H-0-L-T-M-A-N.
And my business address is 4 Irving Place, Room 1310,
New York, New York, and the ZIP Code is 10003.

(. Mr. Holtman, by whom are you employed and in what

lcapacity?

a. I'm enployed by Consolidated Edison Campany of New

| York, Incorporated, as its director of electricity
3|supply. and in that capacity I'm responsibie for

| purchasing electric energy and capacity for

con-Edison and the Orange & Rockland family companies,

Sargent’'s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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lincluding Pike County Light & Power Company.

Q. Are ybu aunthorized on bekalf of Pike County to
|testify here today?

A Yes, I am.

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

Your Honor, I'd like to have marked for

ithe racord PCL&P Statement Number Three, whieh 1s the

statement and rebuttal testimony of Joseph A. Holtman

on behalf of Pike County Light & Power Company.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

It is pre-marked. Go ahead.

| BY ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

Q. Mr. Holtman, you have before you what has been

marked as PCL&P Statement Number Three. It consists
of 11 pages of testimony. Do you see that?

A. Yes, I do.

¢. Did you prepare this testimony?

A, Yes, I did.

Q. Do you have any additions, corrections or changes
to this testimony?

A. No, I don't.

¢. If I were to ask you the guestions contained on

those ten pages, would your answers be the same as

those contained in thoge ten pages?

A Yes, they would.

Sargent ‘s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

Your Honor, I would move the PCLLP

Statement Number Three inte the record, subject to any

{Cross Examination of the parties and any motions.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Mr. Melia?

ATTORNEY MELIA:

Yes, Your Homor. I'll go first.
 CROSS EXAMINATION

BY ATTORNEY MELIA:

0. Good afterncon, Mr. Holtmarn,

&, Good afterncon.

Q. You start off on page one referencing the default

service Ilgplementation plan that was just recently

| tiled on January 8th; correct? I think I'm

referencing maybe --~ I think I misspoke.
A,  Page three?
Q. Yes. And in that --- I have & copy of that here

and I've reviewed it. Is it safe to say that what

Djyou're proposing in this default service

L implementation plan is fairly identical to What you're

talking about here in the testimony?

1A, Yes.

1. There are no substantive differences with regard

to the proposal? You used the financial hedge and the

Sargent’s Court Repor;ing‘Service, Inc.
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auction process, et cetera?
A, I would agree with that, yeah.

Q. Just for purposes of those of us who don’'t have a

lot of background in the commodities area, what is a
| financial hedge?

P A financial hedge is basically an agreement by two

parties te a financial --- a moretary settlement

usually against a fixed volume cof a commodity, energy

in this case, although it can be fleating, which is
what 1 propose here. And in that type of transaction

one party agrees to pay a fixed price and another

party agrees to pay a floating price. In this case,
| the floating price would be the New York, IS0, Hudson
Valley zone day-ahead market price, whick is an hourly

5|price for electricity. There's usually a netting

involved. So if the average fixed price is $80 and

the average floating price was $81, there would be a

‘dollar in c¢hange, depending on who agreed ko pay the

floating price. There is no physical transfer of

*fenergy, per se. It's strictly a monetary settlement.
The results =--- the reason the utility would enter
into such a transaction is because those financial
:reaults are then netted with‘a physical energy
pufchase that alteré the total price of the energy

{thas is purchased.

Sargent's Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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0. 80 there's always a balancing between the

financial transaction, hedge transaction, and the

physical aspect 0f purchasing electricity?

|A. Yes. And in the case of these financial hedges,

there's both a volumetric study involved and a price

settlement -involved.

.  And O&R is utilizing what's currently in its

' service area for New York customers; correct?

A That's correct.

Q. What is a web-based declining price option? I

‘believe that was a term you used in your testimony?

A, Yes. Under this arrangement, Orange & Rockland,

on behalf of Pike County & Power, would have an

auctioneer. And in the past it's used Werld Energy

Solutions out of Massachusetts. It's an independent

auctioneer who establishes a web site on which the

‘auction will be conducted. The web site is available

to suppliers prior to the auction so that they can

obtain auction information. They can pose questions,.

The answers to those guestions are available to all
,suppliers to the auction. There?s an agreed~upon time
22'thaz’tha auction would begin and end. 'And'it‘s
tusually just a very brief window, a 1l5-nminute window.

24 |

And during that 15 minutes suppliers must put in a bid

thats meets the company’s criterion, a ceiling bid

‘Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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criterion, if you wili. They're welcome to bid below
that. They may not bid above it. So long as they big
elow itf they are al.owed to participate in the
auction, meaning that they can see what the current

low bid is. They wouldn't know whether they had the

|iow bid oxr not. BAnd they would be able to witness the

changing price to the end of the 15-minute close.
'¢. S0 the person that comes in first, the supplier

that comes in first is really --- he doesn't have the

| benefit of seeing what the lowest bid is at that

point?

A. No. The winner would know that ---.

1¢. The winner knows?

A. The wirner would know - somebody who didn‘t win
would know what the low bid was.

C. And -this has been operating’fof hew long in the
,O&R gservice territory?

AL I believe we've used it for at leaét three
auctions now.

€. And that's over a period of three years? Is it

once a year?

1A Over the last two years. We mostly used that

process once for Con-Edison.
G. Do you utilize the same mechanism ~-- well, the

mechanism you talked about here is a layered

Sargent's Court Repor:zing Service, Incy
(814) 536-8908
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mechanism. 1Is that the same terminology as tiering,
when you say a layered auction process, where you do

33-percent at a time?

A. I would use those two terms interchangeably in

that context, ves.

G Now, as I understand, what you're proposing here,

and correct me if I'm wrong, is that Pike County's

load would be incorporated within the O&R auction

process so that Pike Councy customers, 1f everything

works out, would presumably benefi: to the extent that

this process works to a price advantage to the

customers?

A. That's correct. The load curve against which the

kind of party would be settling would include both

 Grange & Kockland and Pike County Light and Power

-} energy .

Q. And'on a going-forward basis, Pike County Light'&

Power's customers were not being viewed necessarily as

la stand~alone group ot customers tor purposes of the

hedging process?

A That's torrect.

Q. How much risk is there associated with a financial

|hedge tor electricity?
A well, the risks are different, depending on the

51 --+ with respect to being a buyer or a seller.

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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Certainly the seller sees the volumetric risk, the

rarket price risk, and the price will also reflect the

3lrisk appetite. They're competing against otherx

suppliers tor the business. So there’s a downward
pressure on prices. And the greater the market

V§1atility or the grecater the perceived volatility in

the load, that puts upward pressuré on prices.
{¢. What's the risk for the customer who's going to be

the -~-- hopefully, the beneficiary of this process?

A, Well, the risks --- we sent ¥-~~typically in

limarkets we define those because uncertainty --- once

the customer's price is fixed, the risk is relatively

l1ow. 1In fact, the way this particular auction

operates, the customer is --~ essentially it has an

option. They may take any guantity cf energy that

they reguire at that price. But to the extent they

«»« you krnow, they can take more or less, depending on
' whether the price is relatively fixed.

1Q. S0 you say that the hedging auction process has

workxed fairly well for O&R up until now in the home

lservice territory?
d1Aa. I think the process has certainly achieved its

obijectives, ves.

Q. How about price?

A. The price tends to be reflective of the market

Sargent’'s Court Reporting Service, Tnc.
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‘conditions at the time we enter into it. But we found

|that in terms of the risk appetite of the counter

parties, that Lhe risk premiums have been fairly

attractive for the product we have.

Q. What do you mean by risk premiunm?
A. well, I mentioned before that the seller is taking
risks, that the buying will be different than they

expect or that the market conditions --- you know, the

|market prices will be different than they expect.
| That, as I said, puts upward pressure on the prices.

But to the extent that the price at auction is

relatively low compared to those factors, then it
seems that the risk premium is low. 'The risk appetite
of the sellers gives to the customers a good price for
the product they get. o

0. and you used the term on page six, Once again I

think you're more familiar with these concepts than I

am, a five-by-six team around the clock. wWhat are
those terms referencing?

la. I apologize for the jargon. A five-by-six team is

an on-pecak, it's a standard, on-peak energy block

that's traded. It means that for five days a week,

| for 26 hours a day, which is 7:00 a.m. =0 11:00 p.m.,
{you wonld take'that subset of fleoating market prices

and settle against that. So that's what they call an

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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 ani-peak prdduct in the market. And around the clock

would be all 24 hours of a given day. So the type of
auction product that we'd be talking with respect to

type woulG be around-the-cleock type product, although

the buying would not be fixed. It wouldn't be 25

megawatts each hour between a 24-hour period, for

instance.,
Q. Do you have a sense --- now, this file was made up

January 8th. It's not presumably going to go to
hearing, although one can never tell with the
Commissiorn. Assuming that this would be approved

maybe, you know, by March or April of this year, would

{this be gsomething that you would be prcposing to

implement when?z

AL Right now we would expect that impleéementation

wonld be in the fali. We've also discussed in the
proposalythat some of these details would be worked
out arong thebinteres:ed parties.

Q. Including the parties in this case?

A, Yes. | |

0. With regard to the premium oxr admihistrative
premium that you referenced, this type of process

would not work for Pike County on a stand-alone basis

' because of its small size and because of the

traditional lack of interest by suppliers. aAnd that

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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‘would, in turn, be considered a premium, would it not,
lon the ability to serve a stand alone territory?

A Yes, There would be a higher premium for where

there's greater line variability and alsc because of
the administration. The administrative costs would be

spread over a much smaller volume, so there would be a

|bigher administrative ~--.

Q. Was there ever any consideration given to

incorporating Pike County Power & Light into the Q&R

process prior to the events that gave rise to this

proceeding?

A, No, primarily because they were on different

' schedules. Pike Ccunty had a hedge that was in place
‘through the end of 2005. We had a proéess that was
|defined by Commission Order that put it on basically &

tdifferent footing, i1f vou will, than what we were

doing for Orange & Rockland.
Q. So it's really the fortuitousness of the plan that
you would enter into as part of the Pike County Light

& Power restructaring, I guess, coming to an end, and

row that enables ycu to consider integrating.

procurement process in with O&R's hedging process?
A. Well, the circumstances are such that, you know,
now we can consider that.

Q. Have you given any consideration to some of the

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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proposals made by Mr. Knecht with regard to utilizing
ihis spot market as part’of the procurement for fully
owning? ;

A We proposed that in the eveht we had a failed
”auétiqn, one that rides on the Spsz market would be a
good alternative for the Pike,cuétomcrs‘

Q. Have you ever had to do that with O&R?

A Yes. Yes. A portion of QOrange & Rockland's
demand is still priced at the gpot market price, if
yvou will. And prior to 2001, I believe esseﬁtially
all of Qrange & Rockland's facilities acquired a spot
2iprice.

ATTORNEY MELIA:

That's all the Cross ‘I have for the
witness. Thank you, Mr. Holtmar.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Mr. Beatty?

ATTORNEY BEATTY:

Thank you, Your Honor.

Q0] CROSS EXAMINATION

BY ATTORNEY BEATTY:

Q.k Good afternoon, Mr. Holtman.
2. sood afternoon.

1@ If I could direct vou to page one of your rebuttal

5ltestimony.  You described your duties for Con-Ed on.

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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the opening page and stated that you're responsible

for the development of overall electric power

procurement plans for Con-Ed, O&R, Rock.and Electric
Company and Pike County; is that correst?

A, That's correct,

Q. Now, was Rockland Electric in New Jersey recently

transferred from the New York IS0 to PJIM?

A, In 2002 it was, yes. A portion of it was,

Lapproximately 90-percent of irt.

Q. Why was this done from your perspective, from the
company's perspective?
A I wasn't at the company at the time, but I believe

the rationale has primarily to do with it.  Certainly

New Cersey. Rockland Electric =--.

Q. Could you ---7?

'A.  The Basic Generation Service auction --- there was |

& state proceeding that was established whéreby

‘essentially most of the customer demand in New Jersey

is, but not always, supplied through annual auctions,
physical supply.
Q. So it was done ~-=7

A, And in order for Rockland Electric to participate

in that, they needed to be physically connected to

BPJIM. S0 to the extent that we could transfer the

Sargent’s Court Repor:sing Service, xnb;
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' Bergen County portion of Rockland Electric Company

with PIM, we did that. We made that move.

C. Turning to page four of your testimony, on the

bottom of page four you note that hedging a hundred

percent of 2008 reguirements creates a risk of

one-time unusual market conditicn. Would you describe

| the results from the October 2005 default service

auction fcr Pike County as an unusual market

condition?

 A§ Yes.

Q. On page five, lines six through ten, there you
:men:ibn for the next POLR plan that you'wculd‘assume
ftha: the interconnection with PIM would remain in
Yplac@ through the three-year duration of the prepqsal,

5| Are you assuming here that any interconnection with

'PIM would be a 69 kV line connected --~ would be a 69
kV line?
A, I'm sorry. Could you repeat that?‘

Q. Sorry. I'lLl repeat the guestion. Are you

assuming here that any intcerconnection with PIM would
he a 69 kV line connected either to PPL or MetEd

)| facrlities?

A. I haven't made any assumption with respect to how
the connection would occur, simply what market Pike

County Light & Power might be connected to.

Sargent’s Court Reporring Service, Inc.
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‘Q, On page seven, lines 12 --- sorry, lines two

through 14, you propose a ceiling price.

A, Yes.

Q. It's for acceptable bids to serve Pike's default
service load. ’what wotld the ceiling price be based
on and how would it be calculated? You may have

answered this earlier, but if you could answer that.

A, It would be based on those same factors that I

5|

mentioned earlier, where we would estimate what is the

volumetric risk that potential suppliers trace with

respect to the combined Urange & Rockland and Pike

County Light & Power, what is the market price risk

that they face and how do those factors combine to
create variability in & supplier's overall cost

structure. The more variable the cost structure is,

the larger a risk premium the suppliers may want to

apply to the price to offset those risks.

Q. And was a similar ceiling price used in the 2005
19|
20
21

auction --~ or should I say a similar methodology used

{in the 2005 auction?

A We did compute a ceiling price in that auction.

Q. And the methodology was baéically what you
cescribed?

A, It was similar. We would certainty want to update

| the factors just prior to conducting an auction.

Sargent's Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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G. And on page nine, line five, lines four and five,

|you describe I guess an unsuccessful bid --- sorry, an

unsuccessful -~~~ or an uncompetitive auction as having
two or fewer bidders; would that be accurate?

A. That is what I would've convinced them.

C. How many bidders for energy were there in the 2005
;auction? | ‘

A. There were two.

Q. and for capacity?

A. There was one. I'd say that's one of the lessons

learned from that auction.
G. 2¢ you have available the Answer to OCa

Interrogatory Set 1l, Number 172

ta. Yes, I do.

Q. On that exhibit ---.

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

Can you hold on a second?

ATTORNEY BEATTY:

Sure.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

What exhibit is i:t, Mr., Beatty?

ATTORNEY BEATTY:

We weren't going to make this an exhibit.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Oh, okay. S0 I don‘t have ig?

Sargent's Court Reporting Service, Inc.
{8.4) 5%536-8908




10|
114

12
13
14
15

16
17

18
19

20|

21

22 |
%3

24

25 |

Rt I O R

148
ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

OCA set what?

AL 2leven (11).

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:
Set 117

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

If it's not an exhibit. I won't have it.
If I don't need it, that's fine. Just checking.

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

Set 11, Number One?

ATTORNEY BEATTY:

Tes.

| BY ATTORNEY BEATTY:

Q*' Simply can you tell me how many bidders

participated for the load following product in the

flatest Orange & Rocklard auction? I believe on that

response it's the auction date 9/21/2006.

A Yes. There were two.

Q. That's all I have for that respaﬁse, If you could
turn to page ten of your testinmony. On lines 13
through 15 you testified that Pike is seeking to have

Direct Energy inform the parties by September 1lst,

2007 as to whether it will continue in its aggregation

service. And if I heard you correctly earlier, are

you proposing that the auction, integrated auction

Sargent’'s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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with O&R would be after that notification or before

the notification?

A. It would help if it were after that notification.
c. Is that your proposal?

A. VYes.

O, Also on page tern, lihe 16 through page

lactually, througn page 11, do vou disagree with 0Ca
|witness Brockway's c¢ontention that Pike is at a
‘disadvantage when it comes to meeting the reqgquirements

of the Pennsylvania Alternative Energy Portfolio

Standards Act; am I correctz
A. Yes.
Q. Has the New York IS0 beer designated by FERC as a

regional transmission organization?

A I believe it has not.

Q. And Mr. Holtman, is it ycur understanding that
under the Alternative Energy Portfolioc Standard Act

that energy generated in the New York IS5C can qgualify

as alternative energy under the Act?

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

Objection. Calls fer a legal conclusion.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Would you run that guestion by me again?

ATTORNEY BEATTY:

I asked if it was Mr. Holtman's

Sargent’s Court Reporiing Service, Inc.
(814} 536-89¢C8




RIS S
W R

e R N
@ o~ Ty W

19
20 |

R I S s S (SR T A S

o
T

150 |

understanding that under the AEPSA, Alrernative Energy

Portfolio Standard Act, that energy generated in New

York 180 can qualify as alternative énergy under the

P:Xol B

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

I agree with Mr. Gallagher. Sustained.
Different question.

ATTORNEY BEATTY :

No further guestions, Your Honor.

ATTORNEY MELIA:

Your Honor, I wonder if I might be able

t0 ask the witness one or two guestions based on. this

discovery response that we referenced Drevxously

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

Which one?

ATTORNEY MELIA:

This is Set 11, Numbker One, dealing with
the auctions.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Ts this the number of bidders for

l9/21/06°
22|
23
24
25

ATTORNEY MELIA:

Yes.

JUDGE_JANDEBEUR:

Any problem with that, Mr. Gallagher?

Sargent’s Court Reporting Servmce, Inc.
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ATTORNEY MELIA:

I*m not going to make an exhibit out of
it. It just prompted an area of inquiry,

JUDGE JANDEBEUR: |

Well, you can try it, and'M:, Gallagher
can let you know if he's going to obiject. |
RECROSS EXAMINATION
BY ATTORNEY MELIA:
1. ’Mr. Holtman, you have this requnse before you?
A. Yes.
Q. I was sust curious. The first auction date that's
listed in the response is Aprii 19th, 2005. You see

| that?

A. Yes.

Q. And it shows 19 bids --- total bids and five
pidders. How is it that the number,éf bids and number’

of bidders differ? I mean, are some of the suppliers

providing more than one bid?

5., If vou'll forgive the analogy, the process 1is

' similar to eBay, the prices changing and the same

bidder can submit multiple offers during the process.

Except where in eBay usually the price is increasing,
here the price is usually --- must decrease.
1Q. and as you proceed through time, through April of

25

2008, November 2005, September 2006, September 21lst,

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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52006, it seems like the trend is the;number of bidé,_

and bidders is declining. What does that indicate,

less interest in participating?

A There have been a number of bidders who didn't

participate in the last year. Some of them, it nay
have been a one-time decision. Some of them I know no

longer bid this product.

Q. This is electricity?

A No. This is a load following Zone G financially.
Q. Which is a subset of - -7
A, Just this type of Eihancial product. It may not

be strategic for the same suppliers that were invelved

egarly on.

0. I mean, are we talking about ~--- like Hess, some
0f “he other big players in the electric markecing
arena, or are they financial'institutians, more than
likely? |

'A. You see more financial institutions.

. Do you foresee an upturn in the number of bidders

a8 we look into the future, beyvond Septembery?DOE?“

A That's one of the things that we're going to ha?e_

to put some effort to, making sure there's good

interest for the auction. And I think we can do that,
. How would you do that?

A, Well, it's a matter of, you know, getting ---

Sargent’s Cnurt'Répor:ing Service, Inc.
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:making sure there's interest early on and contacting
people, having discugssions with themn.
Q. Because presumably =--- well, that's not really a
question. , |

ATTORNEY MELTIA:

That's all I have for the witness. Thank
you.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Anyone else on Cross? Mr. Asnus?

ATTORNEY ASMUS: |

Your Honor, I have djust a few for
clarification purpouses.

CROSS EXAMINATION

'BY ATTORNEY ASMUS:

Q. Mr. Holtman, I'm Dan Asmus, with the Office of

‘Small Business Advocate.

A, Sood afterncon.

Q. Now, the proposal to integrate Pike's POLR

procurement with Orange & Rockland, my understanding

is that Pike's load is somewhere in the neighborhood
of 18 or 19 megawatts. Is that roughly T
A. Approximately 18. |

Q. Can you tell me how kig Orange & Rockland's is?

A. Orange & Rockland's demand is over a thousand

megawatts.

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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Q. 50 the disparity is gquite big there?

A.  Yes. |

Q. Is the Orange & Rockland load similar to that of
:Pike'in that it's all residential and commercial, or
does it have an industrisl component as well?

A,  Orange & Rockland has a litsle more of an
{industrial component. But thé load shapes on a
unit-type basis, if you will, and cthey are not that
'&issimilar, | ‘ |
Q.  Okay. Can you tell me how much of Orange &

L Rockland's thousand megawatt load is going %o be

integrated with that of Pike? All of it or a portion

of it?

A. Well, approximately 35 percent of Orange &

Rockland's customer energy demand is supplied by

 competitive suppliers. So it wouldn't be any more

than two~thirds. And then there's a portion of the

‘Ordnge & Kockland energy that we price at the spot

market, £o we don't fully hedge the Orange & Rockland

demand, if vou will.
0. Do you anticipate having a single RF2 for the 2008
| load, or is that going to be spread out over multiple

dates with multiple auctions?

A. No. Tt will be one auction for that calendar

| delivery period is what I'm envisioning and what

Sargent’s Court Repor:iing Service, iInc.
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proposing.

do you anticipate taking bids by rate class or

is it going to be combined?

| A one

T A. You'

bid for the combined load.

ATTORNEY MELIA:

That's all I have. Thank you:
re welcome.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Mr. Xenny? Mr. Dalton? Ms. O’'Dell? Mr.

CGallagher, we're back to you.

Holeoman.

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

One minute.

SHORT BREAK TAKEN

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Mr. Gallagher?

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

Your Honor, I have no Redirect for Mr.

And with that, I move the admission of ?CL&P“

Statement Number Two into the record.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

¥ think it's Statement Number Three.

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

Number Three. I1'm sorry.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

That's okay. Any objecﬁion?

Sargent’q Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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ATTORNEY MELIA:

No obiection.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

So admitted. Mr. Heltman, ycu can step
Gown. Thank you, sir.

MR. HOLTMAN:

Thank you.

JUDGE JANDEBEUR:

Do you all want tokquit for the day?
Actually, I don't think we havé & choice. I doun't see
-~~~ they ‘'re rnot here, yeah. Okay. 8o we're finished
‘fcrvtoday.f We will start in again. Does anyone wish
to start early? I have no problem starting with 9:30*
It's up to you all.  Everybody prefers to start at‘

” 1$:00?

ATTORNEY GALLAGHER:

Yeg, 10:00's fine.

ATTORREYkGALLAGHER:

Okay. We will start at 10:00. 1I'll see
{you then. ‘

Kk ko ko ok Kk kX

HEARING CONCLUDED AT 2:10 P.M.

* * * * * ok %k kR

Sargent'’s Court Reporting Service, Irc.
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. QUALIFICATIONS

PLEASE STATE YOUR NAME AND BUSINESS ADDRESS.

My name is Matthew L Kahal. Tam employed as an independent consultant retained in

this case by the Exeter Associates, Inc., an economic consulting firm. My business

address is 5565 Sterrett Place, Suite 310, Columbia, Maryland 21044,

PLEASE STATE YOUR EDUCATIONAL BACKGROUND.
1 hold B.A. and M.A. degrees in economics from the University of Maryland and have
completed course work and examination requirements for the Ph.D. degree in economics.
My area$ of academic concentration included industrial organization, economic
development and econometrics. |

WHAT IS YOUR PROFESSIONAL BACKGROUND?
I have been cmployéd in the area of encrgy, utility and telecommunications consulting for
ths past 25 ye;clrs working on a wide range of topics. Most of my work has focused on

electric utility integrated planning, plant licensing, environmental issues, mergers and

financial issues. [ was a co-founder of Exeter Associates, and from 1981 1o 2001 1 was

employed at that firm as a Senior Economist and Principal. During that time, I took the
lead role at Exeter in performing cost of capital and financial studies. In recent years, the
focus of much of my professional work has shifted to electric utility restructuring, power
supply markets and competition.

- Prior to entering consulting, I served on the Economics Department faculties at the

~ University of Maryland (College Park) and Montgomery College teaching courses on

economic principles, development ecopomics and business.

A complete description of my professional background is provided in Appendix A

Direct Testimony of Matthew 1. Kahal , ' Page 1
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Q.

HAVE YOU PREVIOUSLY TESTIFIED AS AN EXPERT WITNESS BEFORE |

UTILITY REGULATORY COMMISSIONS?
Yes. I have testified before approximately two-dozen state and federal mility’
commissiobs in approximately 300 separate regulatory cases. My testimony has-
addressed a variety of subjects including fair rate of fetum-, resource plénning; financial
assessments, load fmrecasting, competitive restructuring, rate design, puréhased power
contracts, merger ef:onomics and other regulatory policy issucs. Th‘csc‘ cases have
involved electric, gas, water and telephone utilitics. In 1989, I testified before the U.S.
House of Representatives, Committee on Ways and Means, oﬁ proposed federal tax
Iegislatién affecting utilities. A list of these cases may be found in Appendix A, with my
Statement of Qualifications. i |

WHAT PROFESSIONAL ACTIVITIES HAVE YOU E’NGAGED IN SINCE

LEAVING EXETER AS A PRINCIPAL IN 2001? -
Since 2001, 1 have worked on a variety of consulting assignments pertaining to electric
restructuring, purchase power contracts, environmental controls, cost of capital and éther
reguiatory issues. Current and recent clients include the U.S. Department of Justice, U.S.
Air Force, U.S. Department of Energy, the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission,
Conﬁecticu: Attorney General, Pennsylvania Office of Consumer Advocate, New Jersey
Division of the Ratepayer Advocate, Rhode Istand Division df Public Utilities, Louisiana
Public ’S'crvice Commission, Arkansas Public Service Commission, Maryland
Department of Natural Resources and Energy Administration, and MCL

HAVE YOU PREVIOUSLY TESTIFIED BEFORE THIS COMMISSION?

Yes, [ have testified on cost of capital and other matters before this Commission in gas,

‘water, telecom and electric cases during the past 25 years. A listing of those cases is

provided in my attached Statement of Qualifications, Appendix A.

Direct Testimony of Matthew 1. Kahal - | ~ Page 2
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Q. DO YOU HAVE ANY PAST EXPERIENCE WITH PIKE COUNTY LIGHT
- AND POWER COMPANY (PCL&P OR “THE COMPANY™? |

Al Yes. 1 testified on behalf of the Office of Consumer Advocate (OCA) on the appropriate

| level of generation costs aﬁd Provider of Last Resort (POLR) service rates in the

Company's 2001-2002 rate proceeding. .(Décket }No. P-00011872) I also assisted the

OCA in monitoring and reviewing the Corpany’s power procurement process conducted

in late 2005 for 2006 and 2007 POLR service.

et
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II. OVERVIEW AND FINDINGS
WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF YOUR TESTIMONY IN THIS CASE?

This case involves a Complaint brought by the County of Pike and many of its citizens
against Pike County Light & Power Company {(PCL&P or the Company). The Amended
Complaint of the County of Pike addresses the problem of extremely high generation
rates, service quality ié;xues and the absence of a local service ared presence by the
(fcmpany. [ have been asked by the Office of Consumer Advocate (OCA) to identify and
evaluate potential generation supply arrangement for PCL&P retail custommers that could
he employed in the future to mitigate both the very high costs and potential volatility of
generation service. Most likely, thc:sé alternatives would not be employed pror to
January 1, 2008, which is when the existing “opt out” supply arrangement with Direct
Energy Services is scheduled to end (absent an éxtension).

For the most part, the alternatives that I consider parallel certain recommendations

of this Commission’s Law Bureau in its June 1, 2006 report {Report on Competitive

Maurket Conditions Regarding the Pike County Light & Power Company). This report

was submitted in compliance with a Commission directive as part of its investigation of

the recent rate shock problem, (Initiation of a Fact Finding Investigation of the

Competitive Market Conditions Re: Pike County Lisht & Power Company, Docket No.

P-00052168).

DOES YOUR TESTIMONY ADDRESS T HEk ;PRUDENC’E OF PCL&P’'S
CURRENT PROVIDER OF LAST RESORT (POLR) RATES?
No, that is not the central purpose of my testimony. Rather, 1 am attempting to evaluate
alternative arrangements that can provide POLR rate relief to customers in the near future
(i.e., potentially as soon as 2008) and that can provide customers with‘r.aasbnablc
generation supply service on a long-term basis. That is, my testimony intends to be

forward looking. Nonetheless, in order to evaluate the prospective options, it is important

Direct Testimon y‘of Matthew I, Kahal ‘ Page 4
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~to have an understanding of the structural conditions and circumstances that resulted in

the present POLR rate shock that is the subject of the Complaint cases and the
Commission’s investigation from earlier this year.

BEFORE TURING TO THE SUPPLY kISSUES, CAN YOU BRIEFLY

'DESCRIBE PCL&P?
Yes. PCL&P is a very small electric and gas clis{ributidn utility occupyiyng a rural service
territory in Northeast Pennsylvania. 1t has approximdtely 4,500 electric customers and
‘IJOO gas customers, with annuai elcctrié retail sales of about 73,900 MWh per year and
a peak demand of about 16 MW, 1t is interconnected with the New York Independent
System Operator, the only such Pennsylvania utility that is part of that system. The
Company is wholly-owned by Orange & Rockland Utilities, Inc, (O&R) which also has
operating utilities in New Jersey and New York. O&R was acquired scvéra] ycars‘ago by
Consolidated Edison, Inc. (Con Ed), one of the nations largest utilties. Thus, PCL&P is
a second tier subsidiary of Con Ed.

WHAT ARE THE STRUCTURAL CONDITIONS OR CIRCUMSTANCES

THAT GAVE RISE TO THE PRESENT PREDICAMENT OF PCL&P

CUSTOMERS? ‘
I believe these conditions are well known to the Commission, but it nonetheless is useful |
to sumimarize them. |

(1)  PCL&P's very small size h‘mits its flexibility and effectiveness in

procuring wholesale requirements power to serve POLR loads.
(2)  The O&R intra~sy$tcm Power Supply Agreement (PSA) (apparently)
restricted PCL&P to financial hedging instrumnents rather than the more |

conventional physical power purchase.

Direct Testimony of Matthew L. Kahal
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(3)  PCL&P experienced unfortunate timing regarding its 2005 ﬁrocuremem
process, with the procurement occurring during an unusual market spike.

(4)  PCL&P is interconnected with the relatively expensive New York
Independent System qurator (ISO) wholesale market and therefore lacks
direct acccss‘ to lower price power from thé PIM Interconnection (PIM)

that serves most of Pennsylvania.

1t 1s these four structural conditions in combination, pefhaps working synergistically, that

- have led to the disastrous rate shock problem. In addition, management’s decision to

wait until May 31, 2005 before communicating anything to the Commission (or customer

representatives) concerning its post rate cap POLR supply plans probably was not

‘helpful.

THE COMPANY HAS ARGUED THAT POST RATE CAP RATE SHOCK IS

NOT UNIQUE TO ITS POLR SERVICE BUT HAS AFFLICTED OTHER

UTILITIES AS WELL. IS THE COMPANY CORRECT?
The Company made this observation in its August 4, 2006 Answer to the County of
Pike's Amended Complaiﬁt, and it is true that other utilities have r‘ecehtiy {or sooﬁ will)
experience rate shock due to ’adverse market conditions coinciding with the end of rate
caps. The Company specifically mentions Maryland, Delaware and Illinois, and [ am
generally familiar with those cases. However, riéne of those utilities has experienced (or
will experience) rate shqck as severe &S’PC'L&P’customers (73 percent bundled rate
increase and a 129 percent generatién rate incféase), and these utilities (or their
regulators) have taken steps to mitigate the impacts. |

More importantly, each of these utilities (and/or their regulators) has developed or
considered plans to avoid such rate shock in’ the future. So far, 1 ’hg\:.fe seen no such

prospective planning efforts from the Company. As will be discussed further in my

Direct Testimony of Matthew [. Kahal = ; Page 6
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testimony and that of OCA witoess Ms. Brockway, the Company is actually standing in
the way of the most promising solution to this deep-rooted structural problem. In doing
s0, it is elevaling “management discretion” over providing reasonable cost, stable-priced

service for its customers.

Q. WHAT ARE THE POLR OR SUPPLY ALTERNATIVES FOR FUTURE

SERVICE THAT YOU HAVE REVIEWED IN THIS CASE?
A. My testimony considers the attributes of the following supply alternatives, -

(1) “Business as Usual.” Absent a change in attitude, it would appear that for

post 2007 service the Company would seék one year or multiyear POLR
supply in a manner Similar to its 2005 procurement strategy. However,
under this strategy all of the structural problems would remain (with one
exception),! and the outcome will be governed in part by the §agarics of

market timing risk.

(2)  Acquisition by Another Utility. Sussex Rural Electric Cooperative
(Sussex) has sought to acquire the Company in a negotiated market
- transaction. This would resolve this problem, both in the near and long

term, assuring reasonable and stable-priced electric service.

(3 Integration with the Rockland BGS, It may be feasible to integrate the ;
PCL&P procurement with that of its New Jersey affiliate’s Basic
Generation Service (BGS) and in the process mitigate the severe structural
‘problems that have led to or exacerbated the severe rate shock. However,
reaching this result will take considerable timé and may involve

- complications.

k- The one change ts that PCL&P is no longer restricted to financial hedging instruments,

R

B Ty

Direct Testimony of Matthew 1. Kahal , , Page 7
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(4)  PIM Integration. An interconnection with PIM would provide significant

POLR cost savings under a “go it alone” strategy, and may be ncc’cssa,ry, to

| pursue {in an‘ effective manner) the Rockland BGS option. The t‘echnicai

and ecdr‘xomic feasibility of PJM integration is d,iséussed by OCA witness
Lanzalotta.

¢(5)  Enhancing Retail Competition. There has been some discussion of

enhanced retail competition (for example through the Company’s Power
Switch program) as a means of mitigating the POLR rate shock. As will
be discussed, this simply is not an thioyn that realistically cayri’prcwide
~ large benefits to PCL&P retail customers. |
DID THE COMMISSION MITIGATE THE RATE SHOCK BY APPROVING A
RETAIL AGGREGATION PROGRAM?

Yes, in April 2006, the Company approved such 4 program culminating in the selection

of Direct Encrgy as the “opt out” retail aggregator. This action provided welcome but

rather modest mitigation of the extreme ratc shock. 1 believe that the Commission

recognized that the expedited introduction of opt-out aggregation was an unusual

“measure, reflecting the unique and dire circumstances at the time and not necessanily a

Jong-term solution. This action obtained some modest rate relief, mostly as a result of
improved wholesale market conditions. However, Direct Energy cannot change the
PCL&P underlying structural problems that have given rise to the rate shock.

WHAT IS YOUR CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION?

The best solution to this severe and likely recurring problem would be to complete the

sale of the Company to Sussex. If this cannot be accomplished, then the Company
should be required to (a) pursue the PJIM interconnection, as described by Mr. Lanzalotta;

(b} pursue cfforts to achieve an integration with the Rockland BGS; and (c) continue to

- Direct Testimony of Matthew 1, Kahal : '  Page§
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identify and describe other procurement strategies if it concludes that the Rockland RGS
integration cannot be achieved.

Q. HOW IS THE REMAINDER OF YOUR TESTIMONY ORGANIZED?

Al Section I provides background information on the genesis of the current problem. It

also describes the Company’s structural problems. Section IV describes and evaluates

the relevant power supply options.

Direct Testimony of Matthew I, Kahal : , Page 9
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. BACKGROUND ONTHE R’A’I'E SHOCK PROBLEM
HOW WERE THE COMPANY’S POLR RATES SET PRIOR TO THE

MASSIVE INCREASE ON JANUARY 1, 20067
In 2001, the Company filed a Petition seeking to increase the POLR rates established in

its original restructuring case due to claimed increases in its costs of procuring generation

‘supply from the wholesale market. The parties eventually reached a settlement

agreement in mid-2002 establishing a new, higher set of POLR rates that would remain in

effect through the end of 2005, with the “rate cap” for generation rates reaching 5.93

cents per kWh in 2005. The settiement had certain other impgrtant conditions including a
distribution rate cap, the Company’s commitment to conduct a PJIM interconnection study
(to determine whether customers would obtain net benefits from interconnecting with
PIM) and the Company’s agreement to submit its post-2005 generation supply plan by
June 1, 2005. The Commission approved this settlement agreemcm; as filed, resulting in
relatively stable rates from mid 2002 through 2005. (Docket No. P-00011872, Order
entered August 9, 2001) |
DID THE COMP‘AN’Y SUBMIT A GENERATION SUPPLY PLAN BY JUNE
1, 2002, AS REQUIRED UNDER THE 2002 SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT?
Yes, it did, on May 31; 2005. The plan called f.dr the acquisition of “financial s’wap"
instruments through a ccmpuier—based auyction {capacity and enérgy 'hédges) for varying
time periods, potentially up to three years. The auctions would have “ceiling prices™ (not
revealed) to use as the basis for detefmining the acceptability of the bids. The auction
results (if successful) would serve as the basis for setting POLR retail rates, aiongwith a

true-up mechanism to ensure dollar-for-dollar cost recovery.” The Company’s proposal

; :

As T understood the Company's proposal, the financial swap instruments hedged for differences between a

fixed price and the New York day ahead macket. However, load imbalances dre resolved in the real time market,
and there can be differences in price between the real time and day-ahead markel:-. This tnie-up mechanism

_ultimately was not Jppmvz,d by the Cummission.

.

Direct Testimony of Matthew 1, Kahal ~ Page 10
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wa,s similar to an auction held carlier in 2005 by its New York affiliate, Orange and
Rockland, for a portion of its load. |
WHY DID THE COMPANY USE A FINANCIAL HEDGE AUCTION
RATHER THAN A MORE CONVENTIONAL PROCUREMENT?
The Company believed that its intra-system Power Supply Agreement (PSA) approved
by the Federal Energy Regulawry Conmissibn‘(FERC) precluded the use of a more

standard competitive procurement of physical (e.g., full requirements) power supplies to

serve POLR loads. The Company"s New Jersey affiliate, Rockland Electric, had

obtained a FERC modification to the PSA to permit it fo do just that, and there was no

~ reason why PCL&P should not do the same. In early 2006, the Company obtained the

needed FPRC‘ approval and no longer faces this procurement restriction.
DID THE COMPANY PROCEED WITH ITS FILED PLAN?
Yes. After an opportunity for review by the pmies, the Commission permitted the
auction proéess to proceed, with certain modifications. (Docket No. P-00052168, Order
entered September 23, 2005)
WHAT WAS THE TREND IN MARKET PRICES DURING THIS TIME
PERIOD?

Wholesale market genération prices since the time of the 2002 settlement had exhibited

an upward trend and considerable volatility. There was also an upward price trend during

- calendar 2005, which was exacerbated by a very extreme summer. Prices in both gas and

power markets spiked sharply in September 2005 in the wake of the Gulf hurricanes
which for 4 period of time seriously disrupted gas supply markets, both the cash market

and futures market. Wholesale power supply prices, including in NYISO Zone G, are

closely linked to the gas market since natural gas is the muarginal fuel for electric

generation in many hours. The price spikes persisted from September 2005 through

Direct Testimony of Matthew I. Kahal : ' Page 11
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much cf the winter of 2006, but have abated somewhat since then due‘ o a ‘combinati‘on
of a mild winter and gas supply recovery.

WHEN DID THE COMPANY CONDUCT ITS MULTI-YEAR AUCTION?
The auction requires less than one day and was conducted on Octo!ier 25, 2005, in the
midst of the price spike problem. |

WAS THE AUCTION SUCCESSFUL?

- The auction was “successful” in the sense that it functioned mechanically and produced a

winning bidder. The pricing results were extremely high but did seem to bear some
resemblance to prevailing published market indexes for power supply futares markets.
‘Tha auction clearly was not succcssful' in generating a high degree of competition
or aggressive bidding behavior, unlike competitive pmcurememsylhkat have occurred in
other states. There were only two bids (and only one bid for the capacity product), with
the winning bidder being the Company’s unregulated affiliate, Consolidated Edison
Enérgy, Inc. (Con Ed Energy). |
WHAT WERE THE RESULTS?
The all-in cost of power (energy, capacity and ancillary services) was well in excess of |

$100 per MWh. After reflecting adders for line losses, taxes, ete., this produced

residential generation rates in excess of 14 cents per kWh (for the first 1,000 kWh of

 monthly usage). This produced the unprecedented 73 percent bundled rate increase and

129 percent POLR gencration rate increase, taking effect ont January 1, 2006,
This clearly is “rate shock” by any standard, and when the increases became
known, this ptovoked a highly adverse customer reaction as described in more detail by

OCA witness Ms. Brockway, This severe impact prompied the Commission to establish

an investigation to review botb the causes of the rate problem and potential mitigation

Direct Testimony of Matthew I, Kahal | Page 12
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options, both near term and long term. (Order enteied February 14, 2006) The
invc‘stigalion solicited comments from the parties on a an ge of issues.
GIVEN THE WHOLESALE PRICE SPIKES BEGINNING LAST FALL, DID
OTHER UTILITIES ALSO EXPERIENCE POLR RATE SHOCK?
Yes, this problem was shared by a number of other utilities that were procuring power
supplies during this period and in the first half of 2006. Howevér, none that T am aware

of is as extreme as PCL&P, and in the more serious cases mitigation plans have been

| adopted. For example, Baltimore Gas & Electric Company (BGE) in Maryland has

exper’ienced a generation (POLR) rate increase in excess of 100 percent (compared to i’ts
capped' rates), but that percentage increase is starting from a much lower base figure.
Moreavet, a phase-in plan has been adopted Iimiting the initial (bundled) rate increase to
15 percent. Importantly, many other utilities (and/or regulators) that have experiénced or
amieipated this problem are explocing strategies for avoiding [uture rate shock such as

the use of resource portfolios and a staggered (or “laddered”) power procurement

method. This includes the Company’s New Jersey affiliate, Rockland E!ectric, which

acquires power for its POLR customers using three-year staggered contracts.

HAVE ANY SPECIFIC ACTIONS BEEN TAKEN TO DATE TO PROVIDE
NEAR-TERM MITIGATION? | |
Toward the end of the winter of 2005/2006, wholesale prices moderated somewhat as
mentioned above, creating a poténtial opportunity for rate mitigation. ‘ In that regard, 4
retail marketer, Direct Energy Services, submitted a Petition for an “opt out” retail
aggregation plan to provide residential arid small commercial customers an alternative to
the onerous POLR rates. This program, which would involve a Coznnﬁssion—conducted
auction té select the aggregator, was approved by the Commission on April 20, 2606.

(Docket -No. P-00062205) Direct Energy prevailed in the competitive auction, and

Direct Testimony of Matthew 1. Kahal
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beginning on June 2, 2006 customers were switched 1o Direci Energy's supply service at
its winning bid price in lieu of PéL&P’s POLR rates,

DID THIS LEAD TO LARGE SAVINGS?
The opt-out aggregation program provided only modest savings to customers relative to
the Pike POLR rates. Direct Energy could pro%/idc these savings 'b‘ecause of some
moderation since last October in wholesale pcwei* prices, but it CzinnOI correct the
Company's underlying structural problems that have led to the éxtfemeiy high ge’ncr‘ation‘
COsts.

WHAT ARE THE STRUCTCRAL PROBLEMS AFFLICTING PCL&P?
The Company's price spike from its Octobér 2005 procurement is atuibutablc to the
following (a) poor market timing; (b) the’ extremely small size of its POLR load; (c)
direct interconnection with only the New York ISO market; (d)k restrictions under th:
PSA. The muer is no longer an issue, and therefore little ‘commen‘t is needed.
Unfortunate market timing is not a s&uc&ural attribute of PCL&P per gse, since
conceivably this could be a source of rate shock and instability for any atility market-

based POLR service. However, the market timing problem is magnified severely for

- PCL&P {compared to larger utilities) because the very small loads make it difficult to

employ diversified portfolio strategies or staggered contracting to help stabilize rates.
DID RESTRICTIONS UNDER THE PSA, APPARENTLY LIMITING THE
PROCUREMENT OF PHYSICAL POWER, ADVERSELY AFFECT THE |
RESULTS? | |

There is no way to unambiguously determine the impact of that restriction since the

principal “driver” bf the high costs obtained from the October 25, 2005 auction was

market timing. However, the bidder market response to that auction was poor, with only

two bidders, with one being an affiliate, and this may have been influenced by the

Direct Testimony of Matthew I. Kahal , Page 14
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financial swap approach. Physical product auctions conducted by utilities for POLR have
éIiciled far more active bidding (e.g., procurements in Maryiand, New Jersey and
Minois). A less active bidding process likely means a higher pricé outcome, all else
equal. | |

With the change in the PSA, this is not an issue that must be addressed in the
future, and it obviously did not adversely affect the opt-out aggregation bidding in late
April of this year. |

ARE THERE OTHER FACTORS THAT COULD EXPLAIN POOR

PARTICIPATION IN THE OCTOBER 2005 PROCUREMENT?
Yes, both the small size of the load and the absence of a PJM interconnection may have
chilled the interest of wholesale suppliers for partibipaﬁon in the auction, The load is
very small and bidders incur si’gnificani administrative costs when participating in an
auction. Thus, the relative contribution of the (financial swap) PSA restriction to the
adverse price results cannot be determined. | |

CAN YOU DETERMINE THE IMPORTANCE OF THE NEW YORK

INTERCONNECTION? |
Yes, it can be estimated. The table below shows the published wholesale market prices
for forward (on-peak) block‘cnergy for calendar years 2006 and 2007, as of the date of
the October 25, 2005 auction for the PJM West trading hub and New York’s Zone G
(which is PCL&P's interconnection point). While this is not prcciscly the product
sought, it provides the best single indication of wholesale market costs relevant to POLR |

service.

e st e e et w
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as of October 24, 2005
i (MWhH) ,
Forward Year PIM West New York Difference
2006 $93.50 - $114.00 $20.50

2007 $79.25 $103.70 -~ $24.50

Source: Mcgawétt Daily, October 25, 2005

" The New York market price premium over PIM as of October 2005 was about $20 per

MWh.
~ HOW HAVE WHOLESALE MARKET CONDITIQNS CHANGED SINCE
LAST OCTOBER?
Market prices have declined significantly, and the New York versus PIM differences
‘have somewhat narrowed. Consider the folloWing compérisons for forward years 2007,

2008 and 2009 as of November 3, 2006 (again, for on-peak block energy):

Forwurd Wholesale Powér Prices
as of November 2, 2006
, ($/MWh)
Forward Year PIM West - New York G ' Difference‘
2007 $73.70 $89.15 $15.45
2008 , 74,60 87.30 12,70
2009 70.05 85.75 15.70
Source: Megawatt Daily, November 3, 2006

This indicates a reduction from October 2005 in New York prices (for future years) of

about $15 per MWHh (or about $20 compared to last OCtober’skprice for 2006 supply) and

a New York/PIM differential of about $15 per MWh.

WHAT DO YOU CONCLUDE FROM THIS INFORMATION? |
This implies that if PCL&P were to go té the market today for POLR power it might be
able to reducc its costs by 1.5 to 2.0 cents per KWh. This would be abéut a 10 percent

reduction in bundled rates and roughly a 15 percent reducnon in generanon POI R rates.

Dxrect 'I‘(.sttmony of Matthew L. Kahal | Page 16
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A PJM interconnection may provide funhér reducti’bns on the order of another 1.5 cents
per KWh. Thus, there could be the potential for total savings of 3 to 3.5 cents per KWh
at current markets prices and if a PIM interconnection were deemed feasible (ignoring for
the moment the cost_k of that interconnection). This would be a very large rate reduction,
although it still leaves PCL&P’s rates very expensive by historical standards and in
relation to rates charged by othe.f Pennsylvanija utilities. |

/ Evéﬁ these results must be considered with caution, however. Tbase this analysis
on published data from wholesale power markets. and this assumes that the Com‘pany can
successfully and competitively procure power from these markets. Given the Compaﬁy’s
small léa&, we cannot be certain of that. More importantly, PCL&P is not procuring
power today and has no announced plans to do so any time soon. We have no idea what
market conditions will be the next time it seeks to procure POLR supply. Hence, the éom

reductions that are identified above may not be available net time PCL&P procures

POLR power supplies from the wholesale market.

WHY 1S THE SMALL SIZE OF THE PIKE LOAD A STRUCTURAL

IMPEDIMENT?
There are two reasons. The small POLR load simply will elicit less interest from the
market, all else equal, due to the fixed costs of participating in a competitive solicitation
and the various priorities of potential wholesale suppliers (i.e., suppliers may tend to
focus on larger utility solicitations). I am not suggesting PCL&P will be unable to
procure power for its roughly 16 MW of load, but the more active the bidding, the lower
the market price results are likely to be (all else equal). Customers will be harmed by a
wgak competiti% procurement process. |

An even larger problem is that a small foad has difficulty staggering power

procurement and/or employing a portfolio approach. A number of utilities use or have
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suggested the use of three-year laddered contracts that effectively spread market timing

risk over three years, leading to a smoothing (though not necessarily a lowering) of

prices.  For example, PPL Electric Utilities Corp has proposed a Competitive Bridge

Program for 2010 service based on six separate procurements spread over three years.

(Docket No. P-00062227) ‘This approach would appear to be impractical for full

requiré‘mems service for the Company’s 16 MW POLR load. | -
YOU MENTION THE SAVINGS FROM A PJM INTERCONNECTION. HAS
THE COMPANY CONSIDERED THAT?

Yes. On May 16, 2006, the Company submitted an updated feasibility study of

| interconnecting with PJM by extending a 69 KV line to PPL’s Twin Lakes substation.

The Company estimated a project investment of $13.6 million (translating into an annual

- revenue requirement of $2.7 million using a 20 percent carrying charge rate) and annual

benefits (énergy savings) of $2.2 million. Since annual costs are estimated to cxceed
annual benefits, the study concludes that the interconnection would not be cost effective.
The energy savings figures used by the Company seem to be roughly in line with those
cited earlier in my testimony. However, the $2.7 million levelized annual cost may be
too high since it is‘ based on a 20 percent levelized carrying charge rate which is not
supported in the study. However, even at a lower 15 percent figure, the interconnection
project wquid barcly be break even for customers, assuming the accuracy of the
Compuany’s cosi data. |

OCA witness Lanzalotta has identified a far lower cost interconnection with
Sussex for an investment cost of about $1 to $2 milljon, or annual costs of $150,000 to |
$400,000, depending on the carrying charge rate uSed These costs are a very small
fraction of the energy savings estimated by the Company of $2.2 million per year, and on

that basis appears to be highly cost effective,
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The remainder of my testimony is based on the assumption that this
interconnection is, in fact, accomplished. T understand that this interconnection is an

integral part of the Sussex acquisition proposal.
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1V.  GENERATION SUPPLY OQPTIONS FOR PCL&P CUSTOMERS

A. The Supply Options

Q. AS PART OF THIS COMMISSION’S INVESTIGATION, THE LAW B‘UREAU

SUBMITTED SEVERAL RECOMMENDATIONS IN ITS JUNE 1, 2006

REPORT. WHAT AREAS DO THESE RECOMMENDATIONS COVER?

A, Pages 16 to 20 of that report identify eight areas of recommendations for improving or

solving the generation supply service problem for PCL&P customers. These include

consideration or further study of the following:

(1

)

(3)

(4)

5

18

19

21
22

a3
£

25

(6)

()

(8)

Integration of POLR wholesale supply procurement with those of the

Company's much larger New York or New Jersey utility affiliates.

Integration of the Company with PIM, including the Sussex

interconnection option, which the Company has not yet analyzed.

A potential sale of the Company to another Pennsylvania electric utility or
rural electric cooperative. |

A longer review period for the Company's défauli service plan, ihcluding
a filing by year-end 2006. |

Potential savings from retail access, including an updated “Power Switch”
program filed by the Company.

Commission waiver of electronic data interchange (EDI) rules to facilitate
New York competitive suppliers serving PCL&P customers at retail.
Conduct a survey for altema,tive‘energy/renewable energy projects in the
Company’s service area to acquire possible lower cost generation supplies,
Possible transfer of a small number of “borderline” customers to

Metropolitan Edison Company.
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While not al} of these recommendations may prove productive in addressing the severe
problem confronting customers, I believe this forms a good framework for discussion. In

this section, I discuss several of these topical areas including Recommendation (1),

integration with affiliate POLR char procurement; Recommendation (3), the potential

sale of the Company; and Recommendations (5) and (6), which pertain to the role of
retai! competition. OCA witness Lanzallota di.scuésés another important recommendation
in that report pertaining to E’JM integration (Recommendation 2).

- WHAT SUPPLY OPTIONS ARE YOU DISCUSSING IN THIS SECTION OF

YOUR TESTIMONY? ' '

Following the Law Burcau's outline, my testimony considers (1) a PCL&P-only
procurement; (2) ucquisition by aﬁothar utility, 'speciﬁ_cany Sussex; (3) potential
integration with the New Jersey BGS through Rockland Electric; (4) savings through
enhanced retail access. These options must be considered in the context of the key
structural limitations facing PCL&P, namely its small size and New York 1SO
integration. |

The Status Quo

WHAT DO YOU BELIEVE THE STATUS QHO TO BE?
This case is scheduled for cﬁmpletion and a Commission decision in early 2007. The
Company's current financial swap contract with its affiliatc and Direct’s opt-out
aggregation are both scheduled to end at year-end 2007 (gbsent an extension). Under a
“business as usual™ scenario, the Company could conduct a new proéurement auction in
2007 for POLR power supplies, either using financial swaps or a more conventional full
requirements power acquisition.

The problem with the “business as usual” approach is that it does nothing to

address the underlying structural problems, and for that reason it may provide little or no

A G STt W SR R e S o
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improvement over the present circumstances. Wholesale prices have moderated
somewhat since April 2006 when Direct Energy submitted its aggregation bid and have

declined significantly since the October 2005 auction. A wholesale procurement today

- may produce a modest price improvement for 2008 and perhaps beyond, but we cannot

be sure of that, It act;uzﬂly could produce a worse result. Recall that the'(:ompany
reéeived oniy two bids (ope its affiliate) Ia'st‘ October, and the next wholesale |
procuremem wm not occur today but sornetime next year. Agdm, customers will be
exposed to ummg nsk and very likely to sparse bidding.
WQULD A PIM INTERCONNECTION HELP?
YEb, it would improve upon a bad situation, when such an interconnection is completed.
HAS THE COMPANY ACKNOWLEDGED THESE STRUCTURAL
PROBLEMS? i

The Company’s Comments of March 3, 2006 in the Commission’s investigation docket

seem o recognize these problems, and they speculate on whether they can mitigated.

The Company acknowledges the limitations of its “stand alone,” small procurement,

recognizing the poor bidder participation last October.

“All else, an increased number of bidders in the auction would

increase the likelihood of more favorable results for consumers,

and an auction format where Pike’s supply is acquired over a

period of time will reduce the likelihood that Pike's entire

supply will be obtained at a period of very high market

volatility. (page 7)
The Comments go on to say that the Company is “considering” staggered procurement to
mitigate timing risk, for example, procuring one-third of the power in each of three
separate procurements. (Id., page 8) The Company further and properly acknowledges
that a “stand-alone” procurerent could result in “small quantity [price] premiums” being

incurred. (Id., page 8)
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WHAT IS YOUR RESPONSE?

I am encouraged that the Company seems to recognize that its structural problems cause a
poor market response, timing risk and undue price premiums and that it is considering the
feasibility of alternatives. However, so far it has not proposed or endorsed zmy changes.
Given that the Company obtained such a poor market response to a 15 MW bid, then
three 5 MW procurements might produce even worse results in terms of incurﬁng small
Ioad price premiums. St‘aggercdy procuremenis for full requirements service for such
small loads may or may not be feasible and could increase costs.

Acquisition by Sussex

IS THE SALE OF PCL&P TO ANOTHER, LOWER COST UTILITY A
FEASIBLE SOLUTION?

Yes. Sussex has expressed strong interest in entering into discussions to negotiate the

purchase of PCL&P from the ultimate parent, Con Ed. To my knowledge, Con Ed’s
management has shown no interest in such a transaction and is not actively considering

such an offer. In its Comments in the Commission’s investigation, it stated that “While

tyhéCompany hias a duty to consider offers for the business, Pike is committed to the

service of Pike County and its customers.” (Comments, page 10, March 3, 2006) The
Comments also express skepticism that a sale of the business would benefit customers
due to the service area's “remote location and largely rural setting,” the cost of

interconnecting with PJM and the complicating factor that Pike is a eombined gas and

- electric uiility.

The Company goes even fucther in its August 4, 2006 reply to the County of Pike
Complaint. It refers to the:
unsupported and mistaken assumptions that acquisitidn by

another utility with membership in PIM will provide long-term
economic benefits to PCL&P’s customers or that a sale of the

Direct Testimony of Matthew 1. Kahal
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- Company will result in lower rates for PCL&P's customers.
(Paragraph #62)

DO YOU SHARE THE COMPANY'S SKEPTICISM OVER POTENTIAL

BENEFITS?

No, I disagree.  [ interpret the Company’s comments as ackanledging that it has a
public interest obligation to consider the best interests éf its customers, as well as
protecting (Con Ed) sharcholders. Assuming a fair pﬂce for its investment in PCL&P,
Con Ed clearly Will not’bc adversely impacted by this sale since the Company is a
miniscule part of the total Con Ed.

The Company’s argument is that an acquisition would not change the basic
éf:*c'nomics of generation supply for its customers. However, in the case of a Sussex ;
acquisition, the evidence indicates that this assumption is incorrect. |

PLEASE DESCRIBE SUSSEX.

Sussex is a rural electric distribution cooperative located across the Delaware River in

New Jersey but in very close proximity to the PCL&P service area. It serves over 11,000

customers 1 Sussex County, New Jersey and a small number in Orangc County, New
York. Sussex has a peak demand of about 40 MW and a power supply energy
réquirement of about 150,000 MWh per year. Thus, a PCL&P acquisitioh would increase
the size of Sussex by about 40 to 50 percent. According to the coop’s website, it charges
its New Jersey customers a bundled service rate ’of 10.38 cents per kWh and a faclity
charge of $9.50. There is no separate delivery charge. For example, a residential
custonter using 700 kWh per month would pay approximately $82.16 undér Sussex’s
current rates, as compared to $132.31 under PCL&P's current default rates (roughly a 60
pé:cent premium), Using the Direct Energy generation rates, the 700 kWh residential bill

is about $121 per month (about a 48 percent premium).
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Sussex obtains its power supply from Allegheny Electric Cooperative, Inc.

{Allegheny), a ’Generation and Transmission (G&T) cooperative headquartered in

Harrisburg, PA, and 4 member of PIM. Allegheny provides G&T service to 13
distribution cooperatives in Pennsylvania plus Sussex. Sussex c,urrently incurs a power

supply cost of 5.8 cents per kWh based on Allegheny’s blended cost of supply. Even

after adjusting this wholesale cost for line losses, this is only about half what PCL&P

customers are ihcurring for generation supply under the Direct Energy “opt-out” price.
THE WHOLESALE RATE THAT YOU DESCRIBE APPEARS TO BE
BELOW MARKET. WHAT ARE ALLEGHENY’S SOURCES OF SUPPLY?

Allegheny scrves a peak load of 655 MW and serves indirectly about 222,000 retail

customers. It serves this load with a combination of resources that includes the

following:>

(1)  Nuclear. Allegheny owns ten percent of the Susquehanna Steam Electric
Station (Susquehanna), & 2,360 MW, two-unit nuclear plant operated by
PPL Corporation which also owns the remaining 90 percent. ln 2005,
Susquehanna accounted for 62 percent of Allegheny’s total power supply,
and the plant operated at a capacity factor of 88.8 percent,

(2)  Hydro. Allegheny purchases low-cost hydro from the‘New York Power
Auihority’s (NYPA’s) Niagara and St. Lawrence projects (about 33 MW),
Allegheny also owns the two-unit Raystown hydro plant (42 MW).
Together, these sources provide about 10 percent of Allegheny’s total
requirements.

(3} Market Purchases. Since 2001, Allegheny has been obtaining about 30

percent of its supply under a wholesale contract with Williams Energy

Thu information is derived from Allepheny's 2005 Annual Report.

Direct Testimony of Matthew 1. Kahal

Page 25 |




)

10

11

13
14

15
16
17

19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Marketing & Trade (Williams). A portion of the Williams energy is at
fixed contract rates with hourly and monthly caps on the energy that must
be supplied at those rates. Addiﬁbnzﬂ requirements above the caps are‘
supplied at spot market prices.

(4)  Coordinated Load Management System (CLMS)_ Allegheny sponsors a

foad management program for its members, which in 2005 provided a
peak demund reduction of ,aboui 50 MW (about 8 percent of its peak‘ load).
Allegheny estimates that in 2005 this program provided $4.4 million of
cost savings. Sussex itself offers 1s customers participation in an Electric
Thermal Storage (ETS) program at a large rate discount. |
I)()ES. THIS WHOLESALE RATE OF 58 CENTS INCLUDE
TRANSMISSION? |
My understanding is that it does. Allegheny purchases transmission service from other
PIM transmission owners at their FERC-approved rates and includes that cost in is
bundled wholesale rate of 5.8 cents per kWh. These aré: the transmission owning PIM
companies that are interconnected with the 14 member distributian cc)cperativesa
THE 5.8 CENT RATE IS WELL BELOW PCL&P'S CURRENT COST OF
POWER. WHAT IS LIKELY TO HAPPEN TO THAT RATE OVER TIME? |
While power supp'ly costs could change somewhat over time, 1 believe that on a long-run
basis they are likely to remain recasonably stable. The yla:gast asset, Susquehanna (a two-
unit plant), has about 20 years remaining on its Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC)

operating license and there are reasonable prospects for a 20-year NRC license extension.

It is also my understanding that the owner (PPL Corporation) intends a power uprate of

the pl:int by about 10 percent, and as a co-owner, Allegheny will share in any uprate (as

well as uprate costs). At the present time, Allegheny’s large original investment in
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Susquehanna has been largely recovered, and as a result it seems unlikely that its “all-in”
cost of power from this plant will increase significantly over time.
The cost of hydro should also remain stable over time. The owned Raystown

hydro project is less than 20 years old, and Allegheny has entered in to a new 18-year

agreement with NYPA for the low-cost purchased hydro generation.

The largest area of uncertainty is the Williams contract which is scheduled to
expire under its terms at the end of 2008. Presumably, Allegheny must replace this
supply at potentially a higher cost which could contribute to a modest increase in

Ailegheny’s blended cost of power. This would depend on market conditions at that time

assuming Allegheny intends to use a market purchase.

Since the vast majority of Allegheny’s power supply comes from “locked in,”
stable-cost resources, 1 conclude Allegheny’s blended costs should remain relatively

stable over time. While the wholesale rate may not be fixed over the long term at 5.8

- cents, I do not expect large changes. In addition to this relative stability, it is virtually

certain that the Allegheny rate will be far below the POLR prices that PCL&P could offer

its customers.

UNDER A SUSSEX ACQUISITION, WILL THE PRESENT PCL&P
CUST OMERS PAY RATES THAT REFLECT THE ALLEGHENY BLENDED
POWER SUPPLY COST?
My understanding is that Pennsylvania customers of PCL&P on a long-term basis would
enjoy this favorable rate. However, during a transition period it may bé’ necessary for
customers to incur a surcharge due to “caps” on the ‘\7~}’iui‘ams:= contract eriergy (i,e‘, over
certain thresholds incremental energy purchased from Williams are priced at spot market

prices).
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Please note that it is the intent of Sussex to interconnect the current PCL&P load
Wkith PJM at Sussex, which will permit that load to be fully served by the ‘Allcgheny
supply podfalio~. As OCA. witness Lanzallota explains, this could be accomplished at a
capital investment cost of about $1 to $2 million.

ARE THERE ANY OTHER ADVANTAGES TO THIS ACQUISITION?
Yes. A stand-alone PCL&P must meet the requirements of Pennsylvania’s renewable
energy regulations, which is a further complication to its procurement problems,
particularly if it -rc.mains tethered to the New York‘ma:rkct‘ This issue would be resolved

under a Sussex acquisition. Allegheny’s CLMS program provides compliance with this

- statutory and regufatory requirement, while at the same time providing customer savings.

HOW MUCH WILL THE SUSSEX ACQUISITION ADD TO THE

ALLEGHENY LOAD THAT IT MUST SERVE? | |
‘The Sussex acquisition of PCL&P would increzis‘e the total Allegheny load by about 2 to
2.5 percent. 1 understand that the PCL&P acquisit‘ion is subject to approval by the
Allegheny Board of Directors. | ;

DO YOU SEE ANY DISADVANTAGE TO THE SUSSEX ACQUISITION?
No. This would appear to resolve all issues in this case (and the Commission’s earlier |
umvestigation) in a manner fair to all partics and highly favorable to PCL&P customers.

Integration with Affiliates

SHOULD INTEGRATION OF POWER PROCUREMENT WITH AFFILIATES
BE CONSIDERED? |
This Shouid be considered only if 2 PCL&P acquisition by Sussex canﬁm be achieved. In
that case, the integration of the PCL&P POLR procurement with a larger utility affiliate

potentially may provide lower and more stable costs for customers. As part of this
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~ discussion, I assume that the PCL&P load can be (cost-effectively) interconnected with

PIM, as diécussed by OCA wilness Lanzalofta.

HOW DOES THE COMPANY'S NEW JERSEY AFFILIATE OBTAIN POLR

SUPPLY? | ‘ | |
PCL&P’s New Jersey affiliate, Rockland Eiecﬁ‘ic Company {Rockland), participates in
the annual statewide New Jersey (fixed price) wholesale auction that is used for the
pmvision‘of Basic Generétion Service (BGS), which is that state’s POLR arrangement. |
The BGS auction procures power annually under three-year contracts, with each
procurement éoven’ng one-third of the load. Thus, BGS is based on 2 series of
overlapping or “laddered” three-year contracts. BGS bidding has been robust and
competitive, and the lac‘ideyred contract u;}proach has helped mitigate rate shock. For
example, in the most recent auction, markét—c}earing prices increased by about 50 percént
over the previous year, while the BGS rates only rose by about 12 or 13 percent.

Rockland’s circumstances are somewhat more complex, since about 90 percent of
its load is Jocated within PIM (about 400 MW) while’the remainder (about 40 MW) is

tied to the New York murket. Hence, the 90 percent ‘PJM[ portion is served in the

statewide auction, whereas the New York market supply portion is separately pmcured,

The final Rockland BGS pricé is a blend of the two sources. However, since the New
York portion of supply is very small, this blending results in only a slight increase over
the PIM auction results. . | |

HOW COULD PCL&P PARTICIPATE?
If the PIM interconnection is accomplished, the PCL&P load could be included in the
annual Rockland BGS auction thereby slightly increasing the size of the audioned load.
Once the power is procured, PCL&P could reimburse Rockland for the cost of serving its

load at the BGS rate. PCL&P would obtain the advantages of contract laddering and
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scale economics of the larger auction. Rockland may also benefit slightly from (a)
having a larger load to bid out in the auction; (b} having Pike contribute pro rata to the
auction’s administrative costs; and (¢) increasing the kpercen«taga of the total Rockland
load in PIM (i.c., the higher cost New York portion would be slightly “diluted” in
calculating the BGS blended price).

ARE THERE DISADVANTAGES TO THIS APPROACH?
Yes, there may be sevcral. First, 1 assume that this approa&h must obtain both

Pennsylvania and New Jersey approvals, and there is no assurance the approvals of both

 states will be granted. Second, there is a timing problem. The first BGS auction after

this case presumably will occur in February 2008 (with a contract start datebf June). Ifa
three-year laddering approach is used, the PCL&P & load would not be fully integrated
until June 2010. In the interim, PCL&P must procure power for the remaining one»third
and two thirds qf its load. Finally, we have no way of knowing whether dn a long-term
basis New Jersey will retain this framework or adopt a new POLR model. This leaves a
significant long-term uncertainty for retail customers. |
SUPPOSE THAT A PIM INTERCONNECTION CANN,OT BE ACHIEVED?
In that case, integration with the New Jersey statewide auction probably would not be
feasible. The only potential affiliate arrangement then \a;ouid be to include the PCL&P
Joad with the Rockland New York market procurement. This would likely involve a
significantly higher cost, based on the prevailing PIM versus New York price differences.
WHAT DO YOU CONCLUDE?

In the event the Sussex acquisition cannot take place, the Company should pursue

| imegrating the PCL&P procurement for POLR supplies with the annual New Jersey

process, as described above. This should include the PIM interconnection as discussed

by OCA witness Mr. Lanzalotta.
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Retail Choice as Mitigation

' CAN RETAIL COMPETITION MITIGATE THE SEVERE PROBLEMS
CURRENTLY FACED BY PCL&P CUSTOMERS?

In theory, this could help, but all ‘available information to date (and most stakeholder

opinion) suggests that mitipation of cxpensivé POLR service fr‘om retail choice is

unlikely. For example, ‘Recommendation (5) of the Law Bureau report (page 19)

observes, “To the extent that wholesale energy prices fali in ihé coming months, there

may be an opportunity for customers 1o realize savings through the PowerSwitch [the

Company’s retail access promotion] program.” That report also suggests facilitating -

iet’ai{ access by waiving Pennsylvania EDI rules. | |

In fact, wholesale market power supply prices have modera(éd both since last
October and even since April (when Direct Energy submitted its bid). It is my
understanding that this has clicited no small customer retail competition activity in the
PCL&P service area. Moreover, 1 have been informed that a similar laék of retail
competition has been the case for other small Pennsylvania electrics, post rate cap. In the
case of PCL&P, the Commission provided the requested waivers of its rules in its April
20, 2006 Order, and this has not changed things.

WHAT ACCOUNTS FOR THIS LACK OF ACTIVITY? |
A retail marketer mevitab}y incurs fixed costs in entering a given markét, and the PCL&P

load may simply be too small to warrant that expense and effort. Morcover, the greatest

area of competitive retail of activity for other utilities has involved large business

(industrial) customers because the revenues for these customers and potential savings are

large relative to transaction costs.
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PCL&P has stated its intent to be supportive of efforts to attract competitive EGSs
1o s service area through its PowerSwiltch program. However, the Company has

candidly acknowledged the barriers to this happening.

Other [post rate cap] challenges to the implementation of retail
competition in Pike’s service territory remain. The size {i.e., only
4,500 electric customers), location vis-3-vis transmission access,
and load characteristics of Pike’s service territory (i.e., residential
and small commercial) present fundamental difficulties in
implementing retail competition. (Comments, March 3, 2006,
Docket No, P-00052168) -

Q. HAS THE COMMISSION ADDRESSED THE EFFICACY OF RETAL

| COMPETITION AS A MEANS OF MITIGATING THE COMPANY'’S RATE
SHOCK PROBLEM? |

A.  Yes. The Commission iu its April 20, 2006 Order in Docket No. P-00062205 sought to

be supportive of future opportunities for retail competition, but at the same time it was

realistic about near-term benefits. The Order noted:

No Party argued that adoption of the New York O&R retail supplier
protocols and procedures, combined with a voluntary purchase of
receivables program, would be sufficient to attract competitive
offers to the Pike County service area. The OCA provided,
perhaps, the most detailed explanation as to why this approach
would be unsuccessful. Among the barriers were significant market
entry costs, such as customer acquisition costs, customer
information and service record costs, sales costs, and start-up costs
which ¢an be spread over a small aumber of customers. (pages 10-
1) '

As fmcntioncd earlier, there has been little if zmy reﬁzﬁ[ éoinpétition activity for
small customers since April of this year despite moderating wholesale market costs.
Realistically, we cannot look to retail access as lhekso}ution since it ,can"‘not overcome the
underlying structure problems faced by PCL&P. Commniission waivers of regulatory

requirements are not likely to change that reality.

o SR
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V.  CONCLUSION
WHAT DO YOU CONCLUDE?

Sussex has stepped forward in this case to provide an attractive pear-term and long-term

~ solution to the issues raised in both the Commission®s investigation and the County of

Pike et al. Compliant. Available information indicates that the Sussex cost structure
(supported by the Allegheny G&T portfolio) is both moderate and will be stable on a

long-run basis. The Company has provided no convincing reason for opposing this

- favorable resolution.

If this acquisition cannot be completed. 1 recommend (a) tﬁé Company pursue the
lowq:osi PIM interconnection identified by Mr. Lanzalotta; and (b) pursue a possible
integration wnth the Rockland BGS. While likely superior to the “business as usual”
appmach,' the Rockland BGS integration introduces important uncertainties and
complications. This reinforces my conclusion that a Sussex acquisition is clearly the best
option available for all concerned.

DOES THIS CONCLUDE YOUR DIRECT TESTIMONY?

Yes, it does,
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MATTHEW I. KAHAL

Mr. Kahal is currently an independent consulting economist, specializing in energy economics,
public utility regulation and financial analysis. Over the past two decades, his work has
-encompassed electric utility integrated resource planning (IRP), power plant licensing and a wide |
range of utility financial issues. In the financial area he has conducted numerous cost of capital
studies and addressed other financial issues for electric, gas, telephone and water utilities. Mr. |}
Kahal's work 1n recent years has shifted to electric utility restructuring, mergers and competition. |
‘Mr. Kahal has provided expert testimony on more than 250 occasions before state and federal
regulatory commissions and the U.S. Congress. His testimony has covered need for power,
integrated resource planning, cost of capital, purchased power practices and contracts, merger
| economics, industry restructuring and various other regulatory policy issues,
Education:

B.A. (Economics) - University of Maryland, 1971.

M.A. (Economics) - University of Maryland, 1974.

Ph.D. candidate - University of Maryland, completed all course work
and qualifying examinations.

Previcus Employment:
1981-2001 - Exeter Associates, Inc. (founding Principal).

1980-1981 - Member of the Economic Evaluation Directorate, The Aerospace
Corporation, Washington, D.C. office.

1977-1980 - Economist, Washington, D.C. consulting firm,

1972-1977 - Research/Teaching Assistant and Instructor, Depmmem of E:.onomlcs
University of Maryland (College Park).

1975-1977 -  Lecturer in Business/Economics, Montgomery College.

Professional Work Experience:

Mr. Kahal has more than twenty years experience managing and conducting consulting
assignments relating to public utility economics and regulation. In 1981, he and five colleagues

| founded the firm of Excter Associates, Inc. and for the next 20 years he served as a Principal and §
| corporate officer in the firm. During that time, he supervised multi-million dollar support :




contracts with the State of Maryland and directed the terhnical work conducted both by Exeter
professional staff and numerous subcontractors. Additionally, Mr. Kahal took the lead role at
Exeter in consulting to the firm’s other governmental and private clients in the areas of financial
analysis, utility mergers, electric restructuring and utility purcisase power contracts.

At the Aerospace Corporation, Mr, Kahal served as an economic consultant to the Strategic
Petroleum Reserve (SPR). In that capacity he participated in a detailed financial assessment of
the SPR, and developed an econometric forecasting model of U.S. petroleum industry
inventories. That study has been used to determine the extent to which private sector petroleum
stocks can be expected to protect the U.S. from the impacts of oil import interruptions.

'Before entering consulting, Mr, Kahal held faculty positions with the Department of Economics
at the University of Maryland and with Montgomery College teaching courses on economic i
 principles, business and economic development. | ~

| Publications and Consulting Reporis:

Projected Electric Power Demands of the Bammore Gas and Electric Company, M aryland Power |
Plant Siting Program, 1979. ‘

Projected Electric Power Demands of the Allegheny Power System, Maryland Power Plant
Siting Program, January 1980.

An Econometric Forecast of Electric Enerpy and Peak Demand on the Delmarva Peninsula,
| Maryland Power Plant Siting Program, March 1980 (wnh Ralph E. Miller).

A BenefitVCost Methodology of the Marginal Cost Pncmg of Tennessee Valley Auathority
Electricity, prepared for the Board of Directors of the Tennessee Valley Authority, April i980

AnE valuatxon of the Delmarva Power and Light Company Generating Capacity Profile and
Expansion Plan, (Interim Report), prepared for the Delaware Office of the Public Advocate, J uly A
| 1980, (with Sharon L. Mason). :

i Rhode Island-DOE Electric Utilities Demonstration Project, Third Interim Report on Preliminary .\
1 Anatvsm of the Experimaental Results, prepared for the Economic Regulatory Administration,
U.S. Department of Energy, July 1980.

| Petroleum Inventories and the Strategic Petroleum Reserve, The Aerospace Corporation,
prepared for the Strategic Petroleum Reserve Office, U.S. Depaxtment of Energy, December
1980. ‘

Alternatives to Central Station Coal and Nuclear Power Generation, prepared for Argonne '
National Laboratory and the Office of Utility Systems, U.S. Depanment of Energy, August 1981, §




“An Econometric Methodology for Forecasting Power Demands,” Conducting Need-for-Power
Review for Nuclear Power Plants (D.A. Nash, ed.), U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission, -
NUREG-0942, Det,embcr 1982.

i %xdte Regulatory Attitudes Toward Fuel Expense Isques, prepared for the Elecmc Power
Research Institute, July 1983, (with Dale E. Swan).

"Problems in the Use of Econometric Methods in Load Forecasting,” Adjusting to Regulatory,
Pricing and Marketing Realities (Hatry Trebing, ed.), Institute of Public Utilities, Michigan State
- University, 1983, ‘

Proceedings of the Maryland Conference on Electric Load Forecasting, (editér and contributing
author), Maryland Power Plant Siting Program, PPES-83-4, October 1983.

"The Impacts of Utility-Sponsored Weatherization Programs: The Case of: ‘Maryland Utilities,"
 (with others), in Government and Energy Policy (Richard L. Ttteilag, ed.), 1983. '

Power Plant Cumulative Environmental Impact Report, contributing author, (Paul E. Miller, ed.)
Maryland Department of Natural Resources, January [984.

Projected Electric Power Demands for the Potomac Electric Power Company, three volumes
| with Steven L.. Estomin), prepared for the Maryland Power Plant Siting Program, March 1984,

» An Assessment of the State-of-the-Art of Gas Uiiiity Load Forecasting,” (with Thomas Bacon,
1 Jr. and Steven L.. Estomin), published in the Proceedings of the Fourth NARUC Biennial
.,Rc;zulamrv Information Conference, 1984.

"Nuckar Power and Investor Perceptions of Risk,” (with Ralph E. Miller), published in The
Energy Industrics in Transition: 1985-2000 (John P. Weyant and Dorothy Shefficid, eds.), 1984,

"I‘he Fmdnu(ﬂ Impact of Potential Department of Energv Rate Recommendauons on the
(‘cxmmanwedlth Edison Company, prepared for the U.S. Department of Energy, October 1984.

' "I)xscussxon Comments ! pubhshed in Impact of Deregulation and Market Forces on Pubiic
| Utilities: The Future of Regulation (Harry Trebing, ed.), msntute of Public Utilities, Michigan
State Umvermtyi, 1985

~ Art Econometri¢ Forecast of the Elecmc Power Loads of Baltimore Gas and Electric Company,
t two volumes (with others), prepared for the Maryland Power Plant Siting Program, 1985.

A Survey and Eva]uduon of Demand Forecast Methods in the Gas Utility Industry, prepared for
the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio, Forecasting Division, November 1985, (with Terence
| Manuel).




A Review and Evaluation of the Load Forecasts of Houston Lighting & Power Companv and
 Central Power & Light Company -- Past and Present, prepared for the Texas Public Utility -
Ccmmxsswn December 1985, (thh Marvin H, Kahn).

Power Plant Cumulative Environmental Impact Report for Maryland, principal author of three of |
the eight chapters in the report (Paul E. Miller, ed.), PPSP-CEIR-5, March 1986.

“Potential Emissions Reduction from Conservation, Load Management, and Alternative Power,"
published in Acid Deposition in Maryland: A Report to the Governor and General Assembly,
Maryland Power Plant Research Program, AD-87-1, January 1987.

Determination of Retrofit Costs at the Oyster Creek Nuclear Generating Station, March 1988,
preparcd for Versar, Inc., New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection.

Excess Deferred Taxes and the Telephone Utility Industry,
' National Association of State Utility Consumer Advocates.

April 1988, prepared on behalf of the

| Toward a Proposed Federal Policy for _I'ndepcndegt Pow'er Producers, comments prepared on
behalf of the Indiana Consurner Counselor, FERC Docket EL87-67-000, November 1987,

Review and Discussion of Reguiatxons Governing Bidding Programs, prepared for the
_ Pennsylvanm Office of Consumer Advocate, June 1988.

| A Review of the Proposed Revisions to the FERC Administrative Rules on A»voidcd Costs and
| Related Issues‘ prepared for the Pennsylvania Office of Con’sumer Advocate, April 1988.

'Review and Comuments on the FERC NOPR Concerning Independent Power Producers, prepared
for the Pennsylvamd Office of Consumer Advocate, Junc 1988.

The Costs to Marylang Utilities and Ratepayers of an Acid Rain Control Strategy -~ An Updated
Analxs:s, prepared for the Maryland Power Plant Research Program October 1987, AD 88»4

| “Comments.” in New Repulatory and Management Strategies in a Clmngmg Market
Environment (Harry M. Trebing and Patrick C. Mann, editors), Proceedings of the Institute of
Public Ulities Exghtecnth Annual Conference, 1987. ,

Electric Power Resource Planning for the Potomac Electric Power Compmy prepared for the i
‘Maryland Power Plant Research Program, July 1988,

' Power Plant (,umulauve Environmental [mpact Report for Maryland (Thomas E. Mdgctte ed. )
authored two chapters, November 1988, PPRP-CEIR-6.

Resource Planning and Competitive Bidding for Delmarva Power & Light Company, October
1990, prepared for the Maryland Department of Natural Resources (with M. Fullenbaum).




| Hec,tnc Power Rate Increases and the Cleveland Area Economy, prepared for the Northem Ohio §
Areawxde Coordinating Agency, October 1988.

An Economic and Need for Power Evaluation of Baltimore Gas & Electric Company's Perryman |

Plant, May 1991, prepared for the Maryland Department of Natural Resources (Wlth M.
P’uﬂenbaum)

The Cost of Equity Capital for the Bell Local Exchange Companies in a New Era of Regulation,
1 October 1991, presented at the Atlantic Economic Society 32nd (‘onfercnce Washington, D.C.

A Need for Power Review of Delmarva Power & Light Company’s Dorchester Unit 1 Power
Plant, March 1993, prepared for the Maryland Department of National Resources (with M.
| Fullenbaum)

The AES Warrior Run Project: Impact on Western Maryland Economic Activity and Electric
Rates, February 1993, prepared for the Maryland Power Plant Research Program (with Peter
Hall).

An Economic Perspective on Competition and the Electric Utility Industry, Novembar 1994,
- Prepured for the Electric Consumers’ Alliance.

PEPCO's Clean Air Act Compliance Plan: Status Re ort, prepared for the Maryland Power Plant
Research Plan, January 1995 (w/Diane Mountain, Enwronmcntal Resources Management, Inc.).

The FERC Open Access Rulemaking: A Review of the Issues, prepared for the Indiana Office |
of Uti]ity Consumer Counselor and the Pennsylvania Office of Consumer Advocate, June 1995.

A Stdtu‘, Report on Electric Utility. Restructunng issues for Maryland, prepared for the
‘Maryland Power Plant Research Program, November 1995 (with Daphne Psacharopoulos).

Modeling the Financial fmpacts on the Bell Regional Holding Companies from Changcs in
Access Rates, prepared for MCI Corporation, May 1996. ‘

The CSEF Elecine Deregulation Study: Economic Miracle or the Econoniists’ Cold Fusion?,
prepared for the Electric Consumers’ Alliance, Indianapolis, Indxand, October 1996.

| Reducing Rates for Interstate Access Service: Financial Impacts on the Bell Regional Holding
Companies, prepared for MCI Corporation, May 1997.

| "’I‘heNew Hampshire Retail Competition Pilot Program: A Preliminary Eva\hation, July 1997,
prepared for the Electric Consumers’ Alliance (with Jerome D. Mierzwa).




I Electric Restructuring and the Environrpent: Issue Identification for Marvland, March 1997,
prepared for the Maryland Power Plant Research Program (with Environmental Resource
Management, Ine.)

An Analysis of Electric Utility Embedded Power Supply Costs, prepared for Power-Gen
International Conference, Dallas, Texas, December 1997,

Market Power Qutlook for Generation Supply in Louisiana, December 2000, prepared for the
Louisiana Public Service Commission (with others)‘

A Review of Issues Concerning Electric Power Capacily Markets, prepared for the Maryland
Power Plant Research Program, December 2001 (with B. Hobbs and J. lnon)

“The Economic Feasibility of Air Emissions Controls at the Brandon Shorcs and Morgantown
Coal-fired Power Plants, February 2005, (prepared for the Chesapeake Bay Foundation).

} The Economic Feasibility of Power Plant Retirements on the Entergy System, September 2005
with Phil Hayet (prepared for the Louisiana Public Service Commission).

 Expert Report on Capital Structure, Equity and Debt Costs, prepared for the Edmonton Regional
Water Customers Group, August 30, 2006.

Maryland’s Ommm to Reduce and Stabilize Electric Power Prices Following Restructuring, with
 Steven L. Estomin, prepared for the Power Plant Research Program, Maryland Department of
| Natural Resources, September 2006.

Conference and Workshop Presentations:

| “Workshop on State Load Forecasting Program«; sponsored by the Nuclear Regulatory
Commission and Oak Rxdgc National Laboratory, February 1982 (presentation on forecastmg
methodology). ;

Fourteenth Annual Conference of the Michigan State University Institute for Public Utilities,
December 1982 (presentation on problems in forecasting).

 Conference on Conservation and Load Management, sponsored by the Massachusetts Energy
Facilities Siting Council, May 1983 (presentation on cost-benefit criteria).

Maryland Conference on Load Forecasting, sponsored by the Maryland Power Plant Siting
Program and the Maryland Public Service Commission, June 1983 (presentation on
overforecasting power demands).

The 5th Annual Meetings of the International Association of Energy Economists, June 1983
1 (presentation on evaluating weatherization programs).




“The NARUC Advanced Regulatory Studies Program (presented lectures on capacity planning for §
electric utilities), February 1984.

“The 16th Annual Conference of the Institute of Public Utilities, Michigan State University
(discussant on phase-in and excess capacity), December 1984.

U.S. Depdrtmtm of Energy Utilities Conference, Las Vegas, chada (presentation of current and
future regulatory issues), May 1985.

“The 18th Annual Conference of the Institute of Public Utilities, Michigan State University,
Williamsburg, Virginia, December 1986 (discussant on cogeneration}.

The NRECA Conference on Load Forecasting, sponsored by the National Rural Electric
| Cooperative Association, New Orleans, Louisiana, December 1987 (presentation on load
forecast accuracy).

The Second Rutgers/Ncw Jersey Department of Commerce Annual Conference on Lnergy Policy
in the Middle Atlantic States, Rutgers University, April 1988 (presentation on spot pricing of
| electricity).

The NASUCA 1988 Mid-Year Meeting, Annapolis, Maryland, June 1988, sponsored by the
National Association of State Utility Consumer Advocates (presentation on the FERC elecmczty :
avoided cost NOPRs).

“The Thirty Second Atlantic Economic Society Conference, Washington, D.C., October 1991
(presentation of a paper on cost of capital issues for the Bell Operating Companies).

The NASUCA 1993 Mid-Year Meeting, St. Louis, Missouri, sponsored by the National
 Association of State Utility Consumer Advocates, J une 1993 (presemauon on regulatory issues
{ concerning electric utility mergers).

The NASUCA und NARUC annual meetings in New York City, November 1993 (presentations
- | and panel discussions on the emerging FERC policies on transmission pricing).

 |'The NASUCA annual meetings in Reno, Nevada, November 1994 (presentation concerning the
FERC NOPR on stranded cost recovery). :

U.S. Departmcnt of Energy Utilities/Energy Management Workshop, March 1995 (prescnfatxon
concerning electric utility competition).

 The 1995 NASUCA Mid-Year Meeting, Breckenridge, Colorado, June 1995, (presentatmn
concerning the FERC rulemaking on electric transmission open access).




The 1996 NASUCA Mid-Year Meeting, Chicago, IHinois, June 1996 (presemdtxon conucmmg
electric utility merger issues).

{ Conference on “Restructuring lhc Electric Industry,” sponsored by the National Consumers
League and Electric Consumers Alliance, Washington, D.C., May 1997 (preSentauon on retatl
access pilot programs).

“Ihe 1997 Mid-Atlantic Conference of Regulatory Utilities Commissioners (MARUC), Hot
3 Springs, Virginia, July 1997 (presentation concerning electric deregulation issues}.

| Power-Gen *97 Inernational Conference, Dallas, Texas, December 1997 (presentation
| concerning utility embedded costs of generation supply).

‘Consumet Summit on Electric Competition, sponsored by the National Consumers League and
Electric Consumers” Alliance, Washington, D.C., March 2001 (presentanon concerning
-generation supply and reliability).

| National Association of State Utility Consumer Advocates, Mid-Year Mcetings, Austin, Texas,
June 1617, 2002 (presenter and panelist on RTO/Standard Market Design issues).

Louisiana State Bar Association, Public Utility Section, October 2, 2002. (Presentation on
Performance-Based Ratemaking and panelist on RTO issues). Baton Rouge, Louisiana.

| Virginia State Corporation Commission/Virginia State Bar, Twenty Second National Regulatory
Conference, May 10, 2004. (Presentation on Electric Tmnsrmssmn Systemn Planning.)
Williamsburg, Vlrg:,mm
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Please state your name, affiliation and business address.

’?etcr 1. Lanzalotta, Lanzalotta & Associates LLC, 67 Royal Pointe Drive, Hilton Head

Island SC29926.

Please describe your educational background.

1 am a graduate of Renssclaer Polytechnic Institute, where I received a Bachelor of
Science degree in Electric Power Engineering. In addition, 1 hold a Masters degree in
Business Administration with a concentration in Finance from Loyola College in
Baltimore.

Please describe your profes‘siob.al experience,

I am a Principal of Lanzalotta & Associates LLC, which commenced operations in

January 2001. Prior to that, T was a partner of Whitfield Russell Aséociates, with which 1

had been associated since March 1982, My areas of expertise include electric utility

system planning, and operation, electric scrvice reliability, cost of service, cost allocation,
and utility rate design. 1 am a registered professional engineer in the states of Maryland
and Connecticut. My prior professional experience 1s d,escn‘bycdk in Exhibit PIL-1, which
is attached hereto. | |

I have been involved with the planning, operation, and analysis of electric utility systems
and with utility regulatory matters, including reliability-related matters, certification of
new facilities, cost of service, cost allocation, and rate design, as an employee of and as a

consultant to a number of privately- and publicly-owned electric utilities, regulatory

~ agencies, developers, and electricity users over a period exceeding thirty years.

Have you given expert testimony in any judicial or quasi-judicial proceedings?

Yes, | have presented expert testimony before the Federal Energy Regulatory

Commisston and before regulatory commissions and other judicial and legislative bodies
i 20 states, the District of Columbia, and the Provinces of Alberta and Ontario. My
clients have included utilities, regiulaiory agencies, ratepayer advocates, independent
producers. industrial consumers, the federal government, and varioﬁs city and state
government agencies. The proceedings in which I have testified are listed in Exhibit
PJL-2.

Direct Testimony of Peter Lanzalotta ; ‘ ~ Page |
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What is the purpose of your testimony?

The purpose of my testimony, on beha\,f of the Office of Consumer Advocate (“OCA™), is
(1) to review the attractiveness of available options by which the electric system of Pike
County Light & Power Company (“PCL&P” or “the Company™) can be Ihtercannected to
the electric system operated by PJM and its members,' and (2) to review the electric

service reliability that the Company has provided to its clectric service area,

At the direction of the OCA, [ have conducted a review of discovery responses that have
been produced m this proceeding, as well as prior studies that have looked at
interconnecting the PCL&P electric service territory to electric systems in the PIM
system. I have also reviewed other documents summarizing the testimony at the public |
hearings concerning PCL&P's electric service, and other documents relevant to.this
proceeding.  In addition, 1 visited the PCL&P system in August 2006, met with
r‘epresemativczs of PPL Electric Utilities. Inc. (“PPL”}, and with a representative of
SuSsex Rural Electric Cooperative (“Sussex™), and reviewed electric facilities that

bordered the PCL&P electric service area.

-What conclusions have you reached?

My conclustons are as follows:

. The service area of PCL&P can be interconnected to the 34.5 kV electric system
of Sussex and can be served as part of Sussex's electric system in PIM for
significantly less investment than indicated in the prior studies preparéd by the
Company. | ‘

2. Electne service ’relia’biiity\ on the PCL&P electric system has worsened
significantly since the merger of Consolidated Edison and Orange & Rockland, of

- which PCL&P is a subsidiary. The avei*age PCL&P electric service customer
expcﬁchced more than 16 hours of electric outages in 2004, and more than 18
hours of outages in 2005, as compared to an average of barely more than 3 hours

(3 hours, 9 minutes) in the six years leading up to the merger.

¥

PIM 15 the FERC.approved Regional Transmission Operator that oversees the bulk transnussion grid and

organized enerpgy markets for most of Pennsylvania

Direet Testimony of Peter Lanzalotta , L Page 2
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Please describe the Company and its service area,

PCL&P is a tiny investor-owned electric and gas utility in Pennsylvania, which, for many

years, was a subsidiary of Orange & Rockland Utilities, Inc. (*O&R”), an investor-owned

electric unhty in New York, just across the Deiawarc River from the PCL&P service

~area. Q&R also has a utility subsidiary in New Jersey named Rockland Electric

Company.

In July, 1999 O&R was acquired by Consolidated bdxson Inc. (“ConEd"™), a large New
York um:ty with an electric system and around New York City. With this acquisition,
PCL&P went from being a small piece of a larger utility, to being an nfinitesimal piece
of one of the large‘st and most complex utilities in the US, in terms of revenue and system
complexity, This acquisition seems to coincide with a deterioration of PCL&P’s electric

service reliability performance, as will be discussed in detail, later in my testimony.

The Company’s 51 square mile clectric service area is located in northeastern
Pennsylvania and abuts both New York and New Jersey, being separated from both by
the Delaware River. Most of the Company’s 4,400-plus customers are located in the
extreme southern and eastern portions of the Company's clectric service area. The
northern and western areas of the Company’s service area are sparsely populated and
have limited development potential due to the presence of substantial state gameland and
state forest areas. The bulk of the Company’s electric service customers are supplied by

two 34.5 kV circuits, which both originate in New York.

The first of these 34.5 kV circuits, line 7-6-34, runs overhead from the Port Jervis

substation in New York, crosses the Delaware River in conduit along a road bridge over

the niver, and then goes overhead again, serving appraximatcly 2,700 customers, mostly
in the vicinity of Milford, PA. ' ’ ‘

The second 34.5 kV circuit, line 5-10-34, originates in the Cuddybackvilfe substation in
New York, runs overhead to the vicinity of the Port Jervis substation, crosses the

Delaware River on an aerial crossing, and primarily supplies the Matamoras substation,

~ Direct Tesumony of Peter Lanzalotta ‘ Page 3
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which feeds two 13.2 kV distribution circuits that'suppiy about 1,700 customers in the

Borough of Matamoras.

There are two other 34.5 kV circuits that originate in substations in New York and which
serve about 150 electrde customers in the northern part of the Company’s service area.
Metropolitan Edison Company (“MetEd™) also serves some 44 electric customers located

on the boundaries of PCL&P’s electric service area.

Interconnection Costs

0.

Please describe the npﬁons you considered for interconnecting the PCL&P ciectric

service area to PIM.

Other than O&R, there are at least three different electric utility service areas that abut

the electric service of the Company, PPL, Metropolitan Edison Company (“I\{et*h‘d”’),
and Sussex Rural Electric Cooperative (“Sussex”). [ considered interconnections with
each of these three.

Please describe the possible PJM intercounections that have been considered by
PCL&P to this point? | |

The Company studied interconnecting with PJM through ties pn’marily with PPL, and to
a lesser extent with Met-Ed. The PPL and Met-Ed a’hematives that have been considered
in studies prepared by the Company involve extending the 69 kV transmission line that
currently sup‘pliés Met-Ed’s and PPL’s substations in the area 8 miles or so, to a point
closer to the load centers within PCL&P’s electric service territory, and building a
distribution substation with outgoing 34.5 kV circuits to supply electric power to

PCL&P's electric customers. The Company, in a May, 2006 updated analysis of the

- costs and benefits of interconnecting the PCL&P electric system with PJM, estimated that

this approach requires some $13.6 million in investment to extend the 69 kV line (38

- million), to build the new distribution substation {$3.6 million}, and o reconfigure the

PCL&P distribution system so that it can be fed from the west, rather than from the east,

as is currémly the case ($2 million).

Lirect Testimony of Peter Lanzalotia ; Page 4




10

o
o

12
13
14
15
16

17

18
19
20
21

2

23

24

25
26

27

28
- 29
30

[Co T > YRR S S & SN SIS L 5 R

What steps did you take to consider these alternatives? v

I met with representatives from PPL in August, 2006 and reviewed the transmission,
substation, and distribution facilities that were in and around PPL's Twin Lakes
substation. We discussed the nature of their facilities in the area and some of the
implications of trying to serve the PCL&P electric service load from their facilities. ‘ |
What are your conclusions about intefconnecﬁng; with PJM through a 69kV
transmission line from the PPL or Met-Ed service territories at this time?

All in all, interconnection options that require a transmission line extension, and then
construction of a new substation, are too expensive to permit PCL&P o be economically
mterconnected with PJM. The transmission line extension costs at least $8 mitlion, and
the new substation costs another $3.6 million. Interconnection options that can permit

the avoidance of these costs will be much more financially viable options.

Did the Company’s study consider all possible options for interconnecting with
PIM? | | |

‘No. The prior interconnection studies by the Company did not look at picking up the

PCL&P load by simply extending existing distribution circuits from existing PPL or Met-
Ed substations, or at extending new distribution circuits from these existing substations,

The limited data available suggest that it is possible that distribution circuits of this type

could be used to supply the Company’s electric service area, although reinforcement

niight be required.

For example, Met-Ed serves about 44 electric service customers that are located on the

edges of PCL&P’s clectric scrvice area. Because little is known about the distribution
circuits to which these customers are connected, it is impossible to say whether they are
capable of picking up the entire PCL&P load, currently about 16 MW, without

substantial modification or reinforcement,

Alternatively, Met-Ed's Walker substation, located near the current end of the 69 kV line
discussed above, has 34.5 kV distribution facilities that extend towards the Milford load
center in the southern tip of PCL&P’s electric service area.  The substation has one 69

kV-to-34 5 kV transformer, and appears (o have space for another. There appears to be

Direct Testimony of Peter Lanzalotta ; - Page 5
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at least one 34.5 kV distribution circuit exiting the Walker substation and running south
along US Rt. 6 towards Milford. The PCL&P lvad could potentially be served out of this
substation over existing and new 34.5 kV distribution lines.  Even if the existing
substation transformer does not have the capacity to handle the additional PCL&P
electric loads, the addition of a 69 kV-to-34.5 kV transformer at the substation could
remedy this. To add a substation transformer of from 20 to 25 MVA would cost from
$500,000 to $600,000, much less than the $3.6 million included in the Company’s study
to construct a new substation. '

Is it possible to interconnect with PPL’s substation without extending a 69 kV
transmission line to PCL&P’s load centers?

Yes, the potential also exists for the PCL&P tb be served from distribution circuits from
the PPL Twin Lakes substation, right across the street from the Met-Ed Walker
substation, although such potential is not as attractive as that of using distribution circuits
supplied out of Walker. That is because the Twin Lakes substation has a secondary
distribution voltage of about 12 kV, This voltage does not match up well with the
PCL&P system, which is largely supplied by 34.5 kV circuits. This voltage also typically
does ‘not do as well as 34.5 kV does in carrying loads located at a distance, due to
increased losses ahd voltage drops for the lower voltage. |

Please discuss the interconnection costs associated with the Sussex option.

Sussex is located 1o the east of the Milford load center area, in the southem portion of the

Company’s electric service area, and is separated from the Company’s service area by the
p N

~ Delaware River. Sussex has a 34.5 kV circuit, which has the capacity to pick up the

PCL&P electric load that is approximately one mile from the river. Based on
conversations with Sussex, I estimate that the PCL&P electric system could be initially
hooked up 1o the Sussex 34.5 kV, with an aerial river crossing and anywhe,ie from five to
thirteen miles of 34.5 kV construction to connect and initially integrate the two systems,
for as little a5 $1 to $2 million.

What is included in your cost estimate of $1 to $2 million?

These costs are made up of three major components, The first is the cost to run a 34,5 kV

Tine from the existing Sussex facilities to Interconnect with a point somewhere on the

PCL&P distribution system. Based on my conversations with Sussex, | have estimated

Lurect Testumony of Peter Lanzalotta Page 6
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“that nio more than 3 miles of 34.5 kV construction would be needed for this line, at a cost

estimated by Sussex to be up to $115,000 per mile, for a subtotal of $345,000. If less
34.5 kV line construction is nceded to make the interconnection, then the remainder of
the funds would be available for system reconfiguration (see the third cost component

discussed below).

The second major cost component is the cost to cross the Delaware River. PCL&P
estimated that it would cost about $275,000 fo replace the existing aerial river crossing it
currently uses to deliver power to the PCL&P service area from Port Jervis, NY. 1 am

using PCL&P’s estimate of an aerial 34.5 kV Delaware river erossing in my analysis.

~The third major cost component is the cost to reconfigure the PCL&P system in order to

prepare it 1o be fed from the Sussex 34.5 kV circuit. While I have not performed a
reconfiguration study, I have estimated a range of coustruction costs to perform a
reconfiguration, which range from the equivalent of 2 miles of line construction to the
equivalent of 10 miles of line construction. The costs for this would range from
$230,000 to $1,150,000, again based on estimates 1 received from Sussex.

These costs sum up to a rénge of from $850,000 to $1,770,000, to which I have applied a
15% contingency factor?, bringing my estimated costs up to a range roughly from $1
miltion to $2 million. o |
Would this option eliminate the need for maintaining the existing interconnection
with O&R?

No. Because, this inilial configuration would be dependent on a single feed from Sussex,

* 1eliability concerns would recommend that, while this initial configuration s in effect,

one or more of the 34.5 kV interconnections to O&R substations be retained until further

- interconnections with the Sussex system, or other sources of supply, are developed. A

similar requirement was part of the interconnection to PIM performed earlier by the

Estimators typically apply a range of contingency factors to cost estimates

Direer Testmony of Peter Lanzolotta : ' Page 7
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PCL&P. Maintaining this interconnection adds reliability to both the PCL&P system and

the O&R system.

What do you conclude regarding interconnection with PJM?

The cost to connect and integrate the PCL&P and Sussex systems are far less than the
cost of alternatives that require miles of 69 kV line extensions and/or the construction of
2 new substation with a 69kV to 34.5 kV substation transformer, as was assumed in the

Company’s prior PJM interconnection studies. The Company’s prior studies assume the
, p P

- gonstruction of an 8 mile 69 kV transmission line, at a cost of $1 million per mile. The

Sussex interconnection makes use of an existing 34.5 kV circuit that is a mile or less’
away from the edge of the Company’s service area, so a shorter line can be used for the
interconnection. Also, the 34.5 kV line that Sussex would use for the interconnection is
much less expensive per mile. I use an estimated cost for this construction of $115,000
per mxl‘e."‘ Finally, the Sussex interconnection makes use of existing substation facﬁzlizies

on the Sussex system, rather than requiring the construction of a new $3.6 million

~ substation, as the Company’s prior interconnection studies assumed. The effect of all this

15 io enable an interconnection for the PCL&P service area to PIM for $1 million to $2

million, as compared to the Company’s estimates of $13.6 million.

Reliability Performance

Please discuss the reliability performance of the PCL&P electric system since the
acquisition of O&R, PCL&P’s parent company, by ConEd.

Electric system reliability performance, as reflected in the Company’s reliability'data, ;
reflects a substantial degradation in the ‘Company‘s electric service reliability

performance since 1999, when ConEd and Q&R were merged.

3

Although 1t 4 mile or less to the edge of the PCP&L system, the edge of the systent may not be the optimal

place for Sussex to interconnect, {included up to three miles of 34.5 kV lne in my estimates for this purpose.

&

Sussex estimated that a 34.5 kV circuit costs them about $100k to $115k per mile.

Dircer Testimony of Peter Lanzalotta ,  Page$8
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What reliability data are used in Pennsy‘!vaniﬁ to look at reliability performance?
Reliability index data is typically used in Pennsylvania to look at electric service
reliability performance. These data include the reliability indices SAIFI, CAIDI], and

SAIDL For each of these indices, o higher number reflects worse performance.

SAIFI refers to the System Average Interruption Freauency Index, and is calculated by
dividmg the total number of sustained customer service interruptions by the total number
of customers served. Fdr a calendar year period, SAIFI represents the average number of
sustaiped electric service interruptions per customer served d,Qrirng that period. SAIFI
may be calculated for time periods other than a calendar year as well. Outages occurring
dunng Major Events are excluded for purposes of repoﬁing and determining compliance

with state reliability regulations.

CAIDI refers to the Customer Average Interruption Duration Index, and is calculated by

dix}iding the sum of the individual customers’ minutes of sustained electric service
interruption by the total number of individual customer interruptions. For a calendar year.
period, CAIDI represents the average number of minutes of electric service interruption
for each customer service interruption during that year, or, put another way, the average

outage duration. CAIDI may be calculated for time periods other than a calendar year as

- well, and is sometimes calculated in hours, rather than in minutes. Qutages occurring

during Major Events are excluded for purposes of reporting and cietemﬁning compliance

with state reliability regulations.

SAIDI refers to the System Average Interruption Duration Index, and is calculated by
dividing the sum of the individual customers’ minutes of sustained electric service
interruption by the total number of customers served. SAIDI can also be calculated by

multiplying SAIF] times CAIDI. For a calendar year period, SAIDI represents the

average number of minutes of electric service interruption experienced by the average

customer for the year. SAIDI may be calculated for time periods other than a calendar

year as well, and is sometimes calculated in hours, rather than in minutes. Outages

Drireet Testimony of Peter Lanzalotiu Page 9
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occurnng during Major Events are cxcluded for purposes of reporting and determining
compliance with state rcliability rcgu!anons | ;

You imentioned that major e¢vents are excluded from reliability indices. Cou}d you
explain this exclusion and the impact it bas on Pike customers?

A Major Event occurs when at least 10% of the customers in an electric utility service
area experience a sustained® electric service interruption. Although the reiiability index

data that excludes outages that occur during Major Events is what is used to evaluate

‘whether the level of electric service reliability has been maintained at pre-restructuring

levels under Chapter 28 of the Public Utility Code, the reliability index data that includes

all outages, including Major Fvents, is more indicative of the clectric service reliability

‘experienced by PCL&P electric customers for the purposes of these cases. This is

because the PCL&P electric system is 0 small, that the lockout of the substation breaker

on either of the two circuits that are the primary sources of electric supply to the PCL&P

service arca is considered a Major Event, whereas, on larger electric systems, which

typically can include hundreds of distribution circuits, the lockout of a single distribution
circuit 18 not censidered a Major Event. Even the 6pcration of a recloser or other
protective device on one of these circuits, taking out only a portion of one of the circuits,
could conceivably interrupt 10% of the Company’s customers and thereby qualify as a
Major Event. This difference in system size means that, for the PCL&P electric system,
the reliability index data that excludes Major Ei«ents, excludes so much outage data, that
the resultant indices are typically less useful than are the similar indices for larger utility
systems. The reliability index data that include all outages, including those that occur
during Major Events, is most useful for purposes of this casc when looking at electric
service reliability from the perspective of the electric service customer.

What does the data show for PCL&P?

Reliability index data for PCL&P for the period 1994 through 2005 are contained in
Table 1, below. These were provided by the Company in réyspunse to interrbgatories‘

Table 1 has two scts of data. One set of data, on the lefi side of Table 1, includes all

“Sustained” interruptions [ast more than five minutes, as compared to “momentary” interruptions which

fast five minutes or less

Direct Tesnmony of Peter Lanzalotta : : Page 10




outage data, including those outages that occur during Major Events. The second set of

2 data, to the right side of Table 1, excludes outages that occur during Major Events.
3 ' ' Table 1 '
e including Major Events | Excluding Major Events
Year | SAIFI | CAIDI | SAIDI | SAIFt | CAIDI | SAIDI
1994 | 325 | 84 274 | 044 | 114 | 50
1995 158 | 142 | 224 | 038 | 179 | 67
1996 1.64 | 115 189 | 022 | 208 | 45
1997 1.15 112 128 | 047 ; 140 | 67
1998 - | 1.33 132 176 042 | 247 | 103
- 19989 L A 143 051 | 181 | 83
2000 261 1 140 366 0.51 357 | 183
2001} 258 | 145 376 035 { 200 | 69
,2002 1409 1156 471 1.05 | 224 234
2003 374 | 112 | 420 | 052 | 184 | 96
2004 | 304 | 318 | 965 | 052 | 172 | 90
2005 | 779 | 141 | 1102 | 185 | 109 202
9495ave | 160 | 118 | 189 | 041 | 175 | 69
00-05ave | 398 | 162 617 0.80 | 208 146
Ratio _ 2.35 1.38 326 | 197 | 118 211

4 | ‘

5 It is clear that, by any of these measures of electric service reliability, that PCL&P’s
6 reliability bas declined since 1999, when PCL&P’s parent company merged with ConEd.
7 Looking 2t the average reliability performance during the 1994 to 1999 period leading up

8 to the merger, as compared to the 2000 to 2005 time period which follows this merger,

9 the frequency of service interruptions, SAIFI, ihe average length of such service
10 interruption, CAIDI, and the average annual minutes of electric service interruptions per
11 customer, SAIDI, have all increased since 1999. The Ratio at the bottom of Table 1
12 reflects the amount of this increase by dividing the post-1999 reliability performance by
13 the reliability performance in the years leading up to and including 1999, Please note
14 that, even if Major Events are excluded, SAIFI (outage frequency) and SAIDI (average
15 outage minutes per year) have roughly doubled for the average PCL&P electric customer

16 since 1999. If Major Events are included, we see that SAIFI has more than doubled since
17 1999 while SAIDI has more than tripled over the same period. |
18
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For the reasons discussed above, as to these cases, electric service reliability

perforrmance. as seen from the customer’s perspective, is most accurately reflected by the
outage data that includes outages that occur during Major Events. This data is shown by

itself in Table 2, below.

Table 2

, Including Major Evenis
Year | SAIFI | CAIDI | SAIDI
1994 | 325 | 84 274
1005 | 1.58 142 224
1996 164 | 115 | 189
1997 | 115 112 | 129
1998 133 | 132 | 1718
1999 118 121 143
2000 261 | 140 | 366
2001 2.58 145 | 376
2002 4.09 115 471
2003 3.74 112 | 420
2004 304 | 318 | 985
2005 779 ] 141 1.102
94.99ave | 169 | 118 | 189
_00-06ave | 3.98 162 | 617
Ratio 2.35 138 3.26

Bascd on the electric service reliability data shown in Table 2 above, it becomeys clear the
extent by which electric service reliability in the PCL&P electric service area has, [rom
the electric customers’ perspectives, declined since 1999, the year in which O&R,
PCL&P*s parent company, was merped with ConEd. Contrasting the six years before the
merger with the six years since the merger, (1) the frequency of electric service outages
(SAIJFI) has increased from 1.69 outages per customer per year to 3.98 outages per year,
an increase of 2.35 times, (2) the average duration of each outage (CAIDI) increased
from 118 niinutes to 162 minutes, an incfease of 1.38 times, and (3} the annual average
minutes of outage per customer (SAIDI) has increased from 189 minutes to a whopping

617 minutes (more than 10 hours) per year, an increase of 3.26 times.

Of particular note are the annual average minutes of clectric service outages per

~ customer, as reflected by the SAIDI index in 2004 and 2005. 1In 2004, the average

Direct Testimony of Peter Lanzalonta , Page 12



PCL&P electric customer saw 965 minutes of electric outages, md}‘e than 16 hours. In

2005, this increased to 1,102 minutes of electric outages per customer, more than 18.5

hours The pre-merger average was 189 minutes of outages per customer per year, about

i

3 hours, 9 minutes per year, It is little wonder than PCL&P’s 'elveétric customers are
displeased with the reliability of their electric service
Q. Do you have any data on what causes contributed to this big increase in electric
outages? |
A Yes The Company has made data available for five years ending in 2005. This data is
- reflected in Table 3, below. '
10 o Table 3

_Analysis of PCL& P's Sustained Outages by Cause and By Year
T e _Customer-Minutes of Sustained Outages
Cuause of Qutage | 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
~ Anmimal | 282,680 | 125803 | 396 | 259 | 17010
Customer Problem o 1 187,474 o . “
Fquipment Failure | 11,804 | 135979 | 499.580 | 85569 | 263.310
Lightning | 389,469 | 678356 | 26,523 | 1,264,668 | 535321
NoCause\Other | 2,850 | 257,052 | 30,626 | 18,510 | 47,120
Non-Company ' , ‘ ‘
_ Accident 51,651 | 70,047 | 418,899 | 1,192,847 | 937,109
__Company Overload | 121,735 | 144,093 | 956 | 21,881 |
PreArranged-Company | 637 170,700 | 32,049 | 659,943
" TreeConfact | 707,346 | 702,550 | 480,180 | 1,582,852 | 2,348,484
Work Error Company | | 8296 | 48 | 3,066
" Total 1,567,535 | 2,009,813 | 1,815,382 | 4,176,754 | 4,833,244

11
12 This data is in the form of customer-minutes of electric service outages by year, by
13 outage cause, and includes all outages, even those that occur during Major Events. The
4 total customer-minutes of outages in 2004 and 2005 exceed 4 million customer minutes,
15 while, i the three previous years, the total was as high as 2 million customer mirtutes
16 ~only in 2002, with 2001 and 2003 well below 2 muillion. The number one contributor to
17  these increases in 2004 and 2005 is tree contact. Other significant contfibutors to these
18 increases are lightning, non-company accidents, and planned outages. While the

19 - Company has less than complete control over things such as trees, lightning, or non-

Direct Tesumony of Peter Lanzalotta R ' Page 13
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company accidents, there are things it could do to lessen the susceptibility of its system to

these types of outage causes. Instead, its electric system seems to be becoming more

susceptible to these outage causes. Note that the customer minutes of outages due to tree

contact in 2005 are more than the total customer minutes of outages from all causes in
2001, 2002, and in 2003.

As for the large number of customer minutes interrupted from planned outages in 2005,
these are under direct control of the Company, which couldn’t find a way to upgrade its
Matamoras substation without inflicting massive service interruptions on a service area
already suffering a huge increase in electric outages. Evén without the outages in 2005

due to planned outages by the Company, 2005 still had more than 4 million customer

- minutes of outages, just as 2004 did. At that level, the Company’s electric customers

would still be experiencing a big increase over the levels in 2001, 2002, and 2003, only
ohc of which had as many as 2 million customer minutes of electric outages.

Has the Company’s eclectric service reliability shown any indications of
improvement in 20067 ,

Through the 12 month period ending with the 2’"’ quarter of 2006, (1) the Company’s
SAIFI was down fo 4.28 outages per year per customer, from 7.79 in 2005, (2) s CAIDI

“bad increased from 141 minutes in 2005 up to 168 minutes, and (3) its SAIDI was down

to 719 minutes of outage per customer per year, from its 2005 level of 1,102 minutes. »
While ‘Outage frequency has improved, outage duration has gotten WOrse, resulting in an
improvcmém in annual average minutes of outage per customer. I nofe that all of the
reliability indices for the twélve months endirig with the second quarter of 2006 are still
less reliable than the post-merger (2000-2005) average reliability indices. This indicates
that reliability performance, while improving over the dismal 2005 levels, is still below
both the Company’s pre-merger re”liébi}ity performance and its post-merger average
reliability performance.

Will becoming part of the Sussex clectric system improve the electric service
reliability seen by electric customers on the PCL&P system?

It is tricky to compare reliability data for two different electric utility systems. This is

because there are many different variables that are reflected in the reliability performance

Dureet Tesumony of Peter Lanzalotta Page 14
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of an electric utility. Service territories may be different. One of the utilities may have
very little heavy vegetation to deal with, thus potentially affecting the frequency of
outages. One of the utilities may have a larger service territory, thus potentially
increasing travel times I‘or outage restoration crews The methods used to collect outage
data can vary from one utility to another, and could affect the apparent reliability
performance. Therefore, care should be taken to try to appreciate the potential pitfalls of
such comparisons. | |

- Also, connecting the PCL&P system to the Sussex system will not necessarily change

some aspects of the reliability performance of the PCL&P system right away. For

example, the frequency of outages tends to reflect, in part. the electric system facilities in

place 1n the field, and how well they are mantained.® Simply connecting PCL&P to

Sussex won't necessarily have an immediate major impact in this regard. However, over

“time, as Sussex’s planning, maintenance. and operating philosophies are increasingly

reflected in the PCL&P distribution system, the reliability performance of the PCL&P

system should increasingly reflect that of the Sussex systern in this aspect.

However, making the PCL&P system part of the Sussex system should be expected to
have an immediate effect, or at least a near-term effect, on the duration of electric service
outages. This is because outage duration tends to reflect, in part, the utility’s
commitment to restoring service when owages oceur. To the extent that Sussex is more
suecessful in quickly restoring electric service after outages on its own system, 1 would
expect such pefformance to have a more immediate impaai on the duration of electric
service outages on the PCL&P system once Sussex takes over the PCL&P system.

Were you able to analyze or evaluate Sussex reliability performance?

Based on the data available, Sussex’s electric service customers have been experiencing
fewer annual average minutes of service outages than PCL&P customers over the past six
years. Table 4, below, reflects the annual average hours and annual average minutes of

electric service interruption per customer for Sussex, with all outages included.

&

This 18 not necessartly the case for outages caused by operating errors, for planned outages to accommodate

work on the systen, or for outages caused by transmission system or generahon problems

Direct Testimony of Peter Lanzalotta ‘ Page 15
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Table 4

! Sussex ’Retiability Data - Sustained Taterruptions

~ AveHours Ave Min %
| PerCustomer | _ Per Customer
120000 223 1338
12001 ) 1.01 60.6
20021 7.54 452.4
2003] 215 129.0
2004 8.0 480.0
120054 335 . 201.0
2006 | 2,09 estimate’ | 125.1

The data reflecting average minutes of electric service interruptions per customer per

year, as kept by Sussex, is roughly equivalent to the SAIDI reliability index for the

PCL&P electric system, which also reflects the average minutes of service interruptions

per customer per year. Since Sussex includes all outages m its reliability data, and does

not exclude outages that occur during “Major Event” types of system problems, the
~ proper comparison is against the PCL&P SAIDI with Major Events included. Table 5

below reflects this comparison.

Table 5
Annual Minutes of Outages Per Customer 1
| _ PCL&P { Sussex
2000 1366 134
2001 376 61 |
2002 471 452
2003 420 129
2004 965 | 480
2005 L102 | 201
2066 {est) 719 | 125
__Average (7yrs) 631 | 226
- | Ratio 2.79

3

‘Diata for 7006 reflects performance through September 2006 The 2006 annual performance was estimated

by extrapolating the last four months of the year, using the average monthly performance far the first eight months.

Direct Testimony of Peter Lanzalotta
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; Although the reliability performance of both utilities vanes significantly from year to
year, the Sussex electric service customers have experienced fewer annual average
‘minutes of outages in every year since 2000. The seven year average annual minutes of
outage per customer is 226 minutes for Sussex, versus 631 minutes for PCL&P_‘ more

than 2.7 times the annual outage minutes for Sussex.

Q. Does this conclude your testimony?
A. Yes, at this time.
f)ﬁﬂ?!‘ 399 DOC
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Prior Experience Of Peter J. Lanzafotta

Mr. Lanzalotta has more than twenty-five years cxperience in electne utility system
planning, power pool operations, distribution operations, electric service reliability, load
and price forecasting, and market analysis and development. Mr. Lanzalotta has appeared

‘as an expert wilness on utility reliability, planning, operation, and rate matters in more

than 75 proceedings in 20 states, the District of Columbia, the Provinces of Alberta and
Ontario, and before the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission. He has developed

‘evaluations of electric utility system cost, value, reliability, and condition. He has

participated in negotiations between utilities and customers or regulators in more than ten
states regarding transmission access, the need for facilities, electric rates, electric service
reliability, the value of electric system components, and system operator structure under
wholesale competition.

Prior to his forming Lanzalotta & Associates LLC in 2001, he was a Partner at Whitfield
Russell Associates for fifteen ycars and a Senior Associate for approximately four years
before that. He holds a Bachelor of Science in Electric Power Engineenng from
Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute and a Master of Business Administration with a con-
centration in Finance from Loyola College of Baltimore.

Prior to joining Whitfield Russell Associates in 1982, Mr, Lanzalotta was employed by
the Connecticut Municipal Electric Energy Cooperative ("CMEEC") as a System
Engineer. He was responsible for providing operational, financial, and rate expertise to
Coop’s budgeting, ratemaking and system planning processes. He participated on behalf
of CMEEC in the Hydro-Quebec/New England Power Pool Interconnection project and
initiated the development of a databasc 1o support CMEEC's pool billing and financial
data needs.

Prior to his CMEEC employment, he served as Chief Engineer at the South Norwalk
(Connecticut) Electric Works, with responsibility for planning, data processing,
engincering, rates and tariffs, generation and bulk power sales, and distribution-
operations, While at South Norwalk, he conceived and inplemented, throngh Northeast
Utilities and NEPOOL, a peak-shaving plan for South Norwalk and a neighboring
municipal electric utility, which resulted in substantial power supply savings. He
programrited and implemented a computer system to perform customer billing and
maintain accounts receivable accounting. He also heiped manage a generating station
overhaul and the undergrounding of the distribution system in South \Iorwalk s
downtowsn.

From 1977 to 1979, Mr. Lanzalotta worked as a ‘public utility consultant for Van Scoyoc
& Wiskup and separately for Whitman Requart & Associates in a variely of positions.
During this time, he developed cost of service, rate base evaluation, and rate design
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impact data to support direct testimony and exhibits in a variety of utility proceedings,
including utility price squeeze cases, gas pipeline rates, and wholesale electric rate cases.

Prior to that, He worked for approximately 2 vears as a Service Tariffs Analyst for the
Finance Division of the Baltimore Gas & Electric Company where he developed cost and
revenue studies, evaluated alternative rate structures, and studied the rate structures of
other utilities for a varicty of applications. He was also employed by BG&E in Electric
System Operations for approximately 3 years, where his duties included operations
analysis, outage reporting, and participation in the development of BG&Es first
computerized customer information and service order system.

Mr. Lanzalotta is a member of the Institute of Electrical & Electronic Engineers, the
National Society of Professional Engineers, the Association of Energy Engineers, the
National Fire Protection Association, the American Solar Energy Society, and the
Financial Management Association. He is also registered meessxonal Engincer in the

states of Maryland and Connecticut.
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Proceedings In Which
Peter J. Lanzalotta
_Has Testified

In re: Public Service Company of New Mexico, Docket Nos. ER78-337 and ER78-338
before the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission, concemning the need for access to
calculation methodology underlying filing.

In re: Baltimore Gas and Electric Company, Case No. 7238-V before the Maryland
Public Service Commission, conceming outage replacement power costs.

“In re: Houston Lighting & Power Company, Texas Pub’lic Utilities Commission

Docket No. 4712, concerning modeling methods to determine rates to be pad to
cogenerators and small power producers. '

In re: Nevada Power Company, Nevada Public Service Commission, Docket No.
83-707 concemning rate case fuel inventories, rate base items, and O&M expense.

In re: Virpinis Electric & Power Company, Virginia State Corporation Commission,
Case No. PUE820091, concerning the operating and reliability-based need f‘or addmonal
transmission facilities.

In re: Public Service Electric & Gas Company, New Jersey Board of Public Utlities,
Docket No. 831-25, concerning outage replacement power costs.

In re: Phi}adel’phia Electric Company, Pennsylvania Public Utilities Commission,
Docket No. P-830453, concerning outage replacement power costs.

' In re: Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company, Public Utilities Commission of Ohio, Case
‘No. 83-33-EL-EFC, concerning the results of an operations/fuel-use audit conducted by

Mr. Lanzalotta.

- In re: Kansas City Power and Light Company, before the State Corporation

Commission of the state of Kansas, Docket Nos, 142,099-U and 120,924-U, concerning
the determination of the capacity, from a new base-load generating facility, needed for
reliable system operation, and the capacity available from existing generating units.

“1i re: Philadelphia Electric Company, Pennsylvania Public Utihities Commission,

Docket No R-850152, concerning the deterniination of the capacity, from a new
base-load generating facility, needed for reliable system operatmn and the capacity
av dxlable from existing gcncratmg units. ‘

In re: ABCMethad Proposed for Application to Public Servio:e Companyof
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Colorado, before the Public Utilities Commission of the State of Colorado, on behalf of
the Federal Executive A;,enc:es ("FEA"), concerning a production cost allocation
methodology proposed for use in Colorado. ,

In re: Duguesne Light Company, Docket No. R-870651, before the Pennsylvania
Public Utilities Commission, on behalf of the Office of Consumer Advocate, concemmg
the system reserve margin needed for reliable service, :

In re: Peﬁnsvlvauia,Péwer, Company, Doc‘kct No. 1-7970318 before the Pennsylvania
Public Utilities Commisston, on behalf of the Office of Consumer Advocate, cancerning
outage replacement power costs. : o

In re: Commonwealth Edison Company, Docket No. 87-0427 befofc the Hlinois

Commerce Commission, on behalf of the Citizen's Utility Board of Tllinois, conceming
the determination of the capacity, from new base-load generating facilities, needed for

- reliable system operation.

In re: Central Illinois Public Service Company, Docket No, 88-0031 before the llinois
Commerce Conunission, on behalf of the Citizen's Utility Board of Illinois, concemning
the degree to which existing generating capacity is needed for reliable and/or economic
system operation. ‘

In re: {linois Power Company, Docket No. 87-0695 before the State of linois
Commerce Commission, on behalf of Citizens Utility Board of Illinois, Governors Office
of Consumer Services, Office of Public Counsel and Small Business Utility Advocate,
concerning the determination of the capacity, from a new base-load generating facility,
needed for refiable system operation, and the capacity available from existing generating
units,

In re: Florida Power Corporation, Docket No. 860001-EL-G (Phase II), before the

Florida Public Service Commission, on behalf of the Federal Exccutive Agencics of the
United States, concerning an investigation into fuel supply relationships of Florida Power
Corporation.

In re: Potomac Electric Power Company, before the Public Serv;ce Commiséion of the
District of Columbia, Docket No. 877, on behalf of the Public Service Commiission Staff,
concerning the need for and availability of new generating facilities.
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In re: South Carolina Electric & Gas Company, before the South Carolina Public

- Service Commission, Docket No. 88-681-E, On Behalf of the State of Carolina

Department of Consumner Affairs, conceming the capacity needed for reliable system
operation, the capacity available from existing gencrating units, relative jurisdictional rate
of retum, reconnection charges, and the provision of supplementary, backup, and
maintenpance services for QFs.

In re: Commonwealth Edison Company, Hlinois Commercé Commisston, Docket Nos.
87-0169, 87-0427, 88-0189, 88-0219, and 88-0253, on behalf of the Citizen's Utility
Board of Illinois, concerning the determination of the capacity, from a new base-load

- generating facility, needed for reliable system operation.

In re: Hiinois Power Company, Illinois Commerce Commission, Docket No. 89-0276,
on behalf of the Citizen's Utility Board Of Illinois, concerning the determination of
capacity available from existing generating units.

In re: Jersey Central Power & Light Company, New Jersey Board of Public Utilities,

Docket No. EE88-121293, on behalf of the State of New Jersey Department of the Public
Ad\mcmm, concermn,g, s evaluation of tmnsmxssmn planning.

In re: Canal Electric Company, before the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission,
Docket No. ER90-245-000, on behalf of the Municipal Light Department of the Town of
Belmont, Massachusetts, concemning the reasonableness of Seabrook Unit No. |
Operating and Mamtenance expense.

In re: New Hampshire Electric Cooperative Rate Plan Proposal before the New
Hampshire Public Utilities Commission, Docket No. DR90-078, on behalf of the New
Hampshire Electric Cooperative, concerning contract valuation,

" In re: Connecticut Light & Power Company, before the Connecticut Department of
,Pubhc Utility Control, Docket No, 90-04-14, on behalf of a group of Qua ifying Facilities

concemmg O&M expenses payable by the QFs.

In re: Duke Power Campany, before the South Carolina Public Service Commission,

Docket No. 91-216-E, on behalf of the State of South Carolina Department of Consumer
Advocate, concerning System Planning, Rate Design and Nuclear Decommissioning
Fund issues.

In re: Jersey Central Power & Light Company, before the Federal Energy Regulatory
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Commission, Docket No. ER91-480-000, on behalf of the Boroughs of Butler, Madison,
Lavallette, Pemberton and Seaside Heights, concemmg the appropnaienees of a separate
rate class for a large wholesale customer.

In re: Potomac Electric Power Company, hefore the Public Service Commission of the

~ District of Columbia, Formal Case No. 912, on behalf of the Staff of the Public Service

Commussion of the District of Columbia, concerning the Apphcauon of PEPCO for an
increase in retail rates for the sale of electric energy.

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, House of Representatives, General Assembly House
Bill No. 2273. Oral testimony before the Committee on Conservation, concerning

proposed Electromagnetic Field Exposure Avoidance Act.

In re: Hearings on the 1990 Ontario Hydro Demand\Supply Plaxi,, before the Ontario

Environmental Assessment Board, concemning Ontario Hydro's System Reliability
Planning and Transmission Planning.

In re: Maui Electric Company, Docket No. 7000, before the Public Utilities

- Commission of the State of Hawaii, on behalf of the Division of Consumer Advocacy,

concerning MECO's generation system, fuel and purchased power expense, depreciation,
plant additions and retirements, contributions and advances.

In re: Hawaiian Electric Company, Inc., Docket No. 7256, before the Pubhc Utilities

Commission of the State of Hawaii, on behalf of the Division of Consumer Advocacy,
concerning need for, design of, and routing of proposed transmission facilities. '

In re: Commonwealth Edison Company, Docket No. 94-0065 before the lllinois

Commerce Commission on behalf of the City of Chicago, concerning the capacity needed

for system reliability.

In re: Commonwealth Edison Company, Docket No, 93-0216 before the [llix1ois

Commerce Commission on behalf of the Citizens for Responsible Electric Power,
concerning the need for proposed 138 kV transmission and substation facilities.

In re: Commonwealth Edison Company, Docket No. 92-0221 before the [}inois
Commerce Comrnission on behalf of the Friends of [llinois Prairie Path, concerning the
need for proposed 138 kV transmission and substation facilities.

In re: Commonwealth Edison Company, Docket No. 94-0179 before the Illinois
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Commerce Cbmmission on behalf of the Friends of Sugar Ridge, conceming the need for
proposed 138 kV transmission and substation facilities.

In re: Public Service Company of Colorado, Docket Nos. 95A-531EG and 951-464E
before the Colorado Public Utilities Commission on behalf of the Office of Consumer
Counsel, concerning a proposed merger with Southwestern Public Service Company and
a proposed performance-based rate-making plan.

~In re: South Carolina Electric & Gas Company, Duke Power Company, and

Carolina Power & Light Company, Docket No. 95-1192-E, before the South Carolina
Public Service Commission on behalf of the South Carolina Department of Consumer
Advocate, concering avoided cost rates payable to qualifying facilities.

In re: Lawrence A. Baker v. Truckee Donner Public Utility District, Case No. 55899,
before the Superior Court of the State of California on behalf of Truckee Donner Public
Ulity District, concerning the reasonableness of electric rates.

Int re: Black Hills Power & Light Company, Docket No. OA96-75-000, before the
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission on behalf of the City of Gilleite, Wyoming,
concerning the Black Hills' proposed open access transmission taniff.

In re: Metropolitan Edison Company and Pennsylvania Electric Company for
Approvals of the Restructuring Plan Under Section 2806, Docket Nos. R-00974008 and
R-00974009 before the Pennsylvania PUC on behalf of Operating NUG Group,
concerning miscellancous restructuning

issues.

{n re: New Jersey State Restructuring Proceeding for consideration of proposals for
retat} competiton under BPU Docket Nos. EX94120585U; E097070457; E097070460;
E097070463; E097070466 before the New Jersey BPU on behalf of the New Jersey
Division of Ratepayer Advocate, concerning load balancing, third party settlements, and
market power. V

In re: Arbitreation Proceeding In City of Chicago v. Commonweaith Edison for
consmcmtion of claims that franchisc agreement has been breached, Proceeding No. 51Y-

114-350-96 before an arbitration panel board on behalf of the Cny of Chtcago concemmg
eleetric sysiem reliability. ,

furé: Transalta Utilities Corporation, Application No. RE 95081 on beha{f of the
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ACD companies, before the Alberta Energy And Utilities Board in reference to the use
and value of interruptible capacity.

In re; Consolidated Edison Company, Docket No. EL99-58-000 on bebalf of The
Village of Freeport, New York, before FERC in reference to remedies for a breach of
contract to provide firm transmission service on a non-discriminatory basis,

In re: ESBI Alberta Ltd., Application No. 990005 on behalf of the FIRM Customers,
before the Alberta Energy And Utilities Board concerning the reasonableness of the cost
of service plus management fee proposed for 1999 and 2000 by the transmission
administrator.

In re: South Carolina Electric & Gas Company, Docket No. 2000-0170-E on behalf
of the South Carolina Department of Consumer Affairs before the Public Service
Commission of South Carolina concerning an application for a Certificate of
Environmental Compatibility and Public Convenience and Necessity for new and
repowered generating units at the Urquhart generating station.

In re: BGE, Case No. 8837 on behalf of the Maryland Office of People's Counsel before

the Maryland Public Service Commission concerning proposed electric line extension

charges.

In re: PEPCO, Case No. 8844 on behalf of the Maryland Office of People’s Counsel
before the Maryland Public Service Commission concerning proposed electric line
exlension charges.

In re: GenPower Anderson LI.C, Docket No. 2001-78-E on behalf of the South
Carolina Department of Consumer Affairs before the Public Service Commission of
South Carolina concerning an application for a Certificate of Environmental
Compatibility and Public Convenience and Necessity for new generating units at the
GenPower Anderson LLC generating station. ’

In re: Pike County Light & Power Company, Docket No. P-00011872, on behalf of
Pennsylvania Office of Consumer Advocate before the Pennsylvania Public Utility
Commisston conceming the Pike County request for a retail rate cap exception.

In re: Potomac Electric Power Company and Conectiv, Case No. 8890, on behalf of
the Maryland Office of People’s Counsel before the Maryland Public Service
Commission concerning the proposed merger of Potomac Electric Power Company and
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Conectiv.

| In re: South Carolina Electric & Gas Company, Docket No. 2001-420-E on behalf of

the South Carolina Department of Consumer Affairs before the Public Service
Commission of South Carolina concerning an application for a Certificate of
Environmental Compatibility and Public Ccmvcmcncc and Ncccssxty for new generating
units at the Jasper County generatmg station.

In re: Connecticut Light & Power Company, Docket No. 217 on bebalf of the Towns

“of Bethel, Rcdding, Weston, and Wilton, Connecticut before the Connecticut Siting

Council concerning an application for a Certificate of Environmental Compatibility and
Public Need for a new transmission line facility between Plumtree Substation, Bethel and
Norwalk Substation, Norwalk. ’

In re: The City of Vernon‘,« California, Docket No. EL02-103 on behalf of the City of

Vemon before the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission concerning Vernon's
transmission revenue balancing account adjustment reflecting calendar year 2001
{ransactions.

In re: San Diego Gas & Electric Company et. al., Docket No. EL00-95-045 on behalf

of the City of Vernon, California before the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission
conceming refunds and other monies payable in the California wholesale energy markets.

In re: The City of Vernon, California, Docket No. EL03-31 on behalf of the City of
Vernon before the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission conceming Vernon's
transmission revenue balancing account adjustment reflectimg 2002 1ransactions..

In re: Jersey Central Power & Light Company, Docket Nos. ER02080506,

ERO2080507, ER02030173, and EO02070417 on behalf of the New Jersey Division of
Ratepayer Advocate before the New Jersey Board of Public Utilities concerning
reliability issucs involved in the approval of an increase in base tariff rates.

In re: Proposed Electric Service Reliability Rules, Standards. and Indices To Ensure

Reliable Service by Electric Distribution Companies, PSC Regulation Docket No. 50,
on behalf of the Delaware Public Service Comunission Staff before the Delaware Public

Service Commission concerning proposed electric service reliability rules, standards and
indices.

In re: Central Maine Power Company, Docket No. 2002665, on behalf of the Maine.
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Public Advocate and the Town of York before the Maine Public Utilities Commission
concerning a Request for Commission Investigation into the New CMP Transmission
Line Proposal for Eliot, Kittery, and York.

In re: Metropolitan Edison Company, Docket No. C-20028394, on behalf of the
Pennsylvania Office of Consumer Advocate, before the Pennsylvania Public Utility
Commission concerning the reliability service complaint of Robert Lawrence.

In re: The California Independent System Operator Corporation, Docket No. ER00-
2019 et al. on behalf of the City of Vernon, California, before the Federal Energy
Regulatory Commission concerning wholesale transmission tariffs, rates and rate
structures proposed by the California 1SO.

In re: The Narragansett Flectric Company, Docket No. 3564 on behalf of the Rhode
Island Department of Attorney General, before the Rhode Island Public Utilities
Commission concemning the proposed relocation of the E-183 transmission line.

1In re: The City of Vernon, California, Docket No. EL04-34 on behalf of the City of

Vernon before the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission concering Vernon’s

- transmission revenue balancing account adjustment reflecting 2003 transactions.

In re: Atlantic City Electric Company, Docket No. ER03020110 on behalf of the New
Jersey Division of Ratepayer Advocate before the New Jersey Board of Public Utilities
concerning reliability issues involved in the approval of an increase in base tariff rates.

In re: Connecticut Light & Power Company and the United Hluminating Company,
Docket No. 272 on behalf of the Towns of Bethany, Cheshire, Durham, Easton, Fairfield,
Hamden, Middleficld, Milford, North Haven, Norwalk, Orange, Wallingford, Weston,
Westport, Wilton, and Woodbridge, Connecticut before the Connecticut Siting Council
concerning an application for a Certificate of Environmental Compatibility and Public
Need for a new transmission line facility between the Scoville Rock Switching Station in
Middletown and the Norwalk Substation in Norwalk. Connecticut.

In re: Metropolitan Edison Company, Pennsylvania Electric Companv, and

Penusylvania Power Company, Docket No. 1-00040102, on behalf of the Pennsylvania
Office of Consumer Advocate before the Pennsylvaaia Public Utihty Commxssson
concerning electric service reliability performance.
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In re: Entergy Louisiana, Inc., Docket No, U- 20925 RRF-2004 on behalf of Bayou

Steel before the Louisiana Public Service Commission concemning a proposed increase in
base rates.

in re: Jersey Central Power & Light Company, Docket No. ER02080506, Phase 11, on
behalf of the New Jersey Division of Ratepayer Advocate before the New Jersey Board of
Public Utilities concerning reliability issues mvolved in the approval of an increase in
base tariff rates.

1n re: Maine Public Service Company, Docket No. 2004-538, on behalf of the Main

* Public Advocate before the Maine Public Utilities Commission concerning a request to
- construct a 138 kV transmission line from Limestone, Maine to the Canadian border near

Hamlin, Maine.

In re: Pike County Light and Power Company. Docket No. M-00991220F0002, on
behalf of the Pennsylvania Office of Consumer Advocate before the Pennsylvania Public
Utility Commission concerning the Company’s Petition to amend benchmarks for
distribution reliability. :

In re: Atlantic City Electric Company, Docket No. EE04111374, on behalf of the New
Jersey Division of Ratepayer Advocate before the New Jersey Board of Public Utilities
concerning the need for transmission system reinforcement; and related issues.

In re: Banpor Hydro-Electric Company, Docket No. 2004-771, on behaif of the Main
Public Advocate before the Maine Public Utilities Commission concerning a request to
construet a 345 kV transmission line from Omngton, Maine to the Canadian border near

‘Baileywville, Maine.

In re: Eastern Maine Electric Cooperatve, Docket No, 2005-17, on behalf of the Main
Public Advocate before the Maine Public Utilities Commission concerning a petition to

~ approve a purchase of transmisston capacity on a 345 kV transmission Ime from Maine to

the Canadian province of New Brunswick.

1n_re: Virginia Electric and Power Company, Case No. PUE-2005-00018, on behalf of

the Town of Leesburg VA and Loudoun County VA before the Virginia State
Corporation Commission concerning a request for a certificate of public convenience and
necessity for transmission and substation facilities in Loudoun County.
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In re: Proposeﬁ Electric Service Reliability Rules, Standards, and indices To Ensure

Reliable Service by Electric Distribution Companies, PSC Regulation Docket No. 50,
on behalf of the Delaware Public Service Commission Staff bcforc: the Delaware Public

Service Commission concermung proposed electric servxce reliability reportmg, standards,
and indices. -

In re: Proposed Merger Involving Constellation Energyv Group Inc. and the FPL
Group, Inc., Case No. 9054, on behalf of the Maryland Office of Peoples’ Counsel
before the Maryland Public Service Commission concerning the proposed merger
involving Baltimore Gas & Electric Company and Florida Light & Power Company.

In re, Proposed Sale and Transfer of Electric Franchise of the Town of St. Michaels
to Choptank Electric Cooperative, Inc., Case No. 9071, on behalf of the Maryland
Office of Peoples” Counsel before the Maryland Public Service Commission concemmg
the sale by St. Michaels of their electric franchise and service area io Choptank.
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County of Pike
V. )
Pike County Light & Power Company

Docket No. C-20065942, et al

Office of Consumer Advocate
Interrogatories Set IV

2. Regarding the existing aerial 34.5 KV line across the Delaware River that serves the ,
Company: '
a. Identify the circuit number of the cxrcmt in this crossmg
b. When was this crossing constructed?
2 What was its cost?
d. What would such a crossing cost today?

Response: Sponsoring Witness: James W Tarpey, Vice President — Operations

po o

Circuit 5-10-34
1993

§155,800

Pike estimates that it would cost approximately $260,000
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County of Pike
V‘ .
Pike County Light & Power Company
Docket No. C-20065942, et al

Pike County Light and Power
Interrogatorics Set X Responses

8. Regarding the rebuttal testimony of Angelo M. Regan, page 15, lines 4 t_hrdugh 9, please
describe the potential locations of the interconnections being investigated between PCL&P and

JCP&L and/or MetEd. Is it anticipated that these potential interconnections would allow for the

procurement of PJM power supplies to meet the PCL&P default generation load?
Response:  Sponsoring Witniess: James W. Tarpey, Vice President ~ Operations

The Company will investigate if any feasible, cost effective, and sustainable solutions exist from

interconnecting with the MetEd and JCP&L local electric delivery systems. PCL&P has

commenced very preliminary discussions with these companies, and there is nothing of

substance to report at this time.
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County of Pike
v. | , ,
Pike County Light & Power Company
Docket No. C-20065942, et al

Office of Consumer Advocate
Interrogatories Set VI

1 Please describe all of the different vegetanon management pohcnes and practices that
have been in use on the Company’s system since 2000.

R&spoknse-: Sponsoring Witness: James W. Tarpey, Vice President — Operations

Sinee 2000, there hus only been one vegetation management policy and practice in place on the
Company’s system. Specifically, the Company’s policy and practice has been to trim and
remove and manage the vegetation along the distribution conductors to establish and maintain a
10 feet to the side, 10 feet below, and 15 feet overhead aerial corridor to operate the electrical
facilities. To establish and maintain this aerial corridor, Pike has employed a program of
trimming and removing vegetanon and brush under, adjacent, and over the conductors on a four-
year eycle. (,ommcncmg in July 2006, Pike has reduced this program to a three-year cycle
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County of Pike
v,
Pike County Light & Power Company
Docket No. C-20065942, et al

Office of Consumer Advocate
Interrogatories Set 1IL

When were the last two comprehensive tree-trimmings performed on the distribution
feeders that serve the Pike electric service area?

Response: Sponsoring Witness: James W. Tarpey, Vice President - Operations

The Pike electric service area underwent scheduled tree maintenance activities in third
and fourth quarter of 2000 (L7-6), and third and fourth quarter of 2001 {the 5-10 that
crosses the Delaware River). The service territory was again maintained in the third and
fourth quarter of 2005 (L7-6), and in the first quarter of 2006 (the 5-10 that crosses the
Delaware River). During these trimming periods, all primary electric conductor
clearances were achieved. :
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Responsible Witness: Matthew Kahal

County of Pike
Pike County Light & Power Company
Docket No. C-20065942, et al

Office of Consumer Advocate Responses
to Pike County Light & Power Company
' Interrogatories Set IV

3. Refer to OCA Statement No. 1 page 17. Provide all estimates {and associated
~ calculations) of the effect on the delivery rate to be charged by Sussex to PCL&P
customers (under OCA’s Sussex proposal) to recover the costs of the connection to the

34.5 line in New Jersey.

Response

The OCA has not fashioned a specific proposal for recovery of the costs of the PIM
interconnection. However, based on Mr. Lanzalotta's interconnection cost estimates and the
Sussex very low cost of capital (as compared to an investor-owned uti lity), if the entire cost were
to be directly assigned to the current Pike customers the rate impact would be relatively modest
(roughly I to 2 mills per kWh). However, the cost assignment and ratemaking arrangements
~may depend upon the price at which Sussex is able to purchase PCL&P, and that price is not

presently known. : ' ‘ ‘
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Responsible Witness: Matthew Kahal

County of Pike
V. .
Pike County Light & Power Company
Docket No. C-20065942, et al

Office of Consumer Advocate Responses
to Pike County Light & Power Company
Interrogatories Set [V

4. | Refer to OCA Statement No. | page 24, lines 5-9. Provide all information relied on by

Mr. Kahal regarding the fair market value of the PCL&P system. Did Mr, Kahal calculate
the value of the PCL&P system pursuant to the Pennsylvania law on eminent domain? If
so, provide such calculations. ‘

orsoise

Mr. Kahal has not prepared analysis to determine fair market value of the PCL&P
system, nor does his testimony seek to reach a conclusion on that issue. He assumes that the fair
market value will be negotiated by the Company and Sussex.
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Responsible Witness: Matthew Kahal

County of Pike
o oW
Pike County Light & Power Company
Docket No. C-20065942, et al

Office of Consumer Advocate Responses
to Pike County Light & Power Company
Interrogatories Set [V '

6. Refer to OCA Statement No. | pages 25-26. Provide all estimates of the cost of
“wholesale power from Allegheny for the next 10 years. Provide the actual capacity
factors of the Susquehanna Plant for the last 10 years and projecied for the next 10 years.

Response

- Allegheny’s fen-year wholesale rate projections are not in Mr, Kahal’s possession.
However, Mr. Kahal believes the approximately 70 percent of Allegheny’s. power supply
obtained {rom its nuclear and hydro resources are not likely to increase in cost substantially over
the next ten years. The hydro consists of owned capacity and long-term NYPA contracts that are
unaffected by volatile fuels markets. The fuel/O&M costs of the Susquehanna plant can be
expected to change over time with nomnal power plant cost escalation trends. However, there
are two important factors that will help stabilize or even decrease Allegheny’s nuclear costs.
First, PPL. plans a 205 MW power uprate of the Susquehanna plant that when completed will
provide approximately a ten percent increase in capability. Allegheny will share in that power
‘uprate based on its ten percent ownership share. Second, Allegheny’s current wholesale rate
includes revenues associated with stranded cost recovery. According to Allegheny’s 2005
Annual Report, the income statement included $35.4 million as an amortization expense in 2005
(about 20 percent of total revenue) for “amortization of capital retirement asset” related to
Susquehanna. This amortization will be completed after 2008. {See Note 8 to the Allegheny
financial statements.) ‘ ‘
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County of Ptke

V.

Responsible Witness: Matthew Kahal

Pike County Light & Power Compahy
Docket No. C-20065942, et al

- Office of Consumer Advocate Responses
to Pike County Light & Power Company
Interrogatories Set IV

Response to Oug_srian 6 (Continued)

Based on infonmation from the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Comxmssmn, the }ustoncal
&msquehanna capacity factors are:

T TUew1 JUmtz
1996 __BLO% | 95.0%
1997 952 806
1 1998 68.9 94.7

1999 923 813
2000 854 97.3

2001 986 86.3
2002 829 95.6
2003 963 85.5
12004 80.3 1000
2005 | 94.6 88.7

Average |  87.6% 90.5%




PCL&P
| Cr‘oszsé-Exa mination

Exhibit +

County of Pike, et al. v. PCL&P
Docket No. C-20065942, et al.
January (2007

'RECEIVED
JAN 2 2 2007
PAF BH%%H%% %8%819?‘4




(

o

Responsible Witness: Matthew Kahal

County of Pike
V. ,
Pike County Light & Power Company
Docket No. C~20065942.‘et al

Office of Consumer Advocate Responses

to Ptke County Light & Power Company
Interrogatories Set 1V

1. Refer to OCA Statement No. | pages 25-26. Provide a copy of the Williams Contract,

Response

Mr. Kahal does not have a copy of the Williaze contract. There is descriptive
information on that contract in the Allegheny 2005 Annual Report.
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Responsible Witness: Maithew Kahal

County of Pike
V. . .
Pike County Light & Power Company
Docket No. C-20065942, et al

Office of Consumer Advocate Responses
to Pike County Light & Power Company
Interrogatories Set 1V

8. Refer to OCA Statement No. | pages 25-26. Provide the transmission path for the
Allegheny power to PCL&P scrvice territory under your proposal. What are the
applicable transmissions tariffs? ;

Response

The transmission interconnection would be as described in Mr. Lanzallota’s testimony. It

15 Mr. Kahal’s understanding that the cost of transmission is a blended figure embedded as part
of the current 5.8 cent wholesale rate. A very minor portion of that cost would be for

Allegheny’s own transmission. The remainder would be for the transmission service (i,
Network Integrated Transmission Service) purchased by Allegheny from PIM through its Open -
Access Transmission Tadff (OATT) for the various transmission “zones” in which the
Allegheny member coops arc located. - As Mr. Kolling explains, afier a transition phase-in
period, the Pike customers would be charged the Allegheny wholesale rate which includes this
“blended” cost of transmission. ’
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Responsible Witness: Matthew Kahal

County of Pike
V. '
Pike County Light & Power Company
Docket No. C-20065942, et al

Office of Consumer Advocate Responses
to Pike County Light & Power Company
Interrogatorics Set IV

9. Refer to OCA Statement No. 1 pages 27. lines 20-24. Provide all information describing
how the surcharge would operate. Provide, with all calculations, the amount of the
surcharge in each year it would be in effect. :

Response

Mr. Kahal has not calculated a surcharge, but any additional charge (i.e., “surcharge”)

~ above the standard Allegheny wholesale rate during the transition described in Mr. Kolling’s

testimony may depend on market prices and the terms under which Sussex acquires PCL&P,
Neither of these factors is presently known. However, Mr. Kolling estimates an immediate 20
percent rate reduction, with the “G&T portion of the bundied rates available to the current Pike
custorners approaching the Allegheny wholesale charges after a transition period. '
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Responsible Witness: Matthew Kahal

County of Pike
V. . ;
Pike County Light & Power Company
Docket No. C—Z()065942, et al

Office of Consumer Advocate Responses
to Pike County Light & Power Company
Interrogatonies Set 1V

10.  Refer to OCA Statement No. 1 page 28, line 1-4, How would the capital investment be
recovered by Sussex? Would it be paid for by all customers of Sussex or just PCL&P
customers?

Response

The cited passage refers to the $1 to $2 million interconnection adjustment. Mr. Kahal is
not aware of a decision on the cost recovery of that investment. However, if it is directly
allocated to the current Pike customers (rather than over all customers), the rate impact
nonctheless would be relatively modest. (See response to 1V-3.) .«
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Respon’éibie Witness: Matthew Kahal

County of Pike
V.
Pike County Light & Power Company
Docket No. C-20065942, et al

Office of Consumer Advocate Responses
to Pike County Light & Power Company
Interrogatories Set IV

[1.  Refer to OCA Statement No. 1 pages 28. Provide the basts for the statement that the
Sussex acquisition would have to be approved by the Allegheny Board. Has such
approval been sought? Has it been obtained?

This was conveyed to Mr. Kahal by Mr. Kolling based on the context that Pike customers
eventually would fully obtain the benefits of the relatively low and stable power supply costs.
Mr. Kahal has no information on the timing of such a decision by Allegheny, nor is he aware of
any opposition by Allegheny management to the Sussex acquisition of PCL&P.

00091 849.D0OC




BEFORE THE
PENNSYLVANIA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION

County of Pike
v. Docket No.  C-20065942, et al.
Pike County Light & Power Company

VERIFICATION

1 Matthew 1. Kahal, hereby state that I am the witness responsible for-reSponding to the Pike
County Light & Power Company Interrogatories Set IV and that the facts above set forth are true
- ( ) ; and correct to the best of my kﬁowledge, information and belief in the listed interrogatory responses.
{ understand that the stalements herein are made subject t the penalties of 18 Pa, C.S. § 4904

(relating fo unswom falsification to authorities).

Signature: %ML\»JKJ‘"Q

Matthew L Kahal

Consultant Address: Exeter Associates, Inc
Suite 310 :
5565 Sterrett Place
Columbia, MD 21044

DATED:  December 7, 2006
Email: mkahal@exeterassociates.com
Phone; 410-992-7500
’Fax; 410-992-3445
- O0091843.D0C
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Responsible Witness: Peter J. Lanzalolta

County of Pike
SV, .
Pike County Light & Power Company
Docket No. C-20065942, et al

Oftice of Consumer Advocate Responses

to Pike County Light & Power Company
Interrogatories Set I1

5. Please provide all plans, schemancs and drawings of the system envisioned in the proposal
- from page 6, line 29 to page 7, line 21 of OCA @mtement No.2.

Response:

Respondent has not prepared any plans, schematics, or drawings.
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Responsible Witness: Peter J. Lanzalotta

County of Pike
v.
Pike County Light & Power Company
Docket No. C-20065942, ef al

~ Office of Consumer Advocate Responses
to Pike Connty Light & Power Company
Interrogatories Set II

7. Please provide all load flow studies that have been prepared by Mr. Lanzalotta or others
relating to the proposal from page 6, line 29 to page 7, line 21 of OCA Statement No.2.

Response:

Respondent prepared no load flow studies,
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Responsible Wilness: Peter J. Lanzalotta

County of Pike
v,
Pike County Light & Power Company
Docket No. C-20065942, et al

Office of Consumer Advocate Responses
to Pike County Light & Power Company
Interrogatories Set 11

8. Please provide a detailed map showing the route of the interconnection proposal discussed
from page 6, line 29 10 p. 7, line 21 of OCA Statement No.2.

Respondent:

Respondent does not have a map showing the route of the proposed interconnection.
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Responsible Witness: Peter J. Lanzalotia

County of Pike
v,
Pike County Light & Power Company
Docket No. C-20065942, et al

Office of Consumer Advocate Responses
to Pike County Light & Power Company
[nterrogatories Set [

9. Please list the various environmental and other zoning and regulatory permits and
approvals that will be required to construct the interconnection page 6, line 29 to p. 7, line
21 of OCA Statement No.2. Please identify the organization that issues each of these
permits and approvals, as well as the expected time it will take to secure each of these
permits and approvals. Please provide all environmental studies and analyses relating to
this interconnection proposal. ' ' '

Response:
Respondent has not developed a list of the various permits or approvals needed, nor of the

expected time needed to secure such permits or approvals. Respondent has not prepared
any environmental studies or analyses.
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Responsible Witness: Peter 3. Lanzalotta

County of Pike
v.
Pike County Light & Power Company
Docket No. C-20065942, et al

Office of Consumer Advocate Responses
to Pike County Light & Power Company
Interrogatories Set 1

12, Referring to page 8, line 13, please identify the "existing substations facilitics on the
Sussex system" that the Sussex interconnection will make use of. Please describe the
upgrades that will be required to be made, and their associated cost, as a result of the
Sussex interconnection. , ‘

Response:

'Respondeﬁt has relied on Mr. Kolling’s representation that Sussex has the capability to
pick up the Pike loads and has not separately investigated Sussex’s system.
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Responsible Witness: Peter J. Lanzalotta

County of Pike
Ve
Pike County Light & Power Company
Docket No, C-20065942, et al

Office of Consumer Advocate Responses
to Pike County Light & Power Company
Interrogatories Set 1

16, Provide in detail Sussex’s "planning, maintenance, and operating philosophies” described
P g g p

on 'page 15, line 14 of OCA Statement No.2, including all available sources, manuals, and
written materials.

Response: |

Respondent has not investigated Sussex’s planning, mainienance, and operating
philosophies, anly the effect of those philosophies on system performance.
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Lo Responsible Witness: Peter J. Lanzalotta
l ' :
County of Pike
.
Pike County Light & Power Company
Docket No, C-20065942, et al
Office of Consumer Advocate Responses
to Pike County Light & Power Company
Interrogatories Set 1
17.  Please provide all of Sussex's outages referred to on page 16 of OCA Statement No.2 by
cause in a form equivalent to your Table 3 on page 13 of OCA Statement No.2.
Response:
The response to No. 4 above includes all the outage data made available by Sussex to
Respondent. ’ ‘ ”
¢ )‘
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COUNTY OF PIKE, ET AL.

COMPLAINANTS,
V. | . DOCKET NO. C-20065842, et al
: , (Consolidated)
PIKE COUNTY LIGHT & POWER COMPANY |
RESPONDENT. -
REBUTTAL TESTIMONY L
e JAN 2 2 2007
or ' Ly GOMMSSION
pA PUBLIC UTI
ANGELO M. REGAN BECRETARY'S BUREAU
ON BEHALE OF
RESPONDENT

PIKE COUNTY LIGHT & POWER COMPANY

DECEMBER 11, 2006
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'PCL&P COUNTY LIGHT & POWER COMPANY
REBUTTAL TESTIMONY OF
ANGELO M. REGAN

Please state your name and business address.

Angelo M. Regan, 390 West Route 59, Spring Valley, New York 10977.

By whom are you employed and in what capacity?

Lam employed by Orange and Rockiand Utilities, Inc. (“Orange and Rockland™),
the'corpor:;te parent of Pike County Light & Power Company (“PCL&P” or the
“Company”), as Dircctor of Electrical Engincering,

Please briefly describe your educational and business experience.

[received a Bachelor of Science degree in Electrical Engineering in 1985, and a
Masters of Science degree in Industrial Engmcenng Management Science in

987 both from Fairleigh Dickinson University, in Teancck Ncw Jersey lama

registered pmfessmnal engineer in the State of New York. | was employed by

Central Hudson Gas and Electric Corporation as an overhead distribution systems
engineer from 1985 to 1987. Since then, [ have worked for Orange and Rockland

as an overhead and underground Systems Engineer, as Manager of the

| Distribution Engineering Department, and then as Chief Distribution Engineer,

prior {o assﬁming my present position as Director of Electrical Engineering,
What is the purpose of ydur testimony in this proceeding?

The purpose of my testimony s to discuss the possible interc’onnection of PCL&P
to PPL Electric Utilities, Inc. (“PPL"), ‘Métropolilan Edison Company (“MetEd”),
and/or Sussex Rural Electric Cooperative (“Sx}sse%‘*), and the Company*s clectric
service reliability. I aiso will address certain isﬁue’s raised by witnesses during the

public input hearings in this proceeding, as well as by formal complainants during
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PCL&P COUNTY LIGHT & POWER CO\dPANY
REBUTTAL TESTIMONY OF
ANGELO M. REGAN

 the evidentiary hearing held before Administrative Law Judge Jandebeur on

November 6, 2006 in Scranton, Penasylvania.
Has PCL&P completed an interconnection study?

Yes. PCL&P has completed an interconnection study (“Interconnection Study”)

- exploring the costs and benefits of interconnecting its service territory with PIM,

“A copy of the Interconnection Study was attached as Appendix B to the Report on

Competitive Market Conditions Regarding thé Pike County Light & Power
Company dated June 1, 2006 prepared by the Pennsylvania Public Utility
Commission’s (“PAPUC") Law Bureau (“Law Bureau Report”).

Piease describe why the Interconnection Study focused éoie‘ly on a 69kV
transmission line extension option from PP&L or MetEd?

The 69kV transmission line extension that PCL&P proposed and examined in the

Interconnection Study is the proper solution both to improve reliability and to

| allow for future [oad growth, PCL&P has serious concerns with proposals, such as

- those advanced by Office of Consumer Advocate (“OCA”) witness Mr.

Lanzalotta, unhang lower voltage systems that offer significant line exposure
and thus added reliability risk, and do not meet the foad deliverability
requirements of PYM. While alternatives that involve intemonnecting the existing
area 34.5kV systems may be a short-term solutibn, the eventual COmzectioh to,
and service from, the area 69kV transmission systems is the correct long-term
solution. At present, as deseribed in the Intcrconnection Study, the nearest 69kV
transmission systent 1s PP&L’s 69kV line into the Twin Lakes Substation. -

However, by the end of 2008, Orange and Rockland will have theee 69k lines
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PCL&P COUNTY LIG”HT & POWER COMPANY
REBUTTAL TESTIMONY OF
ANGELO M. REGAN
terminating at its Port Jervis Substation, which will also be upgraded in 2008 to
provide significantly improved reliability to the 13.2kV and 34.5kV systems that
it serves. This extremely strong source will be pmviding substﬁnﬁally improved
sy‘stém reliability to the PCL&P system and its cﬁstom‘ers from just a quarter mile
away from Pike County. The eventual tying of thé, Orange and Rockland and
PP&L 69kV systéms is what PCL&P envisions as the ultimate and correct long-
term solution to improving reliability for all of the customers in this area of
Pennsylvania. | |
At pages 5 and 6 of his test.i.'mony,\ Mr; Lanzalotta describes additional
possible alternatives, with their associated c'msts,_‘for, interconnecting with

PP&L and MetEd. Do you agree with his assessment and conclusions?

~ No, Ldo not. First I will address Mr. Lanzalotta’s assessment that new

distribution circuits could be extended from PP&L’s Twin Lakes Substation to
Sljpply PCL&P’s service area and load. me a field investigation, and in the
absence of having actual systern information from PP&L‘, it appears that the Twin |
Lakes substation has‘ lower voltage distribution éircuits serving local area Lk)ad,
probably at 12kV. Even if the Twin Lakes Substation transformer had the

ca'pzicity to serve an addiﬁonal 12kV distribution c‘ucuit that could be extended to
PCL&P, thi§ distribution would not have the capacity to serve PCL&P's ‘p’resen“‘t'
peak load, let alone its projected {oad growth. There wéuid certainly be adequacy

of service and voltage quality issues with serving load centers between eight and

14 miles away from the source, Put simply, Mr. Lanzalotta’s proposal does not

constitute good utility design or practice. { would note that his proposal would




10

11
12

13

14

15

16

17

I8
19
20

21

22

PCL&P COUNTY LIGHT & POWER COMPANY
REBUTTAL TESTIMONY OF
ANGELO M. REGAN
more than double the line exposure of the system that PCL&P presently utilizes to
serve its'customers‘ All of the line transformers in PCL&P would have to be

changed as well to accommodate the 12kV distribution voltage. With the addition

- of MeitEd’s new 34.5kV circuit along Route 6, this corridor, which would remain

the most viable one to extend additional circuits towards Milf’ord,’ is Becoming
increasingly congested. Any new circuits either would have to be double or triple
circuited as overhead construction, or extended for a considerable distance as
underground construction. This win significantly raise the difﬁculty and cost of
extending additional circuits in this direction on limited pubic roads. Moreover,
there are other substahtiai unknown factors which could require significant
upgrades and increase costs; namely the actual available capacity of the Twin
Lakes Substation transformer, and PP&L."s 69kV radial tmn‘smissiori tine that
presently serves the load at both the Twin Lakes Substation and MetEd’s Walker
Substation,

Please go on.

With respect to MetEd’s Walker Substation, it is apparent that the Walker

Substation has an open position where a transformer can be connected 1o provide

an independent 34.5kV source to interconnect with the PCL&EP"s 34.5kV system.

At first glance, this solution appears more viable than the Twin Lakes distribution
proposal from the perspective of similar system voltage and more available
capacity. Many of the issues and cost concerns that [ raised for the non-viability

of the Twin Lakes distribution alternative, however, apply to this alternative as

well. These include the increased length of exposure to PCL&P's load centers, the ,
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PCL&P COUNTY LIGHT & POWER COMPANY
REBUTTAL TESTIMONY OF
ANGELO M. REGAN
cotridor congestion along Route 6 to 'extend this circuit, and PP&L’s available
transmission line capacity. There certainly could be adequacy of service and
voltage quality issu::s with serving load centers between eight and 14 miles av}ay
from the source. Should the MetEd system have to feed the PCL&P service
territory radially from the Walker Substation, it would more than double the line
exposure (i,.c., from the Walker Substation to Matamoras) of the system that
PCL&P presently utilizes to serve its customers. In proposing that PCL&P
interconnect at the Walker Substation, Mr, Lanzalotta has failed to addressk

whether MetEd has any future plans for the Walker Substation, and what

additional cost and/or operating implications there would be to utilize this space

and capacity. It appears that Mr. Lanzalotta has not spoken with representatives

of MetEd regarding his interconnection proposal. Indeed, Mr. Lanzalotta has
failed to provide any evidence that Metid would even cntertain accomxﬁédating
PCL&P as an additional tenant in their substation. This is far from an academic
question, since PCL&P’S interconnection at the W’alk‘er Substation would have

limited benefit to MetEd.

Do you have any concerns regarding the cost estimates Mr. Lanzalotta uses

for interconnection at the Walker Substation?
While it is truc that just the substation costs to increase capacity at the Walker
Substation would be less expensive than constructing a completely new substation

in PCL&P’s service territory, [ do not agree with Mr. Lanzalotta’s assessment

(page 6, line 6) that the addition of 2 20 to 25 MV A substation transformer would

~ cost from $500,000 to $600,000. PCL&P has considerable recent experience in
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'PCL&P COUNTY LIGHT & POWER COMPANY
REBUTTAL TESTIMONY OF
ANGELO M. REGAN
estimating the costs for, and constrecting simi!ar pmjécts. PCL&P projects that
the fully installed cost of this facility would be approximately $1.45 miilion, with

the estimated cost of the transformer to be $600,000 alone. The substation

- improvements provided for in this estimate would include the 25 MVA

transformer, high and low side breaker protection and protective nélay systems,

control and SCADA systems, foundations and conduits, and design and

~ construction labor. This cost projection does not include certain other costs, which

upon closer inspection could be required, such as any additional costs to modify

the PP&L and MetEd systems, or provide any upgrades to the Walker Substation

- to accommodate an additional tenant.

Do you agree with the size of the transformer that Mr. Lanzal‘otyta,
recommends?

No, I do not agree with Mr. Lanzalotta's recommendation that PCL&P install a |
substation tréznsformcr of from 20 to 25 MVA. With PCL&P’s recent ’2006‘peak

load of 19 MVA, and utilizing its present weather normalized system load growth

 of'3% for annual future projections, a 25 MVA transformer would exceed its

base rating in less than 10 years. A more appropriate size transformer to install

would be one with a base rating of 35 MVA. This may provide a 20-year solution,

and would increase the cost by an additional $150k above the $1.45 mkilliorkt.
estimaté (or to a total cost of $1.6 million). Addi’tional costs would be required for
the 34.5kV circuits, including upgrades to PCL&P’S Line 7 mainline facilities,’the |
installation of distribution automation and sectionalizing schemes, and voltage

support. The Route 6 corridor congestion likely would require undergrounding or
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PCL&P COUNTY LIGHT & POWER COMPANY
REBUTTAL TESTIMONY OF
' ANGELO M. REGAN
double circuiting, or a combination of both, for a portion of the nc?w 34.5kV line

where there are presently facilities on both sides of the road. PCL&P 1S estimating

 that the extension of this line from the Walker Substation to Milford would cost

$1.6 million, upgrades to the PCL&P 34;5'kV system to interconnect with the new
line Would cost $300,000, voltage support coSts are estimated at $300,000, and
automatien monitoring and control to cost an additiohal $200,000. In total, the
line costs associated with interconnecting to the Walker Substation would be
approximately $2.4 million. | |

Has Mr. Lanzalotta adequately considered the electrical characteristics of

- MetEd’s and PCL&P’s 34.5kV systems?

No. Even accounting for the lack of detail in Mr. Lanzalotta’s proposal, it would

~appear that he has not considered the electrical characteristics of the 34.5kV

systems in question. PCL&P bel‘ieves ﬂxete isa 30-degfee phase shift between the
MetEd and PCL&P 34.5kV systems that would require the mstallaﬂon ofa
specxal transfonncr to correct. This phase shift could be corrected wuh the new
transformer instzl!ation discussed above, however, it should be noted that this
new circuit would be 30-degrees out of phase with the existing MetEd 34.5kV
circuit presently extending along Route 6, precmding close transition,ties.

Do you have any concerns with Mr. Lanzalotta’s assessment af pa e 6, lines
y y atpageo

2-3, which states that the PCL&P load could potentizally be served out of the

MetEd Walker Substation over the existing 34.5kV line?

Yes The utilization of the existing MetEd 34.5kV circuit as a stand-alone solution

would be even less viable than the second transformer and new 34.5kV line
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alternative discussed above, due to capacity issues and the requirement to install a
transformer station to correct the phasing problem discussed above. The cost fo:
this transformer station would exceed the projected costs of the station additions
at the Walker Substation described above. In 6rder to sétisfy PJM deliverability
rcqui’reuients and PCL&P system icad growth, as well as the growth on MetEd’s
own syster, likely upgrades would be required to the existing Walker Substation

transformer and the existing 34.5kV circuit that would make this alternative even

- more expensive than the new transformer and line alternative discussed above.

Do you have any other cbncems with Mr. Lanzalotta’s proposal?

Yes. As noted above, PCL&P has numerous serious concerns regarding Mr.
Lanzalotta’s proposal given the Speculétive and undocumented nature of many of
its components. At a minimurn, a detailed engineering invesfi gation, local area
study and load flow studies would need to be pecformed to determine :
conclusively the sizing of facilities and system equipment needs, or even if such

an interconnection would be viable from engineering and system operating

perspectives. PCL&P estimates that the known costs for a possible

interconnection with the MetEd 34.5kV system at the Walker Substation are $4

million at minimum, without any payments to the hosting utility (i.e., MetEd) for

‘upgrades and any other associated fees that may be required as a result. There are

still too many unknown variables and costs, many of which could be significant,
to determine at present if this is even possible, let alone a cost-effective
altenative. As noted above, however, regardless of cost, Mr. Lanzalotta's

34.5kV proposal sufters from the fact that it is not as reliable as, and does not
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offer the long-term deli verability and system operating requirements that are

- inherent with, the 69kV alternative.

At page 6, Line 20 of Mr. Lanzalotta’s tesumony, he discusses PCL&P’s
possnble interconnection with Sussex. Do you agree with his asscssmeut and
conclusions? | ‘

I must preface my response to this question by noting that to date I have been

provided no system maps or other relevant information on the Sussex electric

delivery system, Accordingly, my response is based on limited field observations.

Mr. Lanzalotta suggests that Sussex has a 3'4.5kV' circuit with the capacity to
serve the PCL&P load, by cxtending this circuit between 3 and 13 miles, at a cost
of $1 to $2 million. He has broken this down to three major components; the costs
to connect the Sussex 34.5kV line to PCL&P, the Delaware River cmssing, and
costs to reconfigure the PCL&P system to prepare it to be fed from the Sussex |
system. [ will address these componénts in the same order.

Plc,aSe discuss the first component of Mr Lanzalotta’s Sussex
interconnection proposal.

With respect to the first -component, Mr, Lanzalotta has not identified the location

of the busscx sources, or the path of interconnection and the f‘acxhtxes that would

need to be upgraded to mterconnect with the PCL&P 34.5kV system. T, he nearest

34.5kV sources that PCL&P could locate within the Sussex territory are
approximately 12 to 14 miles in steaight-line distance from PCL&P’s facilities;
those being at the Susscx Substations located off of Meyer Road and Cemetery

Road. In order to reach the PCL&P service territory, the most mgical route that
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this liﬁe would have to traverse would be through New Jersey State parkland, and
then proceed through Jersey Central Power and Light’s (“JCP&L") service |
territory. The distance from these sources to PCL&P aiong madways is closer to
21 miles. Assuming that all of the ROW, parkland, environmental and franchise
approvals could be obtained, and some combination of ROW and roadway is
utilized for thé route, this line extension could be lessened to 17 miles, Mr.
Lanzalotta has also utilized a cost of $1 15 OOO per mile for 34.5kV constmctxon

as pmwded by Sussex. While this cost is not entu'ely out of line for just the base

34.5KV line constructlon, PCL&P is not sure if these costs contain other anc:llaxy

costs that can typically be part of the overall cost, such as vegetation

g management, rock holes, flagging or other contingency costs. PCL&P has seen

these factors escalate the costs to approach $150,000 per mile or higher.
Assuming there will be stretches of straightforward, as well as more difficult

construction, PCL&P estimates that $130.000 per mile is more representative for

- this type of construction. Based on this estimate, the cost for this portion of the

interconnection would be at least $2.2 million. This does not include any
additional costs that may be required to, among other things, secure ROW, obtain
permits, and complete eavironmental studies.

Please discuss the secdnd component of Mr, Lanzalotta’s Sussex

interconnection proposal.

The second major component is to cross the Delaware River. Mr. Lanzalotta
- utilized the cost that PCL&P incurred over 1§ years ago, updated to present day

dollars, 10 cross the Delaware River between Port Jervis and Matamoras. The

10
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costs, that were requested of and supplied by PCL&P, were updated ¢o$ts to re-
construct an éxisti‘ng‘ aerial crossing, not to install a completely new crossing.
PCL&P believes that utilizing this cost to be representative of what will be
required to cross the Delaware River, particularly if it is near or adjacent to the
Route 206 Bridge in south Milford, is inatcurate and most pmbably undexstaté&
A‘ straightforward increase just to correct to present day dollars would not
properly account for increases in materials that have escalated at a tﬁgher rate
than inflation, such as steel, or for factors shch as rock removal that certainly
could be prevalent near a river bed. [f it is permiticd to span the DelaWare River
as overhead construction, the cost to complete fhis will depend on the location and
distance of the crossing. PCL&P is estimating that this cost could excced -
$400,000. However, issues rclé‘ting 16 permitting and abpfovals, inciuding the
time required to secure them, could substantially raise this cost. This crossing will
be in the Delaware Water Gap Nanonal Recreation Area, and the permmmg
agencies may requxrc the line to be attached to an existing structure, such as the
Route 206 Bridge, or installed under the river. More i investigation needs to be
compeled before a reasonable cost estimate can provided. If this section is
required to be attached’ to kan’ existing structure or installed under the river,
PCL&P’s preliminary observations indicate that the costs to complete this section
of the line c’xtcnﬁon will be extremely expenstve, and cduid be double or more of
PCL&P’s estimated overhead cost to complete this crossing.
Please discuss the third component of Mr. I.anzalotta's Sussex

interconnection proposal.

1
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The third major component is to reconfigure the PCL&P System té prepare it to be
fed from the Sussex system. As with the MetEd alternative disblISSed above, this
component would include at a minimum upgrades to PCL&P’s Line 7 mainline
facilities, the installation of distribution automation and control/monitoring
schemes, and voltage support. Upgrades to the PCL&? 34.5kV system to -

interconnect with the new line are estimated to cost $350,000, voltage support

costs are estimated at $450,000, and autornation monitoring and control are

estimated to cost $200,000. Together, these line upgrade requirements are

estimated to cost $1 million.

 Are there any other costs that Mr. Lanzalotia should have considered with

this Sussex alternative?

Yes. A i‘ourih major cost component that Mr. Lanzalotta seems to have
overlooked is the source costs for this new Sussex 34.5kV line. As with the

MetEd altemative discussed above, in or‘c‘lcr‘to meet full PIM deliverability
requiremernits and PCL&'P"rsyst,em load ‘gro‘wzh,y it is anticipated that anew express |
feeder, wim a 477 AAC conductor and a capacity of 35 MVA at minimum, Would
need to be installed. As such, and at minimum, substation upgrade costskwould |
be required fo provide a new feeder position, breaker and relay protection,
SCADA, and other associated costs. In addition‘, és noted above, PCL&P believes

that there is a 30-degree phase shift between the Sussex and PCL&P 34.5kV

- systems that would require the instaliation of a special transformer to correct this

phasing problem. Similar to the MetEd altemative, PCL&P estimates that the cost

of these substation upgrades would be approximately $1.6 million. Additionally,

12
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the S‘uss;ex sources in this area are fed from 34.5kV lines, and with the proposed
load addition of the PCL&P load and projected PCL&P system growth to the
Sussex system, it s likely that the Sussex source feeders will nced o be upgraded
in the short-term. These costs can be substantial and should be identi fied and
accounted for in any cost analysis. |
Do you have any other concerns regarding Mr. Lanzalotta’s Sﬁssex
interconnection propesal? ‘
Yeé* PCL&‘P also has setious concerns regarding adequacy of seMce and voltage
quality issues associated with this alternative. This alternative proposes to serve
PCL&P’s load centers that are located between 17 to 23 miles away, from (hé
sources [ have described above, with a single radiai 34.5kV line. As noted
previously, this constitutes neither good utility design nor practice. Should this

Sussex line have to feed the PCL&P service teritory radially from the proposed

~ Sussex source, it would more than triple the line exposure of the system that

PCL&P presently utilizes to serve its customers. A detailed engineering
investigation, local area study and load flow studies would need to be performed

to determine the sizing of facilities and system equipment needs, or even if such

~ an interconnection would be viable from engineering and system operating

-perspectives. PCL&P estimates that the known costs for this alternative are $5.2

million, and could easily exceed $6 million depending on the construction
required to cross the Delaware River. There are still too many unknown variables
and costs, many of which could be significant, to determine at present if this is a

viable and cost-effective alternative. Depending on the resolution of these

13
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outstanding issues and unknown costs, while this alternative could seem less

ex‘pensive than the 69kV alternative that PCL&P originally proposed, it is not

| neaﬂyas rehable nor does it offer the long»term dehverabxhty and system

operating requirements that are inherent with the 69RV altematwe In conclusxon,
PCL&P questions the overall adequacy of Mr. Lanzaiotta’s Sussex proposal, and
further contends that this will not be a more reliable solution to 'th'e’system that
presently serves PCL&P customers.

At Page 7, lines 24-27, Mrr. Lanzalotta describes the need for PCL&P to
remain mterconnected to maintain the reliability of this interconnection.
Does PCL&P agree that it shoutd mamtam this mterconnechrm should its
service territory be taken over by Sussex? |

In the event that PCL&P is forced to sell and relinquish its service terr tory to

Sussex or any another entity, it would be under no obligation to remain

interconnected with its present facilities in Pennsylvania from its New York based

 sources. PCL&P will provide no guaranties that it will remain so interconnected.

Additionally, it is quite possible that if PCL&P remained interconnected with

- free-flowing ties to Sussex, in the scenario that Mr. Lanzalotta descrbes, that

PCL&P’s significantly stronger source in Port Jervis would not only continue to
serve all of PCL&P’s current load, but it could end up serving some of the Sussex

system load. This would put more demand requirements on Orange and

Rockland’s Port fervis substation and the sources feeding it, with no benefits to

PCL&P’s parent company, Qrange and Rockland. Such a free rider scenario is

neither attractive nor acceptable to Orange and Rockland. At a minimum, that

14
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interconnection would be subject to rules and rogulations of both PIM and the

NYISO and require proper payment and accounting of the energy flows.

Is PCL&P presently aware of, or investigating any other possible
interconnections with, PJM Companies?
PCL&P has initiated preliminary discussions with JCP&L and MetEd, and will

investigate if any opportunities exist to interconnect with its existing electric

delivery systems that could improve reliability, while satisfying PIM

deliverability requirements. |

Please discuss Mr. Lanzalotta’s contention that the reliability performance of
the PCL&P electric system has deteriorated since the mergér of Grange and
Rockland, PCL&P’s parent compaay, with Consclidated Edison, Inc.
(“CEI").

Mr. Lanzalotta states that electric system reliability performance, as reflected in

the Cgmpény’s, reliability data, reflects a substantial degradation in the

Company's electric service reliability performance since 1999, the year of the

- Orange and Rockland and CEI merger. He also contends that this is somehow

related to thé timing of the merger between Orange and Rockiand and CEI . Mr.
Lanzalotta’s contentions are not justilﬁed for the following three reasons. First,
Mr. Lanzalotta failed to account for the entire set of data the Company provided
in response to the OCA’s interrogatories. Mr.’ Lanzalotta‘s"selective use of this
data prcsentsﬁ an inaccurate view of the Company’s ServiCe reliability

performance. Second, Mr. Lanzalotta failed to adjust for weather-related outages

15
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or other outages beyond the control of the Company. A utility has virtually no
control over the number of 'thesé incidents, nor their location, and thereforé‘has
little control over their impact on reliability performance. Thxrd, Mr. Lanzalotta
failed to account properly for the two major factors that coutnbuted to the
customer hours of interruption in 2004 and 2005,
Please discuss the first factor.
The first factor involved customer outages related to the coﬁs;ﬁucti’on and
energization of the new Matamoras Substation. Prior to the completion of the
Matamoras Substanon, the majority of the customers in the Matamoras area were
fed from 34, SRV siepdown transforners at 2.4kV. Pnor to the completion of the
Matamoras Substation, the local distribution fasilities were upgraded zmd made
ready for conversion from the existing antiquated 24kV delta system to a modem
13.2kV grounded wye connected system that prévides a higher level of safety for
the general public. All of this construction and make’reaﬁy work for the new
distribution system was performed under live line condiﬁons and had minimal
effect on customer service. At page 14, lines 7-1 2, Mr, Laﬁza‘lotta implies that the
planned ouiages. associated with the ‘upgrad.e of the Matamoxfas substation were
's‘omehow avoidable, Mr Lanzalotta should be aware that system conversion
work, that (equircs taking customer putages to “cut-over” to the ncw distribution
voltage, is unavoidable and is an industry-accepted practice. Planned outages
were necessary to cbmp{ete the upgrade and modemization of this system. The
Company took proper measures to minimize the extent of such outages, and

followed appropriate procedures and steps to noti fy customers in advance of

16
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scheduled outages. Please refer to the rebuttal testimony of Company witness

James O’Brien for a detailed description of these proce:dures Even though there
was some mconvemence to customers during the scheduled outages associated
with this system upgrade, it is undeniable that the completion of the new

Matamoras Substation, and the upgrade to a new, more reliable 13.2kV system,

| provides substantially improved reliability to the customers that are now served

from the new Matamoras Substation (i.e., approximately 35% of all PCL&P
customers).

Please discuss the second factor.

- The second major factor contributing to customer hours of intecruption in 2004-

05, were those due to tree contacts. PCL&P acknowledges that intertuptions and
customers affected were significantly increased during this period due to tree

contacts. PCL&P was at the very end of its four-year timming cycle for the

distribution lines that serve PCL&P during this timeframe. Significant vegetation

management was performed and the reliability performance with respect to tree
incidents has improved ikn 2006. In recognition of these cffects, in the summer of
2006, PCL&P committed to improving its vegetation management cycle on its
PCL&P distribution system to a three-year prégfam. Therefore, because of the
outage anomalies associated with the Matamoras Substation conversions, and il
recognition of the pmposed improvements that will be gained by improvements to
the vcgetanon managcment program, the data from the 2004-2005 pcnod should

not be used for trending analysis.

Do you bave any other observations on Mr. Lapzalotta’s analysis?

17
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Yes [ do. Notwithstanding the above objections to this analysis, Mr. Lanzalotta’s

testimony is mi‘sleading; because the six years (1994-1999) that were used as a

basis for this analysis are insufficient to determine a trend because of the volatility
of PCL&P’s system performance. Inclusion of the 1981-1999 data in the analysis
will provide a more complete and objective view of the overall historical |

relﬁibﬂit-y perfbrmance of the PCL&P system (Refer to Exhibit 1 for the ®mpléte
PCL&P rcuabxhty statistics from 1981 - 2005). During this penod the v.ma!nhty

of the interruption data is clcarly evident. The mean SAIFI (i.e. Sysrem Avcrage

Frequency Index, or the frequency of electric service outages) for that nxne;teen*

year pcrwd is 2.98, with a standard deviation of 1.69, or 57%; For the yéar‘s 2000~
2003, SAIFI was below the mean twice, and was within one standard dcvxatlon
above the mean for the other two years. CAIDI (i.e., Customer Average
Interruption Duration Index, or the average customer restoration time for electric
service outages) and SAIDI (which is calculated by multiplying SAIFI times
CAIDI) are within one standard deviation for each of the four years. These
results do not indicate a substantial degfadatiom However, even this analysis may
not produce statistically valid results due to the relatively small number of

incidents, the variability in the number of customers affected by individual

incidents, and the type of incidents that have occurred. It must be noted that the

extreme vanability in PCL&P's reporting statistics, pamcularly thoqe that have
bcen reported with major events excluded, is due largely to the fact that its
eleclm delivery system is exceptionally small (i.e., during most of this reporting

period, PCL&P had two distribution cxrcu;ts and approximately 4 400 customers).
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As such, all outages in excess of approximately 440 kycustomem' qualified as a
major event that is excludable from the reporting statistics that generate SAIFL
Therefore, typical‘ixiterruptions for a larger utility that would never qualify as a
majot event, such as 4 tree contact or equipment failure that mi ght trip an entire
distribution circuit, or even half of the customers on  cirouit with a midpoint
recloser, do get excluded for PCL&P, as long as they méct the 10% critenia. This
only allows smaller outages, with the associated lower number of customers |
.aft‘e‘:ted,' to count towards’ the reportable indices, which in tum results in SAIF]
indices that are considerably lower than those of a utility with a substantial

customer base, This effect of reflecting refatively low SAIFI numbers has the

inverse effect of reflecting higher CAIDI numbers, as the remaining outages that

do count towaids the reportable statistics are smaller and with more localized
damage that requires longer time to restore, Additional ly, ba:éuse of PCL&P’S
small size and customer base, the number of interruptions that are cxperienced
each year is extremely lbw as compared to many of the othe‘f Pennsylvania
utilities, both with and without major events.

Please discuss PCL&P’s statistical volatility.

The problem that exists for PCL&P is that of significant statistical volatility since

the standards are based on an extremely small aumber of incidents that can vary

widely year to year. This volatility in the statistics makes it difficult to put a tight

bracket on expected performance, without accounting for proper measures to

address this volatility. For example and tefening to PCL&P’s statistics without

major events, from 1994 through 2005 the avecage annual number of interruptions
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for PCL&P was 50 with the low being 32 and the high being 90, This equates to a

volatility of 36% below and 80% above the 12-year mean. Further adding to the

 volatility is the number of customers affected by an interruption. From 1994-

2005, the average number of customers affected per incident was 47, with the low
being 24 and the high being 90. This equates to a volatility of 48% below to 92%
above the 12-year mean. Due to the combination of these factors during the period
1994 to 2005, the customers affected each year va.:ied from 85Qto 8,123, with
2,527 being the arithmetic mean. Thus the volatility ranged from 66% below the
mean to 221% above the mean. Siﬁ_cj:e‘ the n@ber of cus.to:ﬁers affected each year
is directly proportional to SAIFI, SAIFI is dircetly aﬁ‘cétéd by the volatility of the

number of interruptions and the number of cusiomers affected by those

: interruptions. Likewise for CAIDI, because of the small number of interruptions,

CAIDI also exhibits extreme volaﬁ!ity- From 1994-2005 the average annual
customer minutes was 448,179 with the high being 997,007 and the low being
176,719. This equates to a volatility of 61% below the mean and 122% above the
mean. | |

Has the Company’s electric service reliability showan any indications of

improvement in 20067

Yes. Baséd. on 12-month rolling data through November 2006, SAiF] was 1.77,
which is below the 2000-05 and 1981-99 means (i.¢.. 3.97 and 2.98 respectively);
CAIDI was 196 minutes which is within one standard deviation of the 2000-05
mean and above the 1981-99 mean (1e, 162 and 111 re’spectively)‘; and, SAIDI

wais 347 minutes which is below the 2000-05 mean and within one standard |
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deviation of the 1981-99 mean (?.&, 617 and 317 respectively). These values
directly contradict Mr. Lanzalotta’s assertion, at page 8, line 23, that the
“reliability data reflects a substantial degradation in the Company’s electric
service reliability”. Customers” perception of reliability is driven predominately
by the frequency of service interruptions (as measured by SAIFT), as opposed to
the duration of outages (as measured by CAIDI). The Company‘s 2006 SAIFI |

performance indicates better reliability than either the pre- and post-merger

“average reliability performance. Additionally, the 2006 data includes a major

- event that significantly impacted these statistics. On February 19, 2006 a tree fell

from outside of PCL&P’s right-of-way, in a relatively inaccessible location, on to
PCL&P’s facilities causing an outage. Without this incident, SAIFT would

improve to 1,19, CAIDI would improve to 128 minutes, and SAIDI would

- improve to 153 minutes. Again, this demonstrates the iype of variability that

exists for PCL&P’s system performance, in that a single incident can have an

inordinate impact on each of the performance measurements. It also demonstrates

the inequity of including fbutages that are beyond the control of the utility in this

analysis. Additionally, through November 2006, PCL&P's reliability is better than
the rolling 12-month criteria set by the PAPUC. The rolling 12-month Frequency
(SAIFI) of 1.18 is better than the target of 1.31. The rolling 12-month Restoration

(CAIDI) of 108 minutes is significantly better than the target of 215 minuics., The

| rolling 12~month Duration (SAIDI) of 127 minutes is significantly better than the

target of 282 minutes. Contrary to Mr. Lanzalotta’s comments, this data supports
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the fact that PCL&P’s reliability in 2006 is not degrading, but is improving and
exceeding the PAPUC’S criteria.
Please descril: the validity of comparing PCL&P’s reliability data with that
of Sussex? |
PCL&P does not believe that any meaningful comparisons can be made with the

Sussex electric system reliability data contained in Mr. Lanzalotta’s testimony.

- Sussex is not required by the New Jersey Board of Public Utilities to report its

data with any substantial regulatory oversight. Accordingly, any data that is
provided as part of interrogatories or testimony must:be thorou ghly evaluated as
to its definitions and completeness, to the extent t‘hat this can even be determined.
PCL&P has a sophisticated Outage Management Sf,fstém that captures each and
every clectrig service interruption, and all interruption data is ngorously reviewed
prior to its inclusion as part of the Company‘é reliability database. PCL&P cannot
be sure that Sussex reliability data is as strenuously accounted for and scﬂtiﬂzed
as those utilities that are Subject to regulatory oversight and consequences. As
disr;usscd above, Mr. ’La,nzalotta?’s Sussex interconnection proposal will résult in
less reliablé service for the customers in Pike County. Té assume 'thai any

reliability level that has been experienced by Sussex would be maintained, after

 the addition of a 51 square mile area that would be located and fed from a single

radial line at the end of their distribution system, is both unrealistic and incorrect.
On pﬁge‘ 15, lines 18 ~ 24, Mr. Lanzalotta asserts that the anonexation of the

PCL&P system onto the Sussex System will have an immediate impact on

22
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reducing the duration of electric service outages on the PCL&P system. Do

you agree with this assertion?

No, 1do not. Mr. Lanzalotta has made this assertion based solely on an extremely

limited comparison and analysis of outage statistics, to which for reasons as stated
above, PCL&P lends litﬂé credence. Additionally, Mr. Lanrzalotta has not
provided any other key and critical information that would be required to make
such comparisons, such as the number of resources that Sﬁssex devotes in
responding to system outages, the location that they respond from, and how this
may differ for normal work hours, off schedule work hours (such as weeknights,

weekends and holidays), and for storm conditions, both expected and unexpected.

It must be noted that the nearest facility from which PCL&P staffs its crews from

is the Port Jervis facility, loéaledjust one quarter mile away from Matamoras,
During normal working hours of Monday through Friday 8:00AM - 4:30PM, the
Port Jervis facility is staffed with two crews. When additional pfojec'ts are
scheduled in the area, stéfﬁng is increased 1o a range of three to five crews.
Currently our staffing in the facility is five crews due to capital improvement

work being done on both Line 7 and circuit 5-10-34, which are the two sources

serving the PCL&P load. This level is expected to remain in effect through June |

2007, and possibly beyond. During other times of the day, or for weekends and
holidays, crews can be dispatched from Orange and Rockland’s Middleﬁown, New
York facilities, which are approximately 18 miles away fro‘m Pike County and is
quickly accessxblc to Pike County via [nterstate hxghway Route 84. In addition, in

June 2004, Orangc and Rockland modified and enhanced the Troubleshooter
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classification to include the Northern Division, which includes the area that
provides service to PCL&P. The troubleshooter olassification included two-
pcrson crewing who are scheduled on the 1600 to 2400 hour period during the
normal workweck, and on the Saturday 0800 to 1600 hour period, with out the
call out process required. This enhancement was implemented in September 2004

to help reduce response time to the PCL&P arca and other areas served by the

~ division. Absent having been provided with any details regarding the Sussex

facilities and crew reporting locations, PCL&P was able to locate the main.

headquarters for Sussex across from the Sussex airport -on‘NI local Route 639. It
appears that the most direct driving route, from this location to the nearest point |
on the PCL&P system in Milford, Pennsylvania, is approximafcljf 16 miles along
single lane roads. I would note that this distance is not substantially closer to

where PCL&P crews respond from d’uring off-hour periods, and significantly

farther away from its Port Jervis facility during normal working hours. With the
additional inibnnat‘ion that [ have provided above, cdmbinéd with the lack of key

Sussex information and supportable statistics, one cannot assume that, under

- Sussex, system restoration and customer hours of interruption will show

immediate improvement. In fact, it is just as likely that customer hours of

_interruption may deteriorate, particularly when accounting for the significant

radial line exposure concerns inherent with the Sussex option.
Does the nature of the PCL&P service territory affect the service reliability that

the Company’s customer’s experience?
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‘Most definitely. The type of outages that PCL&P customers experience and the

resultant hours of intemxption; are direcily related to geography, customer
density, vegetation density, system design, and other systemn and operating
specific pMeters. The nature of the PCL&P service territory, where many
customers are fed from radial lines m heavily treed areas at the vety eﬁdyof the
Company’s service territory, explains why, as discussed above, customers are
particularly susceptible to tree related interruptions and longer duration outages.
Given the more rural characteristics of PCL&P’s service territory, it is simply
unrealistic for many of the Company’s custormers to expect that they will
experience the same levels of high service reliability as customers who reside in

predominately urban or suburban environments, where the electric delivery

infrastructure is considerably more developed with }ﬁghex? levels of redtihdancy

available. I would note further that the characteristics of the Company’s serviée
territory, and their impact on service reliability, would remain regardless if
service were provided by PCL&P, Sussex, or another utility. [ must conclude by
noting that PCL&P hzis changed, or is in the process of changing certain of its
system design, maintenance and opéraiing parameters to improve system
performance and restoration. PCL&P is committed to improving serﬁcc
mliability for its customers.

Please discuss the outages experienced éver the past few years by the
Muaicipal Authority of the Borough of Milford (*Municipal Authority™),

and the Delaware Valley School District (“DVS™).
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Previously in this proceeding both the Municipal Authority and DVS provided
PCL&P with data regarding the service interruptions that they had experienced
during the period from August 2004 through February 2006, PCL&P analyzed
this data against its records and substantiated that there were nine of the listed
outages that affected service to the Municipal Authority énd DVS. Ofthose
outzig%f, three were from stormy weather, one was due to a non-Company
accident, and two were from the‘failure of the customer’s underground
i‘acili(i’cs/cquibment_ that supply the school. Two incidents were due to tree
comacts,.‘ one of which was a tree from well outside of the ROW that fell into Line
7 and disrupted service to all of the customers served from Line 7. The remaining
incident was a pre-scheduled outage to relocate a pole. Therefore, with respect to
,tfz'ese nine outagés, seven were due to extenuating circumstances or incidents over

which PCL&P has little control. Aside from tree contacts, which PCL&P has

 addressed with the proposed improvements to its vegetation management

program, these outages are not indicative of recdrring problems.

Do you have any observations regarding the service interruptions
experienced by Mr. Peter Kenny?

During cmss-—cxamiﬁaﬁon on November 6, 2006, Mr. Kenny téstiﬁcd that he has

suffered from many service outages over the past few years. PCL&P performed a

review of the recent service interruptions experienced by Mr. Kenny. Mr,

Kenny’s residence is located in Milford, Pennsylvania, near the end of a long
heavily treed road that is served by a step-down transformer and a long radial line ,

off of the radial portion of Line 7. The Company's analysis substantiated that
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there were 16 outages that affected this customer in the fanuary 2005 to

November 2006 timeframe, The make-up of interruptions are broken down as

follows: one storm related, thiee non-Company accidents; onc scheduled, ohc
animal contact, oneyovarloadéd fuse, four equipment failures, 6ne of which was
the DVS riser pole failure, and five tree cohtacts, one of which was a tree from
well dutside of the ROW that fell into Liﬁe 7 and disrupted service to all of the
customers served from Line 7. PCL&P would note that seven of these sixteen
outéges were due to extenuating éircwnstanccs or incidents over which PCL&P
has little control. PCL&P anticipates that its vegetation managemént pfogram
improvemenis witl address the tree conditions. The overload condition occurred
from a blbwn fu;.e on Cummins Hill Road, and, as a r&sult; tﬁe Company
upgraded the fuse size. PCL&P acknowledges that this custormer has exﬁerienced
a higher than average number of interruptions. It must be noted, however, that this

customer is located near the end of a long heavily treed single-phase spur that is

 fed from a stepdown transformer, ofT of a radial feeder at the end of the

Company’s service territory. While PCL&P has taken action to improve his
service reliability, given his location, and the exacerbated radial nature of the
system that serves him, Mr, Kenny likely will continue to be more susceptible to

outages than the average PCL&P customer.

Have you come to any conclusions regarding the service interruptions that

occurred in PCL&P’s service territory?

Yes. The Company’s analysis of outages that have occurred over the past six

years reveals that increases in the number of interruptions, the number of

27




10

i1

12

13
14

15
16
17
18
19
20
2l
22

3

~ PCL&P COUNTY LIGHT & POWER COMPANY
REBUTTAL TESTIMONY OF
ANGELO M. REGAN
customers affected, and the customer-hours of interruption predominantly

occurred in 2604 and 2005. The reasons for this were primarily due to the

following: -

¢ Pre-scheduled outages associated with the constructing and eriergizing the
Matamoras Substation. |

» Tree contacts towards the end of the Company’s féur—year vegetation

management program. Sigxﬁﬁcént, vegetation management has been
completed, and improvements have been made regarding reliability
performance with respect to tree outages in 2006. Additionéi
improvements are expected as a result of improving the vegetation

‘management plan to a three-year progran:.

~®  Anincrease in non-Company accidents that resulted in outages. It is

expected that this increase is a statistical anomaly, could certainly be
related to growth and increasing customer density in Pike County, and is

not related to any deficiency in PCL&P’s system or work practices.

~ As discussed earlier in my testimony, in analyzing the reliability of the PCL&P

system, it should be noted that the service area is rural, and is primarily a radial ,
system, resulting in reliability performance that is somewhat lower than more
urban locations that are serviced by loop systems and multiple sourées. The
reiatively small size of the service area and its topology, alsokccntri bute to
volatility in reliability performance., PCL&P opc‘rates’an‘d main{ain‘s this systém
in a manner that is consistent with regulations and industry standards. The

Company makes necessary improvements to the system, and adjusts its practices
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when appropriate. | The implementation of the Matamoras Substation and
improved ve;getation fnanagcment will contribute to improved system rehiability.

As evidenced by Exhibit 2, PCL&P interruption data, year-to-date through
November, has improved as compared tb the 2004 - 2005 statistics. The number

of customers affected and the customer hours of interruption are the lowest since

’2001 through November of each year.

Does tﬁis conclude your rebuttal t&timuﬂ'y?

Yes, it does.
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Exhib#t |
L Excluding Pre-Arranged, Storms
AllOutages : and Major Events

Year | SAIFI CAIDI  SAIDI SAIFI CAIDI ~ SAIDI
1981 6.52 127 828 : '
1982 3.67 98 361

1983 1.81 59 107

1984 2.69 77 206

1985 | 0.88 58 St

1986 3.49 99 347

1987 1.61 225 361

1988 |  5.72 79 453

1989 | 4.26 53 227

1990 4.36 108 471

1991 4.43 120 533

1992 4.85 108 525

1993 2.13 193 410

1994 3.25 84 274 0.44 114 50
1995 1.58 142 224 0.38 179 67
1996 1.64 115 189 0.22 2086 45
1997 1.15 112 129 0.47 140 67
1998 1.33 132 176 0.42 247 103
1999 [.18 121 143 051 - 161 83
2000 2.61 140 366 0.51 357 183
2001 2.58 145 376 0.35 200 69
2002 4.09 115 471 1.05 224 234
2003 3.74 12 420 0.52 184 96

| 2004 3.04 318 965 0.52 172 90

2005 7.79 141 1102

185 109 202
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Please state your name, title, employer, and business éddres‘s.
My name is Joseph A. Holtnan. 1am Director — Electricity Supply for
Consolidated Edison Company of New York, lnc. {(“Con Edison™), My
office is located at 4 Irving Place, Néw York, New York.,
Please describe your responsibilities in that position.

On behalf of Con Edison, Orange and Rockland Utilities, Inc. (“O&R” or

“Orange and Rockland”), Rockland Electric Company (‘RECO™) and Pike

County Light & Power Company (‘PCL&P” or the “Companjr”), fam
responsible for day-to-day electricity supply operations, including the |
scheduling of generation and load bids wﬂh the New York Independent
System Operator (“NYISO"), the PIM Interconnection, L.L.C. (“PIM™),
ISO New England, and Hydro-Quebec; dévalopmcm of overall efectric
power procurement élans; development and fmplcmcntation of electric
hedging programs; strategic devélvopmem and participation in capacity and

transmission congestion contract auctions; management of contractual

rights with various non-utility generators; and the preparation of monthly

invoices in support of wholesale purchases and sales, including capacity,

encrgy and transmission congestion contracts, Electric service in the

service territories of PCL&P, Orange and Rockland, and RECO
{collectively tic “System”) is provided as an integrated operation by
Orange and Rockland.

Please describe your professional background.
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I rejoined Con Edison in March, 2002, in my current capacity. From
April, 2000, through March, 2002, [ was employed by Mirant New York,
Inc. as Direétor-chulatory Affairs with responsibility for New York'
regulatory and NYISO matters. From July, 1999, through April, 2000, I
was Director- Corporate Planning for Con Edison, working priméﬁiy on
matters related to potential mergers and acquisitions. From 1996 through
July, 1999, I was Director- Energy Resources for O&R, with |
responsibilities similar to my c’urrént position; I also had general
responsibility for the procurement of natural gas energy and capacity, and
associated regulatory and accounting matters. From March through July,
1997, Lassumed the position of Acting Presideni for NORSTAR Energy
Limited Paﬂﬁership, a Houston, Texas-based retail gas marketing
enterprise, with geder&l responsibility for day-to-day operations of the
firm. In 1995, 1 was named Director-Fuel Resources, with general
responsibility for procurement of natural gas }for resale, and natural gas,
coal and ojl for O&R’s electric generation facilities. From 1991 through
1995, I was M’anagcr;Fuel Resources Administration, with similar
responsibilities. From 1989 through 1991, | was a Program Adutinistrator
in O&R’s Demand-Side Management department. From 1985 through
1989, I was employed by O&R as an Economic Analyst, with
responsibility for forecasting, capital appropriations analysis, and various
other ‘statistical studies.
I received a Bachelor of Arts degree in Physics (cum laude) from the State
University of New York College at Plattsburgh in December 1984, and &
Mastefs degree in Business Administration with a major in Financial
Management from lona College’s Hagan School of Business in July 1989.
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Have you previously testified before the Pemisylvarxia. Publié Utitity
Commission (“PAPUC")? |

Yes, I have submitted testimony before the PAPUC in Dockets R-922516
and P-00011872. |
What is the purpose of your testimony in this proceeding?

[ will discuss PCL&P’s proposed default service supply plan, and respond
to certain staternents contained in the direct testimony of Office of |
Consumer Advocate (“OCA”) witnesses Nancy Brockway, and ‘Matihew
Kahal, as well as Office of Small Business Advocate (“OSBA"™) witness
Robert Knecht,
Please discuss how PCL&P proposes to secure its default service supply
for the period commencing January 1, 20087

PCL&P will be filing in the very near future a proéosal with the PAPUC
to secure its default service supply for thé period coimnéncing January 1,

2008, Specifically, PCL&P will propose the following:

. Aéquire financial hedges of energy and capacity purchases made

from NYISO’s spot market fdr the Hudson Valley Zone (i.c., Zone

G). PCL&P is connected to the bulk power grid in the NYISO's

Hudson Valley Zone.

. Hedges to be acquired through a web-based, declining price
auction. .
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Term of the hedges would be from January 1, 2008 through

December 31, 2010.

PCL&P would integrate its‘proposcd auction s&ith the hedging
procurement efforts of Orange and Rockland. The quantity of
energy and éapacity hedged will be dependent on whether Direct
Energy Services, LLC (“Direct”) will continue its aggregation

program in 2008.

PCL&P will confer with interested parties as to whether its hedges

should be layered in over a multi-year period.

If s0, the quantity of energy and capacity hedged would be 100% of
PCL&P’s requirements in 2008, 67% of its 2009 requirements, and
33% of its 2010 requirements, computed on an hourly basis and
financially setﬂed wonthly. 'Ihereéﬁer, at annual intérvais, ,
PCL&P could obtain financial hedges for 33% of its requirements
for thmc;year terms, resulting in “layered” hedges that reflect the
longer-term market price while protecting customers from short-

term market fluctuations.

The prospect of hedging 100% of 2008 requirements creates risk of
one-lime unusual market conditions that will be monitored closely

at the time of the 2008 auction.

b ke
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. If hedges are not layered in, then PCL&P would seek to hedge

100% of its 2008-2010 requirements in the Fall of 2007,

Why is PCL&P proposing to utilize financial hedges, rather than physical
purchases to fix the prices of the energy and capacity required to meet its
defaﬁlt service load?

The proposal assumes that PCL&P will continue to be electrically
connected to the NYISO’s Hudsou Valley Zone ihrough» 2010, based on
construction kand mgtﬂatorylcnvircﬁmenml approval lead times associated
with any project to interconnect PCL&P with PIM, even if such project
were to be agreed upon. There is no clear discount for fixed-price, load
following physical energy purchm¢, similar to those acquired in New
Jersey's Basic Generation Service auction. In fact, some prospective
suppliers have indicated to PCL&P that given the Company’s size, the
physical energy scheduling and credit requirements for PCL&P wo&ld
command an administrative premium over financial load following hedges

since it is an additional administrative burden with which they must

contend, Load following financial hedges will fix the energy and capacity

prices sufficiently to lock in customer prices, while ensuring that PCL&P

does not bear undue market price risks.

Why has PCL&P proposed a three year term?

Natural gas is the primary fuel for electricity generation in southeastern

New York State, the area to which PCL&P is connected. A review of

-5-
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historical natural gas prices over the last 15 years shows that customer |

- prices are more stable when hedged over longer periods, up to three yeaxs

Beyond three years, little additions! :'s}!atxhty reduction is achieved.

Shorter hedge periods, such as one year or less, could result in a situation

- where the hedges are all acquired in a rising or falling market, which

would then magnify their impact on rates. For these reasons, PCL&P has

~proposed a three year hedge term,

Please discuss the type of auction that PCL&P has proposed.

A load following hedge is e customized product. It is not readily traded
like other standard hedge products such as “Sx16s” and “around-the-
clock” hedges, which hedge the cost of a fixed volume of eh‘ergy. To
ensure a competitive résult when acquiring such a unique product, an

auction or request for proposals (“RFPs”) are preferred formats.

Because electric energy is such a volatile product, hedge suppliers risk

market prices moving against them while they hold offer prices open to

hgdg& buyets such as PCL&P. The longer a pricc must be held, the greater

the risk and so the greater the risk prcmxum they must charge thc hedgc
buyer. If the market is too volatile or the time from offer to
acceplance/rejection is too great, a hedge seller may decline to participate
in the RFP or auction. The three-day review period after the close of
PCL&P’s last default service auction was a significant factor in the low
Sup;ﬂier participation. Electronic auctions are superior to traditional RFPs
since they foster & competitive offer process in a relatively short

timeframe, Offers can be selected or rejected within minutes of the close

of an auction, greatly reducing a hedge supplier’s risk and therefore the
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risk premium paid by customers, fn PCL&P’s case, it is mbognized that
PAPUC would like to approve hedge prices before they are accepted. If
PCL&P is to integrate its hedging éffb‘rts with thase of Orange and
Rockland, PCL&P rgquir’.cs’that three days before the auction, it would
submit to the PAPUC, (with copies to OCA and OSBA), a ceiling price.
This submission would be subject to strict confidentiality protections. The

PAPUC could then determine if it approves the ceiling price. Once a

 ceiling price is approved, PCL&P would hold an electronic auction and -

immediately make awards so long as prices are below the ceiling. This
methodology would minimize premiums that would be paid to hedge

providers and maximize supplier participation in the auction. Without

- prior agreement on a ceiling price, an integrated auction with Orange &

Rockland is not possible. PCL&P would work with the PAPUC to
schedule the auction at 4 time convenient to the PAPUC. Representatives

ol PAPUC, OCA and OSBA are welcome to view the auction in real time,

either in person or electronically.

Pleast discuss the altematives for implementing a three year hedge term,
There are two alternatives for implementing a three year hedge term. First,
PCL&P can secure hedges of energy and capacity purchases for a three

year term ic., January 1, 2008 though Decomber 31, 2010).

- Alternatively, PCL&P can layer hedges in over time, as is done in New

Jersey’s Basic Generation Service auction. The first alternative is

administratively more convenient. Fixing the price of energy over a malti- |

year period, based on a single snapshot in time, can lead to situations

-
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- where the hedged pfice is much lower than market prices at time of

delivery (PCL&P’S situation from 2003-2005) or much higher than market
prices at time of delivery (PCL&P’s situation in 2006). By tayering
hedges in over time, PCL&P may be better able 1o maintain the hedged

price closer to long-term market prices while still protecting consumers

from short-term market perturbations. To put such a structure in place, the

first ‘tranéhe,’ or portion of hedges must set the stage for the three-year
tranches to follow annually. PCL&P proposes to discuss with interested

parties how to structure the hedge term. ‘

| Please comment on Mr. Knecht’s recommendation (page 9, lines 10- 12)

that PCL&P upgrade its algorithm for evaluating whether the risk
premium from the low-price wholesale bidder is reasonuble,

As part of the process described above, in which PCL&P would submit an
auction ceiling price to the PAPUC, PCL&P would review its algorithm
and the data used to estimate an appropriate risk premium with the |
PAPUC. | |

Please comment on Mr. Knecht's suggestion (page 9, line 23 through ;Sagc
10, line 6) that as a backstop proposal, the PAPUC may wish to consider
allowing PCL&P to procure power on the spot market and reconcile
variances between revenues and costs. |

PCL&P concurs with Mr. Knecht’s praposed contingency plan in the event

that its proposed auction is unsuccessful. PCL&P recognizes that due to :

-8~
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Hts relatively small size, location, and the volume risk inherent in the

proposed default service structure, and despite its best efforts, insufficient

interest may be shown by hedge sellers to conduct a successful auction. In
the event that PCL&P is unable to conduct a successful competitive
auction (e.g., two or fewer bidders, prices exceeding the pre-determined

ceiling), it proposes that customers be charged monthly for the actual cost

- of energy used to supply their default service requirements, as acquired on

the spot markets operated by the NYISO, and that thatychmgc be
reconcilable on a current basis. Although the prices undcr such service are
volatile, they also tend to be lower over theiongttenn man hédged prices,
since hedges include risk premiums. Such a procedure would have the |
benefit of keeping both PCL&P and its customers whole.

Please comment on the Recommendation No. 1 contained in the Repar; on
Campetilive Morket C‘onditions Regarding the Pike County Light & Power
Company issued June 1, 2006 by the Commission’s Law Bureau (“Law
Bureau Report”).

This recommendation provides that the Commission should explore the

integration of PCL&P’s enerpy procurement afler 2007 with either its New

York or New Jersey affiliates (i.e., O&R and RECO). While, as noted in

the testimony of Mr. Knecht (page 8, lines 17-18), such an approach has

“both logistical and jurisdictional issues, PCL&P is proposing to integrate

its proposed auction with the hedging procurement efforts of Orange and
Rockland. PCL&P should benefit from the economies of scale inherent in

such an integrated procurement. That said, given the vagaries of market

9.
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conditions, PCL&P plainly can make no guaranties, or providé~ any iron

clad assurances regarding the results of such an integrated procurermient.

PCL&P will be discussing with interested parties the mechanics for such

- anintegrated auciion. As noted above, however, the most critical factor to

Jmplememmg a succesefii mtegrated auction is the PAPUC’s agreement

to the ceiling price approﬂch.

Pl‘e«ase’ discuss the possible impact of Direct Energy Services, LLC
(“Direct”) on any auction. | |

The Quantity of energy and capacity hedged by PCL&P will bt: dependant
on whether Direct continues its aggregation program in 2008, In addition,
potential bidders’ perception of the auction may vary depending on
whether Direct’s aggregation program will comihue or not. Accordingly,
PCL&P requests that the PAPUC require Direct to inform parties by
September 1, 2007 as to whether it will conﬁnu;: its aggregation program
in 2008. |

Do you agree with Ms. Brockway’s contention (page 28, lines 11-13) that
because it is part of the NYISO, rather than PIM, PCL&P is at a
disadvantage when it comes to meeting the requzrements of the
Pennsylvania Altcmatwc Encrgy Portfolio Standards Act?

No. The Pennsylvania Altcmative Energy Portfolio 'Standa:d's Act will
require PCL&P, in its role as an eiéctric distribution compény(“EDC"} to
acquire alternative energy credits in quastities equal to a percentage of its

total retail sales of electricity (as measured in MWh) to all retail electric
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customers for that reporting period. PCL&P’s obli gaﬁ'on to acquire

~ alternative energy credits will be reduced to the extent that other electric

gencration suppliers (“EGS”) such as Direct are providing commodity
service to retail electric customers. Even if PCL&P scrves all the retail
access customers in its service territory, due to the small size of its service
territory, the total number of alternative encrgy credits that PCL&P would

have to acquire would be minimal. PCL&P expects that a market for

~ alternative energy credits will develop and that PCL&P will be able to

purchase any needed altemative energy credits from such market. This is
exactly what has happened in New Jersey. PCL&P's New Jersey affiliate,
RECO, has been able to purchase alternative énergy credits required to
serve its Central and Western Divisions” loads at reasonable prices.

Does this complete your testimony?

Yes, it doés.
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